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ABOUT CYMER

Cymer is the world's leading supplier
of deep ultraviolet (DUV) laser
illumination sources, the essential
light source for DUV photolithography
systems. DUV photolithography is a
key enabling technelogy which has

—

Forward Looking Statements

allowed the semiconductor industry -

to meet the exacting specifications
and manufacturing requirements for
volume preduction of today’s advanced
semiconductor chips. Cymer partners
with all three DUV photo-lithography
system manufacturers who in turn
supply wafer steppers and scanners
to chipmakers. More than 80
chipmakers around the world use
Cymer light sources in production.
Cymer has an ongoing R&D program
to develop extreme ultraviolet (EUV)
light sources for the next generation
of lithography tools that may be needed
for production late this decade. Looking
for additional growth opportunities
outside of semiconductor manu-
facturing, in mid-2005, Cymer
announced TCZ, a joint venture with
Carl Zeiss SMT AG to develop

processing tools for the flat panel

display industry.

Statements in this Annual Report that
are not strictly historical in nature are
forward-looking statements. These
statements include, but are not limited
to, statements regarding anticipated
improvements to operating efficiencies,
particularly in manufacturing and
supply chain management; financial
performance, including: improving
overall profitability; anticipated cash
generation; controlling expenses;
anticipated levels of capital spending;
enhancing product reliability, reduciﬁg
cycle times and total manufacturing
costs; capitalizing on long-term
industry and lithography growth;
expectations for EUV source
development and our TCZ joint
venture; the new management team
enabling growth; growing demand for
ArF light sources and growth in non-
systems revenue; expectations of
performance and market demand for
new XL Series products, particularly
the XLR 500i; anticipated semi-
conductor unit growth and lower
chipmaker capital spending:; and
expectations for technology trends and
market transitions. These statements
are only predictions based on current
information and involve a number of
risks and uncertainties. Actual events
may differ materially from those
projected in such statements due to
various factors, including, but not
limited to: demand for semiconductors
in general and, in particular, for leading
edge devices with smaller circuit
geometries; cyclicality in the market
for semiconductor manufacturing
equipment; rates at which chipmakers
take delivery of photolithography tools
from lithography tool manufacturers;
rates at which lithography tool
manufacturer customers take delivery
of light source systems from us;
timing and size of orders from
our customers; changes in market

penetration by our competitor; product
lead time demands from our customers;
mix of light source models, consumable
and spare parts and service revenues
as percent of our total revenues;
changes in the price and profitability
of our products; our ability to develop
and implement new technologies and
introduce new products; utilization
rates of light sources and sales
of consumable and spare parits
and services; our ability to manage
customer satisfaction, product
reliability, and direct field service
and support effectiveness; our ability
to manage our manufacturing
requirements; the demand for flat panel
displays in general; the demand by
flat panel display manufacturers for
low temperature poly silicon (LTPS)
fabrication processes and the tool TCZ
is developing in particular; the timing
of customer orders, shipments and
acceptances; delays or cancellations
by customers of their orders; the
performance and market acceptance
of the TCZ tool; new and enhanced
product offerings by competitors; TCZ's
ability to meet its production and
product development schedules; TCZ's
ability to secure adequate supplies of
critical components for its products;
foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations, principally with respect
to the Japanese yen (in which sales
by our Japanese subsidiary are
denominated}; worldwide political
instability; changing global economic
conditions, including rising energy
prices; and intellectual property
protection. For a discussion of these
and other factors that may cause our
actual events or results to differ from
those projected, please refer to our
most recent annual report on Form
10-K, as well as other subsequent
filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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SHAREHOLDERS

In 2006 Cymer increased shareholder

value through improved profitability and efficiency

LETTER TO |

2006 was the best year in Cymer’s
history in terms of meeting our
customers’ needs and by virtually every
financial metric. Our record financial
performance allowed us to continue
our strong investment in developing
advanced deep ultraviolet (DUV)
technologies to meet our customers’
next generation requirements, as well
as make progress in our longer-term
growth initiatives — extreme ultraviolet
{EUV) source development and our TCZ
joint venture. At the same time,
by strengthening our management
team, we have further enabled our
continued growth and ability to take
Cymer to the next level in customer
satisfaction, product development,
revenue and profitability.

RECORD FINANCIAL
ACHIEVEMENT

In 20086, total revenue rose 42 percent
to a record $543.9 million, compared
to 2005 revenue of $383.6 million.
Product gross profit totaled $262.2
million {(48.3 percent product gross
margin) in 2006, versus $155.3 million
in 2005 (40.6 percent product gross
margin). The majority of the $106.9
million, or 69 percent, increase resulted
from increased sales, successful total




costl reduction efforts and improvement
in overall internal operating efficiencies.
!

We shipped a wtal of 280 light sources
in 2006 compared with 207 light
som‘*ces in the prior year. Argon
flucride {(ArF) llght sources accounted
for approximat'ely 46 percent of 2006
system shlpments including a record
122 XLA Serles ArF light sources. For
the first time gn our history, system
average selling price (ASP) was over
$1 million for the year, growing to
$1,0|06,000 for12006, compared with
$984,000 in 2005.

Operating income rose by $78.4
mxlllon or 193 percent, to a record
$119 1 million in 20086, compared to
$40. 7 million in the prior year. Our
2006} operating‘margin grew to 21.9
percent, more than double the 10.6
percent operating margin in 2005.

Net income in 2006 grew to a record
$95.6 million, an increase of $49.0
million, or 105 ‘percent, over $46.6
million in 2005.| We achieved record
fully dlluted earnings per share of
$2. 40 an 89 percent increase over
earmngs of $1.27 per share in 2005.

QOur record earnings for 2006 included
the efflect of stock-based compensation
expense, which had a negative $0.13
per diluted share impact on net earnings.

ONGOQING GROWTH

In 2006, we installed 299 new light
sourcells at chipmakers and other end
users, bringing our total installed base
to 3,042 systems. ArF, the fastest
growirrlig segmemlz of the lithography
markelt. currently accounts for
approximately 16 percent of our
instalied base.

During 2008, the average pulse

utilization rate of our light sources

continued to grow. and by year end
3

was up more than 8 percent over 2005
levels. This growth was driven by a
number of factors:

*Increased utilization of XLA Series
light sources in the installed base.
*Chipmakers’ efforts to boost the
productivity of their installed
lithography tools.

*The growing number of layers on the
wafer, with more layers requiring
patterning with DUV light sources!

Non-systems'revenue accounted for
48 percent of total revenue in 20(1)6.
This recurring revenue stream grew
to a record $261 million in 2008, {.lp
49 percent over $175.2 million rm
2005. Though our level of non- systems
revenue is expected to rise and fall i Im
tandem with fab utilization, the
longer-term trend supports continuéd
growth as our installed base of systerhs
continues to increase.

EFFECTIVE EXECUTION

Over the last several years, we have
had considerable success in better
serving our customers, building la
better company and increasing
shareholder value as a result of
effective execution. The lmprovememls
we made across the orgamzanon
to benefit our customers and our
operating results are the comerston!a
on which we will continue to bunld
the company.

During 2006, our execution was
evident in the significant progress we
made throughout our manufacturing
process. Some of our most impartant
achievements in the last vyear
have allowed us to contribute to'
our customers’ success. To highlightI
a few:

*By successfully focusing on total
cost reduction, shortening lead times
and improving quality, first pass
manufacturing yields have improved

=
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CYIMER CUMULATIVE
INSTALLATION BY REGION

Usa 30% 518 instatls
JAPAN 16% 495 installs
KOREA 16% 501 installs
TAIWAN 16% 473 installs
EUROPE 14% 413 installs
SINGAPORE B% 172 installs
CHINA 2%

70 installs




AVERAGE

SELLING PRICE
[currency adjusted)
in thousands

FREE CASH FLOW
RECONCILIATION FOR 2006

Net cash
provided by
operating activities

$115,801,000

Less acquisition
of property, equipment

and patent licenses $24,604,000

Free cash flow $91,197.000

*See page 22 for reconciliations

-—

dramatically. Manufacturing linearity
has allowed level-loading of the factory
and enabled us to ship on time to
customers without incurring end-of-
quarter overtime expenses.

*We modified product designs to
increase manufacturability, ease
of installation and service, and
commonality of modules — increasing
manufacturing and field service
efficiency, and enabling a higher quality
of service and better uptime for
our customers.

*Qur quality and reliability initiatives
have yielded significant improvement
in system availahility and uptime,
performance, and productivity for our
customers, while reducing their cost
of operation and reducing Cymer's
field costs.

And we have also identified areas
for additional improvement. Efforts
currently underway to further improve
our operating efficiencies and provide
more value to our customers, include:

*Building greater integrated supplier
management to drive improved supply
chain and manufacturing predictability,
maximizing customer flexibility, and
providing the opportunity for greater
total cost reduction. - 7

*Creating new testing processes for
manufacturing to simultaneously
increase quality and reduce cycle time.

*Devising new system installation
procedures in the field to enable
quicker wafer-out capability for
our customers.

* Developing the necessary logistics’

expertise and tools to build service
products that help drive light source
uptime for our customers.

*Maturing our unique global service
and support organization tc enhance
customer satisfaction.

MARKET AND

TECHNOLOGY LEADERSHIP

As the result of our leading-edge
technology and strong customer
partnerships, we remain the market
leader in ArF light sources, including
light sources for ArF immersion
lithography applications. We are also
the leader in krypton fluoride (KrF)
light sources, providing highly reliable,
upgradeable products that improve
performance and lower cost of
operation for our customers.

Throughout our history. we have
worked to anticipate market needs,
developing light sources with the
highest value-add in order to deliver
them in advance of customers’
requirements, We believe our XL
Series of ATF light sources is one of
the key enablers contributing to the
successful development of both
advanced dry and wet (immersion}
ArF lithography.

Last year, we began building our
advanced ArF systems on an improved
universal platform which provides
chipmakers the opportunity to
customize their light source for their
own specific production requirements
by selecting the features and options
they need. It also allows chipmakers
to upgrade their light sources at
a later date, by increasing the
pulse repetition rate and/or power,
and selecting additional performance
enhancing options as they are
made available.

We introduced a series of enhanced
bandwidth performance, metrology
and stabilization options and up-
grades for the installed base of
NanoLith 7000 and XLA 100 light
sources to help our customers
meet their rigorous ArF process
control needs.




We|began shipping our XLA 300,
currently our most advanced dual
chamber ArF light source designed for
higkll volume immersion production, in
November 2005. This light source is
powering the majority of the immersion
too}s currently in production at
chipmakers’ fabs. More recently, we
furtlher demonstrated our leadership
wit[:n the introduction of the XLR 500i
in the latter half of 2006. The XLR
500i targets high volume immersion
producmon applications at the 45nm
producuon node and below, and passed
its flirst technical evaluation with our
customers in San Diego in the fourth
quarter. We anticipate the initial
ship:ment of this product will begin in
the first half of 2007,

Our, KrF business remained strong
throlughout 2006, and we believe it
will Iremaun healthy for years to come,
drn,;en partly by the KrF layers
required by memory applications.
We consnder our KrF light sources the
best proven, long-term solution for our
customers and we are enthusiastic
abolut meetmg their long-term
KrF heeds. !

1
To support our commitment to
contmuously bring increased value to
our customers ' we have developed a
serle;s of long- lllfe modules for most of
the f\rF and KrF light sources in our
growing installed base. These modules,
which are available and currently being
rolleld out, are designed to enable our
customers to increase the return on
their investment in their installed
base of light socurce systems by
providing lower cost of operation
through improved performance
and |substantially longer lifetime.
We expect to see continued adoption
of these long-life modules through-
out jthe installed base in 2007
and beyond. |

|

LONGER-TERM
GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

When we initiated our EUV research
and development (R&D) effortsI in
1997, we were exploring the v1ab111ty
of an approach known as dlschai'ge
produced plasma {DPP). Since that
time, industry demand for power to
provide high throughput has risen
dramatically. Over the last few years,
we became convinced that a la'ser
produced plasma (LPP) approach wo'uld
better enable the elevated power level
requirements, In 2006, we 1ntegrated
the most recent drive laser, target
generator, and control technologies
into a single test bed and genera;ted
“first light” with the system. At a
presentation of these results at the
EUV conference in Barcelona|in
November 2006, and more recently at
SPIE in March 2007, we believe Cyrner
emerged as the clear leader in LEPP
technology. We are making additional
advancements regularly and we remaln
confident that our LPP approach u|wll
be fully scalable to deliver 100 watts
{W) of output power on schedulejto
meet the industry’s roadmap.

We also continue to make progress at
TCZ, our joint venture with CarI
Zeiss SMT AG that is developmg a
tool for the production of flat panel
displays using LTPS processes.
Integration of the first systemlis
nearing completion and integration of
the second system is schedullecl
to begin while we are refmmg
the tool’s performance and de51gn
TCZ has conducted a significant
amount of précess R&D, and
performed extensive custom‘er
demonstrations on the firlst
generation demonstration tool.
Demonstrations to customers of the
first deliverable tool are anticipated later
in 2007.

STRONG BALANCE SHEET

AND CASH GENERATION

We exited 2006 with a record $518.4
million in cash and investments.
Though inventories and accounts
receivable were higher at year-end
2006 than in the prior year, the
increases were in line with our higher
level of sales activity. The debt cn
the balance sheet has remained
fairly constant, and most of it is
represented by the $140.7 million in
convertible subordinated notes that
remain outstanding.

We generated a record $115.8 million
in cash from operations in 2006, which
translated into free cash flow of $91.2
million for the year. (Free cash flow
is a non-GAAP financial measure
calculated as net cash provided by
operating activities less the acquisition
of property, equipment and patent
licenses.} In the third quarter of 20086,
we used $100.7 million to execute a
stock buy back and repurchased
approximately 2.6 million shares. We
anticipate generating a significant
amount of cash from operations
throughout 2007, and do not foresee
our capital expenditures rising
significantly from the 2006 level
Given our strong cash position and
expectations for cash generation,
we will continue to investigate
new business opportunities, stock
buy back opportunities, and other
value generating opportunities for
égur shareholders.

MARKET TRENDS PLAY
TO OUR STRENGTHS

ArF immersion became a production
reality for leading NAND Flash
manufacturers near the end of last
year. We anticipate that the demand
for immersion tools should grow in
2007 as NAND Flash manufacturers
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continue to drive the shrink of critical
dimensions (CDs) and expand the
number of layers they will need to
pattern with ArF immersion tools.
Demand in the DRAM segment of the
market is streng. With their utilization
rates at current levels, foundries are
primarily making technology buys, but
they have indicated that some capacity-
driven equipment orders may begin
later this year., Demand from logic
manufacturers remains healthy and
should be stable over the near- and
medium-term, Overall fab utilization
at 90nm and smaller geometries
continues to be strong, Additionally,
the 65nm production ramp is well
underway, and significant R&D efforts
are currently underway at the 45nm
node, where leading edge chipmakers
are expected to begin production by
the end of 2007.

Given current market trends, we
believe that semiconductor unit growth
in 2007 will be in the high single-digit
to low double-digit range. We expect
that chipmakers’ capital spending in
2007 will be down slightly from 20086
as they continue to work down chip
inventories and attempt to match
capacity expansion to market demand.
Though we anticipate that demand for
DUV lithography tools in 2007 will
be relatively flat to slightly down in
units compared with 2006, we
anticipate that growth in demand for
ArF tools, and particularly for ArF
immersion, will drive revenue growth
in lithography.

We are very pleased with our business
results in 2006, and expect to achieve
additional improvements in customer
satisfaction, product performance and
operating efficiencies in 2007 as we
continue our progress toward best in
class performance. In 2006, we believe
we successfully positioned Cymer for

continued growth and additional
shareholder value creation. We are
focused on our most important goals:
improving customer satisfaction
and augmenting our bottom
line performance.

In closing, we want to thank our
customers, whose loyalty and support
made this record year possible. We
also sincerely thank our employees
whose dedication, hard work, and
innovation enabled our achievements
and our growth,

=

Robert P. Akins,
Chairman and CEQ

J

b —

Edward J. Brown Jr.,
President and CQOQ

Nancy J. Baker,
Senior Vice President and CFO
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XLR 500i

FING TECHNOLOGY ENABLING
‘145nm IMMERSION LITHOGRAPHY

XLR 500i is the next generatlon photo-
l]thography light source. Built on the
production proven XL Series platform, the
)E{LR 500i is specifically designed to meet the
challenges of 45nm processing. The XLR
5001 includes an evolutionary optical design
called Ring Technology. Ring Technology -
an abbreviation for "Recirculating Ring” —

ipcorporates a dual chamber architecture
designed to improve the dose stability
delivered on the wafer and to deliver
this dose in a more cost-effective way.
Ulnlike previous light source architectures,
Ring Technology addresses fundamental
dose control performance and reduces cost

of ownership.

|
EUV

1
LITHOGRAPHY DEVELOPMENT
For over a decade, Cymer has been committed
to the commercialization of EUV source
technology for high-volume manufacturing.
To that end, the company has invested
héavily in the R&D of EUV source
te::hnologies. LPP source development is on
track to deliver high-volume manufacturing
solutlons for EUV lithography through power
scalmg and conversion efficiency allowing
EL{V to be a production-worthy method for
patterning integrated circuits in the post-
19"3nm immersion era. Cymer has already
deimonstrated greater than 25 watts of output
power at intermediate focus (IF} and is
expected to achieve 100W at IF by the end
of 2007.

A view of a portion of the internal components in the

EUV system in Cymer’s EUV lab.




COMMITMENT TO |
CUSTOMERS

"For many years Cymer has met and exceeded
our expectations with their best-in-class, cutting-
edge exctmer light source technology,” said

Mr. Kazuo Ushida, president, Nikan Corporation.
"We recognize our long-standing partnership
with Cymer, and look forward to continuing our
collaboration to support next-generation
technology integration in the years to come.”

QOur Customers;

A CHAMPION FOR IMPROVING
OUR CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS

A company built on technology
leadership, unique global service and
remarkable employee talent is nothing
without its customers. Although we
have been at the forefront of the
lithography industry developing
innovative technologies that enable
the volume production of next
generation chips, our overarching
mission has been and will continue to
be our commitment to better serve our
customers to efficiently and effectively
enable their success.

At Cymer, when we think of supply
chain we think of partnerships. As
partners, our goal is greater than
delivering a product to our customers
— it is to anticipate our customers’
needs and meet those needs ahead of
schedule. In doing so, we are intensely
focused on how we can improve
our customers’ successes. Cymer’s
commitment to customers drives
everything that we do: it is multi-
faceted, rooted in high quality leading
edge technology, top-notch human
resources talent, a drive toward world
class service and support, and, most
importantly, our capacity to enable
our customers’ success. We are firmly
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commltted to continuing to enhance
Lhe return our customers realize on
thenr investment in their installed base
of Cymer hght sources.

TECHNDLOGY SOLUTIONS

the are focused on our customers’
success and on providing solutions for
their lithegraphy challenges. For twe
decades we have worked to stay ahead
oflthe curve by building light source
solutions in anticipation of market
ne:eds. We announced our flagship
duel-chamber Master Oscillator Power
Amplifier (MOPA) design in 2002 and
haye worked ! over the last five years,
to improve upon that platform inorder
to lncrease uptime and reduce CoO.
Wlth every new product generanon
bunlt using MOPA design, we have
improved our customers’ ability to
speed their products to market using
the same architecture they have come
to know and depend on.

In 2006, Cymer anncunced a major
improvement' on the architecture in
the MOPA design with the introduction
of the XLR 500i — the world's first ArF
lasler light source for 45nm pro-
ductlon immersion photolithography.
Scheduled for initial shipment in the
f:rst half of 2007, this technically
ad\;'anced system better serves our
cusltomers needs by enabling Moore's
IaV\Ir with the creation of smaller,
more powerful semiconductors. The
enhanced XLIR architecture enables
1mproved CD control by replacing the
conventnonal!power amplifier stage
w1th a recirculating ring, delivering a
150% lmprovemem in pulse energy
stab1llty makmg yield and productivity
mcreases possible. In addition, the
improved dose performance reduces
the number of laser pulses consumed
dux;lng the wafer exposure process,
-the;reby contributing to a 20 percent
reduction in the ICoO on a per wafer basis.

Klaus Rinnen, managing vice
president at Gartner, said,
"Lithographers have been
continually challenged to reduce
the total operating costs of
ArF tools. Next generatxon
lithography tools that combme
improved CD control and longer
life modules to enable 1mprqved
CoO will help make sub-4§nm
semiconductor manufacturing
a reality.”

We have made concerted efforts to
maximize our customers’ return on
their installed base mvestmen't by
developing long life modules for both
ArF and KrF systems. Long|life
modules translate into reduced cost of
operation {CoO) on a per pulse l?asis
for chipmakers. They extend the Fime
between service intervals and allow
for grouped module replaceme'nts,
reducing system doewntime.

As a primary supplier of hoth ArFland
KrF excimer laser light sources, as well
as leading the EUV source development
race, Cymer remains committed to
developing tomorrow’s technology
today to meet our customers’ current
and future needs. We accomplishithis
by keeping a close eye on the industry
-~ anticipating changes in [our
custemers’ environment in order to
help drive the industry forward.
Our commitment to our customers also
drives our substantial investment in
R&D. We invest in R&D to enhance
the performance and reduce the Icost
of operation of the systems in [our
installed base. Over the last five years
Cymer's dedication to R&D has b{een
significant with an average annual
investment of $65.7 million. This|on-
going financial commitment allows us
to continue developing the latest
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cutting-edge, highest value-add light

sources on the market — driving
our customers’ business forward,
optimizing their processes and their
profit opportunity.

OPTIMIZING OUR

CUSTOMERS' SYSTEMS

At the core of our business, focused
on serving our customers, are Cymer’s
employees. Researching, developing,
manufacturing and contributing to
the advancement of our customers’
successes, our team is strategically
positioned around the world to aid in
anticipating and meeting every
customer's need. An example of the
talent available on our team is our
Lithography Applications Group. This
group, comprised of some of the
industry’s leading engineers and
lithography experts, ensures our
customers’ systems and processes are
fully optimized. These experts partner
with customers in the fab to make
certain systems are running as
efficiently and effectively as possible,
maximizing yield and throughput. They
collaborate with our customers to help
solve any lithography problems they

.

5 may be experiencing, assist in

PROCESS LAYER TRENDS conducting and evaluating the results
of advanced experiments intended
to improve process performance,
and fine tune laser performance to
50 meet the individual chipmaker’s
specific production requirements.

The number of layers using DUV lithography is increasing for all product segments.
The growth of Arf immersion layers is strangest for fogic processes.

40 The Lithography Applications Group
embodies Cymer’'s commitment to
a0 customers by creating real customer
value through partnership with
20 our customers.
10 WORLD CLASS
SERVICE AND SUPPORT

Cymer’s partnership extends to our
customers’ facilities around the world

FLASH DRAM - LOGIC in North America, Europe and Asia,
iine (365nm) KrF {248nm) ArF [1893nm] Arf Immersion (193nm) where we have knowledgeable, top-

B5nm 45nm 32nm 65nm 45nm 32nm B65nm 45rm 32nm




notoh field seryice and support teams
reacliy to assist customers anywhere,
anyltime — 24x7. Our commitment to
customer satisfaction is further
augmented by our technical training
facilities located in four regions to help
eduE:ate our customers in order to
speed their time-to-production. In
addition, to incCrease system uptime,
Cymer has strategically situated spare
parts and stocking locations throughout
the v:vorld. The spare parts and stocking
locations, coupled with our ongoing
focus on improving cycle times and
inventory, continuously optimize stipply
chain responsiveness, module build,
systé'm build, and system test, Qther
mmatwes we have implemented aid
in controllmg factory material flows
and enhance oulr operational efﬁcnency
and Iproducti\{ity to better serve
Our customers.

Our |ability to deliver advanced
technology on- time to customers
around the world is made possible
in parl; by our global state-of-
the- a:rt ma_nufacturlng facilities in
San ll)iego and Ii{orea. These Cymer-
owned facilities implement efficient
rnam{facturing "practices and house
top-of-the-line equipment, stream-
lining our overall operations from
prodl.:lction to ;freight and track-
ing. With a unique service and
support infrastructure, the partnership
Cymelr offers is'a standout value in

the industry. |

TAKING RISK

OUT OF OUR

CUSTOMERS' EQUATION

SmartI businesses tirelessly strive to
minimize the frequency and probability
of riskI on as many fronts as possible.
By carefully evaluating all options,
busmesses choose a partner they know
they c:?n depend on to help speed their
time-to-market, 1mprove their system

12

uptime, and maximize their l‘etll.ll"l'l
on investment. In the lithography
business, that partner is Cymer.

For the last 20 years we have been
committed to researching, developing
and producing the industry’s most
advanced light sources, helping tl?ur
customers to produce cutting-edge
technology that aids in the fabrlcauon
of faster, more economical seml-
conductors with greater funct.lonahty.
Our technology leadership is evidenced
by an installed base of more than 3, 000
lasers around the world as well as a
portfolio of nearly 650 technology
patents. Given the experience we have
gained with this large and growing
installed base, we can quickly and
efficiently deploy systems into hig';h
volume production environments :so
they are up and running quickly,
meeting chipmakers’ production
requirements and speeding their tin"xe
to profits.

The primary driver for our innovation
is always our customers and OLIlI‘
ongoing commitment to their succes‘s
We have worked hard to keep our
customers ahead of the curve by not
only developing next generation ligl'lt
sources, but by providing upgrade‘s
and options to extend the lifetimes of
the KrF and ArF systems installed m
their fabs. In 2006 we also mtroduced
enhanced bandwidth performance,
metrology and stabilization upgradqs
for the XLA 100 and NanoLith 7000
(ArF light sources) to improve
productivity and increase yield.

Today, we provide velume productlon
solutions for our customers’ current
needs, however, we remain committed
to generating solutions to assist then!n
in the future. Our roadmap helps to
enable the progression of Moore's Law
by supporting scanner development

and chipmaker adoption plans for the
32nm node. For high resolution, high
volume manufacturing beyond ArF
immersion, EUV continues to be the
most promising option, where we are
emerging as the technology leader in
13nm light source technolagy.

A WELL LIT PATH

The lithography and semiconductor
industries are quickly evolving. Our
commitment to our customers will
continue to drive everything that we
do - including the development of
new manufacturing techniques and
technologies that will improve
their system availability, uptime,
performance, and productivity while
reducing cost of operation. We feel
confident that customers will continue
to partner with Cymer — knowing that
we are the low-risk, high value solution
provider committed to their business
success now and for years to come.

13

anywhere, anytime
Cymer is ready to assist
customers with top-notch,
knowledgeable, field service
and support. teams. Our
commitment to customer
satisfaction is further
augmented by our technical
training facilities located in four
regions to help educate our
customers in order to speed

their time-to-production.
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I The Community:

COMMITMENT TO |
COMMUNITY
Throughout 2006, Cymer
contributed more than $71 million
to support various charities and
initiatives throughout San Diego County

SHARING OUR SUCCESS:

In 2006, Cymer initiated a formal
program to focus on giving back to the
community for the first time in its 20
year history. The Community Relations
program created formal funding
philosophies and grant guidelines in
order to extend Cymer's core values
into the communities where our
employees live and work. The goal
for 2006: to engage and enrich
the lives and minds of our San
Diego Community. To that end. we
successfully supported several non-profit
organizations throughout San Diego
County that share the core values of
our company.

Cymer's corporate philanthropy was
designed to support formal grant funding
and employee volunteerism in the
following areas:

* Civic

e Culture

* Education

* Environment
* Health
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Cyrlner's Community Relations program,
including corporate giving and
employee volunteerism, was crafted
with a fundamental respect for
norlm-profit community organizations,
coqperative lclaadership development
anq philanthropic creativity. Through
this program, Cymer was able
to demonstrate our dedication to
being a respo'nsible corporate citizen
and good neighbor by providing
monetary donations and employee
vollumeer opportunities throughout
our communities.
|

Our primary funding focus for 2008
was defined within the scope of the
San Diego Community where Cymer’s
healdquarters are located. As evidence

of tllle program's success in 2006, Cymer

contributed over $1 million to support
varlious charities and initiatives
throughout San Diego County. By
shr:{ring our good fortune with
many people;providing scholarships,
suplporting grammar school programs,
pariicipating in fund raisers to fight
cancer, sponsoring teams in several
youth sperts and hosting events
to protect the envifonment—we
sigriiﬁcaptly raised positive awareness
of Cymer. '
I

We|look forward to continuing our
Com‘mitment to our employees and the
locall communities in which they reside
by building upon the success of our
don{lestic corporate philanthropy efforts
in 2006 and expanding these efforts
into our international regions in
2007. By sharing our goed fortune with
the| communities in which our
employees live and work, we will
realize an increased sense of pride in
our community, our culture and our
corporate values.

{
WE ARE COMMITED TO
OUR GLDB:&L COMMUNITY

to advance 1he thewd sy

o supporter of
ATA sl Azl Tenms Champrohip
[

Cymer i Prowd 10 Sponse tha
13:m Annual Moore's UCSD Cancer Canier
Luau A Longtoard kmntahona:,

CYMER

WA CymEr Com

2006 UCSD Luau and Longboard
Invitational aka “Surf for the Cure”

Title Sponsorship

ATA Tennis Championship ‘

. , :
__..._=.€"7i [ \4.. Ry e ae”

National MS Bay to Bike Tour f:"om LA to San Diego Team Sponsorship

|
CYMER AND GOOD HEALTH

2006 Making Strides Ag{ainst Breast Cancer Walk: Cymer, a
flagship sponsor of the 2006 event raised over $50,000 for
the cause and was the 2N¢ largest fund raiser in San Diego.




$ Cymer donated time and money to serve the community

<
’a)
>

SAN. DIEGO
HISTORICAL
SOCIETY

WHERE OUR HISTORY COMES ALIVE

as

Filial Piety International Museum of Contemporary San Diego Historical Society Corporate Level Sponsorship
Conference Sponsor Art San Diego Sponsorship

CYMER’'S ROLE IN THE CULTURAL COMMUNITY

Cymer sponsored the second Filial Piety International Conference. Leaders from 12 countries and 10
major metropolitan U.S. cities convened in San Diego to discuss the global issues, trends and concerns
of the aging population.

<=UCSD
Jacobs

The

Preuss
School
UCSD

The Preuss School Teacher Cymer donated $175,000 to the UCSD Jacobs School of Engineering Scholars Program
Development Series

CYMER'S EDUCATIONAL IIVIPAE]T

Cymer's official contribution helped fund the Teacher Development Series at the Preuss School-a middle
and high school dedicated to providing an intensive college prep education for motivated low-income
students who may become the first in their families to graduate from college.




San Di

EarthWorks
Inaugural Cymer e-Cycle, a free electronics recycling Sponsored annual Presenting sponsor at the San Diego
event for San Diegans EarthFair in Balboa Park Zoo's Celebration for the Critters

CYIVIER TAKING GOOD CARE OF OUR ENVIRONMENT

Cymer s Inaugural e-LCycle Event: Cymer successfully helped San Dlegans properly dispose of over 330,000
pounds of e-waste. Cymer was the presenting sponsor at The Zoological Society of San Diego’s Celebration
for the Critters. l

Sanactona
L)

CPR Satunday

2007

haap tha mat...

|
Colle!cted over 8,000 pounds of food Cymer supported America's Donated over $5 000 to
for needy San Diegans “Most Prepared Community" homeless San Diegans

CYIIVIER S CIVIC CONTRIBUTIONS

Cymer employees collected and contributed over 8,000 pounds of food for needy San Diegans over the
Hohdays In addition, Cymer donated over $5000 to the San Diego Youth and Community Services to help
at-rlsk youths, strengthen families and build stronger communities throughout San Diego.

| |

Teamed with San Diego Charger,
Quentin Jammer, to collect toys
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Our Commitment:

T S

COMMITMENT TO |
SHAREHOLDERS

Cymer is dedicated to improving
operating efficiencies and financial
performance to increase shareholder value.

-

i

Building shareholder value is an integral
part of Cymer’s culture that permeates
every business decision we make. Qur
commitment to increasing shareholder
value requires that we both embrace
our fiduciary responsibilities to
our shareholders and successfully
implement a business strategy that
strengthens our company through
continueed market ieadership and
operational excellence.

In a year characterized by solid
execution, we achieved record growth,
prefitability and cash generation in
2006 and made significant progress in
enhancing shareholder value. As we
continue to drive our business sirategy
and growth initiatives, we believe we
can deliver increased shareholder value
in the future.

STRATEGIES FOR
CONTINUED FINANCIAL
AND OPERATING SUCCESS

Our entire team is extremely proud of
Cymer’'s many accomplishments in
2006 -~ which led to record highs in
nearly every financial metric including
total revenue, non-system revenue,
average selling price, operating income,




net income, earnings per share and
cash from operamons and yielded a
strong balancé sheet with record cash
and investments totaling more than
half a billion dollars. As a result of
this operating performance, we were
able to increase our investment in
developmg technologies to meet our
customers next generation needs and
fund our longer-term growth initiatives.

Our contmut’?d focus on superior
exelcutlon across all areas of our
busmess pamcu]arly with respect to
our manufacturing process, has helped
us significantly enhance product
reliability and improve operating
efficiencies b'y reducing total costs
and'cycle times, These positive changes
have helped drive substantial gross
margm 1mprovements over the
last eight quarters, a significant
achievement for Cymer.
|

Mal}agement is deeply committed to
confinually implementing additional
strategies to further improve operating
and| financial, performance, while
capitalizing on expected long-term
grm{vth in ouriindustry. Our ability
to enhance shareholder value on
an |ongoing basis depends on
this commitment. -

PROMISING GROWTH PROSPECTS

In r—.'lddmon to ensuring that our
busmess runs at optimum efficiency,
we must leverage our technological
leadershlp to take advantage of the
promlsmg growth prospects within
our 1ndustry

Our total available market is expected
to grow substantially between 2006
and|2010 driven by ongoing DUV
penetrauon in lithography, requiring
an mcreasmg number of DUV light
sources (particularly ArF dry and
immersion lig?t sources which are

|

Cash Generated From Operations & Capital Spending
(in thousands)
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2006
RECORD
HIGHS

Total Revenue
Non-System Revenue
Average Selling Price
Operating Income

Net Income

Earnings Per Share
Cash From Operations
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ROADMAP

The forefront of the
lithography market.

In 2007, we expect

to ship the world’s

first ArF laser light
source for 45nm
production immersion
lithography - our newest
product, the XLR 500

expected to comprise the fastest
growing segment of the lithography
market in 2007} and higher utilization
of our growing installed base of
light sources.

The current installed base of light
sources is working harder than ever
to enable optimum productivity for
our chipmaker customers. From the
beginning of 2006 through year end,
worldwide pulse usage grew 8 percent.
Annual pulse usage has doubled since
2000. Our growing installed base and
higher than expected pulse utilization
is a positive sign for Cymer’s growth
in non-systems revenue. While non-
systems revenue tends to carry lower
gross margins than our core product
line, it provides a stable, recurring
revenue stream and makes a positive
contribution to overall profitability.

Through our ArF technology leader-
ship, we have built a substantial
installed base of ArF light sources.
During 2008, almost half of all light
sourceg we shipped were from our
leading edge XLA, ArF product suite.
In the first half of 2007, we expect to
ship the world’s first ArF laser light
source for 45nm production immersion
lithography — our newest product, the
XLR 500i. This milestone illustrates
our ongoing dedication to advance
chip production and our ability to
provide customers with light sources
that reduce cost of operation, improve
light source performance and increase
the yield of chips from the wafer. Our
product recadmap for 2007 ensures
that we remain on the forefront of the
lithography market.

SUCCESSFULLY MEETING
THE CHALLENGES OF A
CHANGING MARKETPLACE

In addition to our current line of core
Y -
products, we have been planning for

future long-term growth in response
to the evolving marketplace. With the
industry focusing on new lithographic
technologies for increasingly smaller
nodes, Cymer continues to develop an
EUV light source (discussed in more
detail on page 9) that we believe
will be commercialized and fully
scalable, on schedule, to meet the
industry’s roadmap.

At the same time, we are making
progress at our TCZ joint venture,
which is developing technology
and tools for the production of flat
panel displays. a large and growing
market. During 2006, TCZ conducted
technology demonstrations that were
received positively by a large number
of potential customers. The joint
venture continues to integrate its first
tool while refining the tool’s design
and capabilities.

ENHANCING
SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Through a combination of improved
financial performance and enhanced
operational efficiency, we had a record
year in 2006. By acting in concert with
our customers and focusing on
providing them with leading-edge,
cost-effective products to enable
their success and enhance mutual
profitability, we are confident we
can continue to deliver value to
our shareholders.

Solid and effective execution of our
business strategy is the foundation on
which we will continue to build Cymer.
Led by a strong operating team capable
of taking our company to the next level
of growth, we look forward to continued
improvements and finding new ways
to deliver increasing returns to our
valued shareholders.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Amang Cymer, Inc., The NASDAG Composite index And a Peer Group

Performance Measurement Comparison (1)
The following graph shows the total stockholder return of an investment of $100 in cash on December 31, 2001 for
our {i) common stock, {ii) the Nasdaq Stock Market and (iii) the Mbrgan Stanley High Technology Index. The graph
assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2001 in our common stock at the closing price of $26.73 and in each L

index, and that all dividends were reinvested. No dividends have been declared nor paid on our common stock.’ [
200 L
164.4
1628 L
D 1370
O .
L -
L
A
R —
S -
o i b -
1243172001 128312002 12/31/2003 123172004 123142005 12/31/2006
Legend -
SE‘JDI Total Retumns Index for: 112001 112002 1272003 122004 12,2005 122006
B e, Inc ) 100.00 12065 17280 11051 1nss 16442 i
_____ A  NASDAQ Comporiie 100,00 L7 107.18 11707 12050 13702
"""" ¢ Peer Group 100.00 7490 10321 118.05 13290 162.77 L
Notes * $ 100 inveried om 12/31/01 insiock orindex-inchiding stmend of dividend. | [
Fircal year ending December 31.
Peer Group i comprived of the Mo npan Sianley Hizh Technology Fudex
{1) This section is not “soliciting material,” and is not deemed “filed” with the SEC and is not to be incorperated by
reference in any filing of Cymer, Inc. under the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act whether made before or after the date hereof
and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing. ' :
Graph produced hy Research Data Group, Inc..

*FREE CASH FLOW RECONCILIATION

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Net cash provided by
operating activities $25,803,000 -$3,595,000 - $34,170,000 $114,002,000 $115,801,000
Less acquisition
of property, equipment St
and patent licenses $45,217,000 $62,783,000 $18,485,000 $18,750,000 $24,604,000
Free cash flow -$19.414,000 -$66,378,000 $14,685,000 $95,252,.000 $91,197,000
L i
1 T 1 ¥ 1 f 1l 1 i
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Forward-Looking Statements

- Statements in this Annua! Report on Form 10-K that are not strictly historical in nature are
forward-looking statements. These statements include, but are not limited to, references to the outlook
for the semiconductor industry and us; expected domestic and international product sales and
development; our research and development activities and expendltures adequacy of our capital
resources -and investments; effects of business cycles in the semiconductor business; our competitive
position; and our relationships with customers and third-party manufacturers of our products, and may
contain words, such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “plans,”: “intends” and words of similar
meaning. These statements are predictions based on current inférmation and our expectations and
involve a number of risks and uncertainties. The underlying information and our expectations are likely
to change over time. Actual events or results may differ materially from those projected in the forward-
looking statements due to various factors, including, but not limited to, those contained under the
caption “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere in this Annual Report on'Form 10-K. Forward-looking statements
herein speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Unless required by law, we
undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect new information or
future events or developments. Thus, you should not assume that our silence over time means that
actual events are bearing out as expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements.

'-...r' ,‘_' ‘Ir
PART | ‘

. ltem 1. Business

Overview . . . . : } .
. [ 13

We are the world’s leading supplier of excimer light sources the essential light source for deep
ultraviolet ("DUV") photolithography systems. DUV photolithography is a key enabling technology that
has allowed ‘the semiconductor. industry to meet the exacting specifications and manufacturing
requirements for volume production of today's most advanced semiconductor chips. Cur light source
systems. are incorporated into step-and-repeat (“steppers”} and step-and-scan (*scanners?)
photolithography systems for use in the manufacture of semiconductors with critical feature sizes below
250, nanometers (‘nm”). One nm equals one billionth. of a meter. Our excimer light source systems
constitute a substantial majority of all excimer light sources incorporated in DUV photolithography tools.
Our products: consist of photolithography light source systems, replacement parts and service. We
maintain a worldwide service organization that supports our installed base of .light. sources. : As of
December 31, 2006, -this installed,base totaled 3,042 light sources. ;Our customers include all three
manufacturers of DUV photolithography systems: ASML; Canon and.Nikon. Photolithography-systems
incorporating our excimer light sources have been purchased by all of the world’s largest semiconductor
manufacturers including: AMD, Chartered, Elpida, Fujitsu, Hynix, IBM, Infineon/Qimonda, Intel,
Matsushita, Micron, Nanya/lnotera, NEC, Powerchip, Promos, Renesas Technology, Samsung, SMIC,
Sony, ST Microelectronics, Texas Instruments Toshiba, TSMC and UMC.- . )
|
. In July 2005, we entered into an agreement wrth Carl Zerss SMT AG, a German corporatlon
and Carl Zeiss Laser Optics Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, a German limited liability company (which
we refer to together with their affiliated entities as “Zeiss”") to establish a joint venture, which we refer to
as TCZ (for Team Cymer Zeiss).. In September 2006, we amended’ and restated this joint venture
agreement with Zeiss to move the location of the TCZ joint venture from Switzerland to Singapore and,
in connection with the move, formed TCZ Pte Ltd.,, a company incorporated in Singapore. TCZ is
currently developing, and will integrate, market and sell, and support production tools for the flat panel
display manufacturing industry. The joint venture is targeting the growing market for :low-temperature
poly-silicon (“LTPS") processing used in the manufacture of liquid crystal displays that are brighter, have
higher resolution, and consume less power than displays using today’s predominant amorphous silicon
films. We currently expect that TCZ will ship its first production tool, the TCZ 900X in late 2007 or early
2008. PR P . .




Other Information

We are a Nevada corporatlon mcorporated on July 12, 1996. We were orlgmally incorporated in
California in 1986 and relncorporated in‘Nevada in 1996.

- Qur websne address. is http://www.cymer.com. Our filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC"} including our Annual Report on Form 10-K, gquarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports are available free of charge through our
website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such reports or furmsh them to the
SEC.

You may read and copy materials that we file with the SEC at the' SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington -DC 20549. Information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room is available by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet
site that contains reports, proxy statements and other mformatlon wa file. The address of the SEC
websute is hitp:/fwww.sec.gov. .

Products and Services

Our products primarily consist of photolithography light source systems, replacement parts, and
sefrvice. A :

Photolithography Light Sources

Our excimer light sources for photolithography produce pulsed light of extremely short
wavelengths within the DUV spectrum. The bandwidth of the light is further narrowed through a number
of optical techniques. The DUV wavelengths are measured in nanometers and the light sources are
referred to according to either the wavelength or the gases that are mixed to produce the light. ‘Krypton
Fluoride (“KrF") gases produce light at a 248 nm wavelength, and Argon Fluoride (“ArF") gases produce
light at a 193 nm wavelength. The extremely short wavelengths and highly narrowed handwidths of light
produced by these light sources enable the very fine feature resolution required for patterning or printing
the circuitry on silicon wafers. The pulse energy and repetition rate of the light source permit high
throughput in wafer processing. We have designed our light sources to be reliable, easy to install and
service and compatible with existing semiconductor manufacturing processes. Our light sources -are
used to pattern or print the integrated circuits, which are also called semiconductors or “chips,” that
~ power many of today’s advanced consumer and business electronics. In 2006, we sold 280 light source
systems at an average selling price of $1.0 million. Revenues generated from sales of light sources
were ‘approximately $244.8 million, $2074 million and $2824 million for 2004 -2005 -and 2006
respectively.

Our product development strategy has been to develop new products in rapid succession to
meet continually evolving needs in the marketplace, -and to obsolete our own products as quickly as
possible, thus rendering our competitors products obsolete. This strategy strengthens our market
leadership position since the ongoing reduction of critical dimension {*CD") on the wafer dnves dernand
for newer, more advanced higher value-added light sources.

Over the years, we have developed and sold a wude ~variety of photolithography light source
products. These products can be divided into KrF and ArF product categories and include a number of
current products as well as legacy products that we continue to service in our installed base.

Current Products
Qur current products include our newest, most advanced, highest value-added ArF and KrF.

light sources, as well as some mature products that are still experiencing strong chipmaker demand as
DUV lithography becomes the prevaiting I|ght source technology in wafer fabrlcatlon : :




193 nm ArF Light Sources [

Chipmakers continue to reduce the feature sizes and shrink the CD on the wafer, which means that the
line widths of the circuitry on the wafer become progressively smaller. At this time, chipmakers generally
are continuing to expand their manufacturing capacity at 90 nm, a number of chipmakers have begun
expanding production capacity at 65 nm, and several chipmakers are in active development of
production capabilities at 45 nm. In these circumstances, ch:pmakers need more leading edge tools,
which means they need more . of the shorter wavelength, ArF photolithography tools in_ their
manufacturing facilities to pattern the critical layers on the wafer.. Growing use of 193 nm ArF light
" sources at the leading edge, combined with continuing use of 248 nm KrF light sources for the less
critical layers, allows chipmakers to meet the rigorous performance and volume demands of high
volume manufacturing. Our light sources are designed to enable chipmakers to achieve their
production goals. . '

7 4

XLA Series — The XLA Series.of ArF Iight sources is based on our dual-dlscharge chamber Master
Oscillator Power Amplifier (“MOPA”) light source architecture. The master oscillator creates a narrow
bandwidth beam of light at low power-which is referred to as “ultra-narrowed" or “highly line-narrowed”.
The beam then is directed into the power amplifier, where the power is increased significantly while
maintaining the namow bandwidth. This combination of a narrower bandwidth and higher power
enables chipmakers to continue reducing critical circuitry dlmensrons and increasing processing speeds,
capacity and functionality of chips, while giving chipmakers the performance and.cost advantages they
need. Each product in the XLA Series is based on the XL common platform which includes cabling and
wiring harnesses, electrical interfaces, power supplies, gas delivery systems, cooling systems, and
other various components,-all in a common enclosure. Use of a common platform enables us to
' develop each new product in the series rapidly and cost-effectively. Because our- customers .are
accustomed to working with the XLA Series, our direct customers can efficiently integrate a new XLA
light source product into their advanced scanners and bring them to market quickly, while our chipmaker
customers can quickly begin using these light sources in their emstmg manufacturlng processes and
achieve rapid time to yield. . . . :

+
t

Products Based on the | XL Common Platform:

+ XLR 500i — The XLR 500i is our fifth generation ArF.light Source based on our MOPA laser
architecture, and is built on the production proven universal platform developed for the XLA 300.
Operating at a 6 kHz repetition rate and currently offering up to 60 W of output power, the XLR
500i includes a design which we call our recirculating nng'technology This ring technology

- comprises a new dual chamber architecture designed to deliver a step-function improvement in
energy stability which we expect will.lead to both yield and productlwty enhancements. for the
chipmaker. Addltlonarly. our ring technology is expected to offer a greater than 20% reduction in
the average chipmaker's cost of operation. Initial shipments of the, XLR 500i for installation at
chipmakers are expected in 2007. . . \

e XLA 300 - The XLA 300 is our fourth generation leading edge ArF light source based on the
MOPA design. It operates at a 6 kHz repetition rate and offers up to 60 W of -output power, and
is designed for high volume production of semiconductor devuces at 45 nm production node using
immersion lithography techniques. Based on. the productlon proven XL platform, the initial
shipment of the XLA 300 in-the fourth quarter of 2005 marked the fastest product devetopment
cycle in our history. I T Cd

t e XLA 200 - The XLA 200 is our third generation ArF light source based on the MOPA design and
XL ‘platform and offers higher power and a narrower bandwidth than its predecessor. Operating
at a 4 kHz repetition rate, it also offers up to 60 W of output power and an ultra line-narrowed

. bandwidth to enable production of semiconductor devices at the 65 nm production node in non-

immersion applications, and pilot production at the 45 nm node using immersion lithography

techniques. The initial shipment of our XLA 200 occurred in tt\e first quarter of 2005.

i
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e XLA 105 - Now used in volume production in many fabs, the XLA 105 is our second generation
XLA Series product, offering a 4 kHz repetition rate and 40 W of output power. Designed for use
at the 65 nm production node, the XLA 105 initially shipped in the first quarter of 2004, and
continues to experience strong demand from chipmakers,

» XLA 100 — The XLA 100 was our first XLA Series product, and offers a 4 kHz repetition rate and
40 W of output power. Designed for high volume production at the 90 nm production node and
below, the XLA 100 began shipping in the first quarter of 2003. Though it still ships in small
numbers, the XLA 100 has been superseded for the most part by our later models in the XLA .
Senes

NanoLith 7000 — The NanoLith 7000 is a single-chamber ArF light source-'offering a 4 kHz repetition
rate and 20 W of output power. Designed to enable initial ArF process development and production at
the 100 nm production node and below, the NanoLith 7000 is the ArF twin of the ELS-7000 KrF light
source (see 7000 Series below). The NanoLith 7000 sold well from its introduction in mid-2001 through
2002, and was replaced by the more advanced XLA 100 when that product was introduced in 2003. As
of the end of 2006, we were shipping this product only sporadically, but continuing to. provide
consumable modules, spare parts and service for the mstalled base of NanoLith 7000s in
semiconductor fabs throughout the world. .-

248 nm KrF Light Sources e

We have been providing KrF light sources for volume chip production since 1996 when chipmakers
reached the 250 nm production node. Over the years, we have devéloped and sold a variety of
increasingly powerful and productive KrF products. These light sources have enabled mcreasmg wafer
throughput and contlnually shrlnklng CD. :

7000 Senes The 7000 Serles of products offers a comp!ete product line, encompassmg both ArF and
KrF light sources on a common platform, enabling chipmakers to easily “mix and match” these two
different light source wavelengths within the manufacturing environment. With a 4 kHz repetition rate
and high output power, the 7000 Series offers chipmakers high wafer throughput and lower cost of
cperation by reason of advanced design and materials, thus dellvenng improved tool avallablllty for
increased manufacturlng effi caency and ﬂeX|b|I|ty

Our 7000 Series products: o ;;’

] " T ;
e ELS-7010 - The ELS ?010 is our most advanced KrF Ilght source. Introduced in the third quarter
~of 2004 with 40 W of ‘output power to enable chlpmakers to achieve high volume production at
the 100 nm production node and below, the ELS-7010 is now our best-selling KrF light source.
This light source also offers ultra-narrowed bandwidth and a number of controls to enhance

performance.

¢+ ELS-7000® — The ELS-7000 was introduced with 30 W of output power in January 2002 for high

' volume production of devices at the 130 nm production node and below. In 2006, there was very

" . limited demand for this light source, since chlpmakers now prefer the hlgher power and narrower
bandwidth offered by the ELS-7010.

+ NanolLith 7000 — See the description of this ArF light source under “NanoLith 7000” above.

6000 Series — The 6000 Sénes of light sources includes two KrF models and an ArF model. When
originally introduced, 6000 Series light sources were desugned for production of sem|conductor devices
with design rules down to 130 nm.

-~

[ . . ~
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Our 6000 Series products: > : Lo

e ELS-6010 - The ELS-6010 offers a 2.5 kHz repetition rate and 20 W of output power, Onglnally
introduced at the end of 2000, the ELS-6010 has enjoyed strong chrpmaker acceptance and
demand especially among chrpmakers who ‘wish to meet their KrF needs wnth a hrgh!y reliable
Irght source that enables good wafer throughput. ; _

. - H O o X rr

o ELS-6000™ - The ELS-6000 operates at a 2 kHz repetition rate, offers 20°'W of output power,

and was designed for steppers and scanners used in the production of semiconductor devices

with CDs’of 180 nm and below. Initial shipments of the ELS-6000 began in the second half of

1998, and this product continued to sell well into 2002, and then again in 2004’ when chipmakers

were expandlng 200 mm fab capacity. We currently sell only a Ilmlted number of these light

SOUI‘CES per year . ' r T
. : . V- " -

e ELS:6010A — See.the description of this light source under “Legacy Products” below.
- " i . . ' 1 ) -
Legacy Products ST | r

‘In general, we no longer sell our legacy light source broducts because they have béen
superseded by our newer, more advanced products. Our legacy products are still W|dely used by
chipmakers to pattern the circuitry on the less critical Iayers of the wafer. They make up a substantial
portion of our installed base of light sources and we still provrde consumables, spare parts and service
for these light sources. ’ | . , '

[

ELS-6010A - The ELS-601DA is the ArF model in the 6000 Serres of products "It operates at a 2 kHz
repetition rate with 10 W of output power and was designed to meet the resolution, image contrast and
wafer throughput requirements in semiconductor production at the _130 nm node and below. 1t began
shipping in the second quarter of 2001, but was superseded later that same year by the NanoLith 7000
with its higher repetition rate and power. We still provide consumables, spare parts and servrce for the
ELS-6010As mstalled at chlpmakers and other end users. '

v

5000 Series — Our 5000 Series of light sources includé several KrF products and one ArF product The

5000 Series light sources operate at a 1 kHz repetition rate, and dependlng on the' model, offer 10W or

15 W of output power for use in the manufacture of semiconductors W|th CD of 250 nm and below. We

" last shipped a 5000 Series light source in early 2001, but we contlnue to provide consumables, spare

parts and service to the large installed base of 5000 Series products throughout the world.

Replacement Parts and Refurbishment Activities ' |" L " Rl
. . 3 EA

‘Certain components and subassemblies included in our Iight sources require replacement or

" refurbishment following extended operation. We estimate that a light source used in a semiconductor

production environment will require one to two replacement chambers per year, dependmg upon the

level of usage. Similarly, certain optical components of the light source deteriorate’ with continued

. exposure to DUV light and require periodic replacement We provrde these and other spare and

replacement parts for our photolithography light ¢ sources as needed by our customers

Revenues generated from sales of replacement parts, excluding the receipt of reusable
material, were approximately $123.2 million, $130.8 million, and $199.8 million for 2004, 2005, and
2006, respectively. Revenues from replacement parts are dependent on both the utilization of our light

“source systems and the size of our installed base of light sources. “The size of our installed base

increased from 2,743 light sources as of December 31, 2005 to 3,042 light sources as of December 31,

2006, and the utilization of our light source systems at chipmakers continued to grow throughout 2006.

The utilization rate grew 8.1% from the beginning of 2006 and reached a record high leve! by the end of
2006. . i o .




As part of our regular business activities, -we conduct significant parts refurbishment and
material reclaim activities related to some of our core assemblies, in particuiar our chamber assemblies.
These activities involve arrangements with our customers where we sell a new part to the customer at a
reduced sales price if the customer returns the consumed core assembly that the new part replaces.
These returned core assemblies contain a certain amount of material, primarily metal components, that
may be reused by us in future core assemblies. Since a portion of the consideration related to the
original sale is related to the return of consumed parts, we record revenue when we receive the
returned assemblies from our customers. ‘

Revenues generated from the receipt of reusable material contained within consumed
assemblies returned from our customers were approximately $28.5 million, $18.0 million and $26.0
million for 2004, 2005 and.2006, respectively. Revenues from such activities are dependent on the
quantity of the core assemblies returned from our customers and the value of the reusable parts that we
expect to yield from the core assemblies received. OQur method of accounting for refurbishment
activities is explained in greater detail in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the caption “Accounting for Parts Used in Refurbishment
Manufacturing Process” and in Note 1 to our consolidated financial staternents.

Service

As the life and usage of our installed base of light sources in production at chipmakers exceeds
the origina) warranty periods, some chipmakers request service contracts from us. Additionally, we
provide billable service or service contracts directly to the three semiconductor lithography tool
manufacturers, as well as to chipmaker customers. These service agreements require us to maintain
and/or service these light sources either on an on-call or regular interval basis or both. Included in
some of the types of service contracts we provide to our customers are the replacement of consumable
parts and non-consumable parts The pricing for such contracts includes the replacement of these
parts. ‘ ’

In addition to service contracts, we offer CymerOnLine™, a diagnostic and performance
software product which delivers critical laser diagnostics and performance information in near real-time
directly to authorized users anywhere. The software simplifies reporting and allows users to efficiently
manage consumables usage. CymerOnLine features a user-friendly browser-based interface, which
features a robust design and provides a secure data environment. Event-initiated messages sent to
pagers, e-mail, mobile phones, or other handheld devices enable up-to-the minute communication and
proactive management. .

Revenues generated from service and service contracts were approximately $20.1 million,
$26.4 million and $35.2 million for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. We expect service and service
contract revenues to remain at or exceed these levels as our installed base grows and the warranty
pernod of our light source systems expires.

Customers and End-Users

We sell our photolithography ||ght source products to each of the three manufacturers of DUV
photolithography tools:

ASML Canon . - Nikon
We believe that maintaining and strengther.\ing‘ customer relatidnships will play an important role
in maintaining our leading position in the photolithography market. We work closely with our customers
to integrate our products into their photolithography tools. Sales to ASML, Canon, and Nikon accounted
for 38%, 6% and 16%, respectively, of total revenue in 2006.

Revenues generated from customers within the U.S. were $75.8 million, $60.3 million and $85.0-
million for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Revenues generated from customers outside of the U.S.
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were $342.2 million, $323.4 million and $458.9 million for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Revenues ‘generated from customers located in Japan were $132.8 million, $118.6 million and

"$120.2 million for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Revenues generated from customers located in

Europe were $154.7 million, $138.8 million and $223.1 million for'2004, 2005 and 2008, respectively.

These revenues can originate from any of our locations to’ customers located in these countries.

. o : | v :

Long-lived assets located in the U.S. were $114.1 million, $108.9 million and $103.1 million as

of December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Long-lived assets located outside of the U.S. were
$£9.4 million, $8.4 million and $9.0 million as of Décember 31, 2004, 2005 and 20086, respectively.

" End- -users of our light sources include all of the world’s largest semiconductor manufacturers.
The following semiconductor manufacturers have purchased one or more DUV photolithography tools

mcorporatmg our Ilght sources
. ,

.

' Backlog

1 A semiconductor industry consortium.

We schedule production of - hght sources based upon order backlog and informal customer
forecasts We include. in.backlog only those orders to which a purchase ‘order number has been
-assigned by the customer and for which delivery has been specified within 12 months. Because
customers may cancel or delay orders with little or no penalty, our backlog as of any particular date may
‘not be a reliable indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period. At December 31, 2006, we had a
tbackiog of approximately $94.4 million compared with a backlog of $90 8 million at December 31, 2005. .

+
+

‘Manufacturlng

Our manufacturlng actlwtles consist of materlal management assembly, mtegratlon and testing.
These activities are performed in a 265,000 square foot facility in San Diego, California that includes
approximately 31,000 square feet-of Class 10,000 cleanroom manufacturing and test space. In order to

i
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focus our own resources, capitalize on the expertise of our key suppliers and respond more efficiently to
customer demand, we have outsourced the manufacture of many of our subassemblies. Our
manufacturing outsourcing strategy is exemplified by the modular design of our products. Substantially
all manufacturing of nonproprietary. subassemblies has been contracted to third-party suppliers. As a
result, -we are increasingly dependent upcon these contract suppliers to meet our manufacturing
schedules. The failure by one or more of these suppliers to supply us on a timely basis with sufficient
quantities of components or subassemblies that perform to our specifications could affect our ability to
deliver completed light sources to our customers on schedule. We believe that the highty outsourced
content and manufacturable design of our products allows for reduced manufacturing cycle times and
increased output per employee. To improve current production_efficiencies, control costs, and manage
overall manufacturing capacity, we intend to continue to provide additional training to manufacturing
persennel, improve our assembly and test processes in order to reduce cycle time, invest in additicnal
manufacturing tooling and further develop our supplier management and engineering capabilities

In addition to the manufacturing capacity at our facilities in San Diego, Callfornla we- have a
refurbishment facility in Korea. This facility refurbishes discharge chambers, for light sources in Korea
and the Asia-Pacific region. The refurbishment facility in Korea includes 6,550 square feet of Class
10,000 cleanroom manufacturing space.

A limited number of components and subassemblies included in our products are obtained from
a single supplier or a small group of suppliers. For certain optical, contrél system and pulse power
components and subassemblies used in our light source systems, we curreritly utilize a single supplier.
Where possible, we work with secondary suppliers to qualify additional sources of supply. To reduce
the risk associated with this single supplier, we carry significant strategic inventories of these
components. Strategic inventories are managed as a percentage of future demand. We have also
negotiated to have vendor-managed inventory of critical components to further reduce the risk of a
single supplier. To date we have been able to obtain adequate supplles of the components and
subassemblies used in the production of our light source systems in a timely manner from existing
sources. If in the future we are unable to obtain sufficient quantities of required materials, components
or subassemblies, or if such items do not meet our quality standards, delays or reductions in product
shipments could occur which could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Sales and Marketing
Our sales and marketing efforts are designed to serve our customer base consisting of both the

DUV photolithography tool providers such as ASML, Canon and Nikon as well as many of the world’s
top 23 chipmakers. We market and sell our products through our own worldwide direct sales and

‘marketing channels and we have developed product and applications engineering teams to support

these efforts We betieve that in order for our sales and marketing organization to be successful, we
must work closely with and understand the requirements of both the photollthography systems soiutlons
providers and the end-user semiconductor manufacturers.

Service and Supporf

We believe our success in the semiconductor photolithography market is highly dependent upon
after-sales support to both our direct and our end-user customers. We support our customers with field’
service, technical service engineers and training programs, and 'provide on-site support at the.
customer's manufacturing facilities. Prior to shipment, our support personnel typically assist the:
customer in site preparation and inspection and provide customers with training at our facilities or at the
customer's location: We also provide direct customers and end-users with a comprehensive set of
manuals, including operations, maintenance, service, diagnostic and safety manuals.

Our field engineers and technical support specialists provide field service and front-line
technical support capability from our San Diego headquarters, and at our field service offices located
throughout the U.S. Support in Europe, Japan, Korea, Singapore, the People's Republic of China,
Taiwan and Southeast Asia is provided by our subsidiaries.located within those regions. As part of our
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customer service, we maintain an inventory of spare parts at each of our service facilities. As our
installed base grows, replacement parts required to satisfy worldwide support requirements, as well as
our own logistics ‘support’organization, ‘will be subject to the ﬂuctuatlng demands of the semiconductor
industry. In order to meet these deémands, we must continue to effectively manage our production of
component modules which are requrred for new systems as.well as for support and warranty
reqmrements for installed systems.« -~ : ar :

I
[

We believe that the need to provide fast and responsive servrce that meets the level of quality
required by semiconductor manufacturers using our light sources is critical and that we cannot depend
solely on our customers to provide this service. Therefore, we believe it is essential to maintain, through
our awn personnel, a rapid response capability to service our customers and end-users throughout the
world. Accordingly, we seek to continuously develop and enhance our direct support infrastructure in
Europe, Japan, Korea, Singapore, the People's Repubiic of China, Talwan and Southeast Asia and the
U.S. This task entails recruiting and training quallf ied field servrce personnel or identifying qualified
independent firms.and malntammg effective and’ h|ghly trained orgamzauons that can prowde sefvice to
customers in vanous countries in their assugned regtons ‘

We generally warrant our new light source products agalnst defects in design, materials, and
workmanship. The warranty period and terms vary by light source model. We also warrant consumable
and spare parts sold to our customers and the coverage period varies by spare part type as some types
include time-based warranty periods and others include usage-based warranty periods.

. . i

Reésearch and Development » S o

The semlconductor industry is subject to rapid technologlcal change and new product
introductions and enhancements. We believe that continued and tlmely development and introduction
of new and enhanced light source products are essential for us to maintain our-competitive posrtron

We intend to continue to develop our technology and innovative products to meet customer demands.
Current projects include enhancements to our KrF 'and ArF light sources and the recently announced
development of a recirculating ring based ArF light source whlch provides performance enhancements
to our MOPA product line. We have continued to expend significant development efforts to address the
technology and products that will-be based on the extreme ultraviodlet ("EUV") technology needed -for
future generation photolithography illumination sources. We may, also invest in other product and
technology areas in order 10 expand our portfolio within the semlconductor capital equipment market
sector. In addition there are ongoung -efforts to improve exlstmg products reduce manufactunng costs,
lower the cost of light source operation, ‘enhance light source performance, develop .new features for
exlstlng Ilght sources, and conduct research and development of non light source products:

. We have hlstorlcally devoted a significant portion of our ﬁnancua! résources to research and
development programs and we.expect to continue to allocate 5|gn|f icant resources to these' efforts.
Research and development expenses for 2004, 2005 and 2006 were: approximately $58.6 million, $64 0
'm|II|on and $74.0 million, respectlvely . |

“In the last three years, we have entered into’ several research and development agreements
- related to EUV technology both with customers and gove’rnment agencies. The largest of these
research and development agreements was with Intel Corporation 'in January 2004. This agreement
provided funding to accelerate the development of production-worthy EUV lithography light sources at
. Intef's request. This agreement was terminated in June 2006. See Note 6 to our consolidated financial
statements for additional information. The total funding recorded under this agreement for 2004, 2005
© and 2006 was $6.1 million, $1.9- mllllon and $104 000, respectlveiy '

*Revenues generated from research and development contracts amounted to approximately
$783,000, $1.0:million and $395,000 during 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. For certain of our
~ fésearch and development contracts, our research and development expenses are offset by amounts
earned associated with these contracts. The amounts offset agalnst research and development
expenses were $7.6 miltion, $2.8 million and $154,000 during 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

.
.
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We have established a joint venture with Zeiss called TCZ which is headquartered in Singapore.
The joint venture is owned 60% by us and 40% by Zeiss. TCZ is currently developing, and will integrate,
market and sell, and support, productlon tools for the flat panel display manufacturlng mdustry The
jomt venture is targeting the growing market for low-temperature poly-silicon (“LTPS") processing used
in the manufacture of liquid crystal displays that are brighter, have higher resolution, and consume less
power than displays using today’s predominant amorphous silicon films. We currently expect that TCZ
will ship its, first production tool, the TCZ 900X, in late 2007 or early 2008. As a majority owned
sub3|d|ary, TCZ's results, including research and development expenses, are included in our
consolidated financial statements.

intellectual Property Rights

While the success of our busmess depends more on such factors as the technlcal expertise of
our employees, as well as their innovative skills and marketnng and customer relations abilities, the
.success of our business also relies on our ability to protect our proprietary technology. Accordingly, we
- seek to protect our intellectual property rights in a variety of ways, including by obtaining patents. As of
December 31, 2006, we owned 254 U.S. patents covering certain aspects of technology related to light
sources and piezo techniques. These patents will expire at various times during the period from
January 2008 to September 2025. As of December 31, 2006, we had applied for 137 additional patents
in the U.S. As of December 31, 2006, we owned 396 foreign patents and had 373 patent applrcatlons
pending in various foreign countries.

Our pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved. Our patents
might not provide us with a competitive advantage and may be challenged by third parties. In addition,
third parties’ patents might have an adverse effect on our ability to do business. Due to cost constraints, -
we did not begin seeking patent protection in Japan and other countries for our inventions that are
covered by U.S. patents and patent applications until 1993. As a result, we do not have the right to
seek foreign patent protection for some of our early inventions. Additionally, laws of some foreign
countries in which our products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, including various
countries in Asia, may not protect our products or intellectual property rights to the same extent as do
the laws of the U.S. Thus, the likelihood of piracy of our technology and products is greater in these -
countries. Further, third parties might independently develop similar products duplicate our products or
design around patents that are granted to us.

Other companies or persons may have filed or may file in the future patent applications that are
similar or identical to ours, We may have to participate in appropriate proceedings in the courts or the
patent offices to determine the priority of inventions. These proceedings may determine that these third-
party patent applications have priority over our patent applications. Loss of priority in these interference
proceedings could result in substantial cost to us.

We also rely on trade secret protection, employee and third-party nondisclosure agreements
and other intellectual property protection methods to protect our confidential information and our other
intellectual property. However, we may not be successful in-protecting our confidential information,
particularly our trade secrets, because third parties may independently develop substantially the same
proprietary information and techniques, gain access to our trade secrets, or disclose our technology.

In the past, funds from research and development arrangements with third parties have been
used to pay for a portion of our own research and development expenses. We receive these funds from
government-sponsored programs and customers, in connection with our designing and developing
specn‘" ic products. Periodically, funds from lithography tool manufacturers and chipmakers are used to -
fund a small portion of our research and development expenses. In providing these research and
development services to these manufacturers, we try to make clear who owns the intellectual property
that results from the research and- development services we perform. However, disputes over the
ownership or rights to use or market this intellectual property may arise between the funding
organizations and us. '
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Third parties have notified us in the past, and may notify us in'the future, that we are mfrmgmg '
their intellectual property rights. Also, we have notified third parties in the past, and may notify them in
the future, that they may be infringing our intellectual property nghts

Specifically, Komatsu notified us'in 1996 that we may be mfnngmg some of its Japanese -
patents. During our subseqguent discussions, Komatsu also asserted that our former Japanese
manufacturing partner, Seiko, or we may be infringing on some of Komatsu's U.S. patents and a
number of its additional Japanese patents. Komatsu has also notified one of our customers, Nikon, of its
belief that our light sources infringe several of Komatsu's Japanese and U.S. patents. As a result, we
started proceedings in the Japanese Patent Office to oppose certain patents and patent applications of
Komatsu. The Japanese Patent Office has dismissed our opposmon claims. Thus, litigation may result
in connection with Komatsu's Japanese patents or U.S. patents. Also, Komatsu might claim that 'we
infringe other or additional patents. Komatsu notified Seiko that it intends to enforce its rights against
Seiko with respect to its Japanese patents if Seiko continued to engage in manufacturing activities for
us. In connection with our former manufacturing agreement with Seiko, we agree to pay Seiko under
certain conditions for damages associated with these types of claims. Seiko may not prevail in any
litigation against Komatsu, and therefore, we may be required to pay Seiko for such damages.

' We have notified our competitor and others of our U.S. patent portfolio. Specifically, we have
notified Komatsu that it may be infringing some of our U.S. patents. We have discussed with Komatsu
our claims against each other. Komatsu challenged one of our U, S! patents in the United States Patent
and Trademark Office (*USPTQ") but our patent was subsequently re-issued by the USPTO. Also,
Komatsu'transferred its lithography light source business to our compétitor, Gigaphoton. We also have
had discussions with a former competitor, Lambda-Physik (a subsidiary of Coherent, Inc.), regarding
allegations: by each party against the other for possible patent infringement. Any of these drscuss:ons

_with our.competitor or former competitor may not be successful and litigation could result.
|

Ih the future, patent litigation may result due to a claim of infringement by our competitor or any
other third party or may be necessary to enforce patents issued to us. Any such litigation could result in .
substantial cost to us and diversion of our effort, which would have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results. Furthermore, our ¢ustomers and the end-users of our products
might assert other claims for indemnification that arise from infringement claims agamst them. If these

_ assertions are successful, our business, financial condition and operating results may be materially
affected. Instead of litigation, or as a result thereof, we may seek a Ilcense from third parties to use their
" intellectual property. However, we may not be able to obtain a Ilcense Alternatively, we may design
, around the third party’s intellectual property rights or we may ' challenge these claims™in legal
- proceedings. - Any adverse determination in a legal proceeding could result in one or more of the
* following, any of which could harm our business, financial condition and operating results:

loss of our proprietary rights; !

exposure to significant liabilities by other third parties;

requirement that we get a license from third parties on terms that are not favorable; or

restriction from manufacturing or selling our products.

. . . f - .

Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention’ of our

management and technical personnel, which would materially adverseiy affect our busmess financial
condition and results of operatlons

1

In 1992, we granted Seiko a right of first refusal to fund our development of, and receive a

license to, new industrial light source technologies not developed with funding from other parties. In

*exchange for these rights, we received up-front license fees of $3. 0! million in aggregate during 1992
and 1993. We were also entitled to royalties of 5% on related product sales through September 1999,

.after which the royalty rate was subject to renegotiation. To date no renegohatlon of the royalty rate has

-occurred and we have earned no royalties under the agreement. The license agreement also provides

‘that product sales between us and Seiko will be at a 15% discount from the respective companies' list
prices. The agreement terminates in August 2012. There has been no production or sales activity by
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Seiko. assocuated with this contract to date and this contract does not apply to our current light source
system products. . )

We have registered the trademarks “CYMER” and “INSIST ON CYMER?” and others in the U.S.
and in some other countries. We are also trying to register additional trademarks in the U.S. and in other
countries. We use these trademarks and many other marks in our advertisements and other business
materials, which are distributed throughout the ‘world. We may be subject to trademark infringement
actions for using these marks and other marks on a worldwide basis and this would be costly to defend.
If a trademark infringement action were:successful, we would have to stop using the mark and poss:bly

pay damages.

Competition . ' : o S

We believe that the. prmcspal elements of competition in our markets are the technical
performance characteristics of the excimer light source products and the operating -efficiency of the
system, which is based on availability, reliability, performance efficiency, throughput, cost of operation,
and rate of quality. We believe that we compete favorably with respect to these factors.

We currently have one significant competitor. that selis light sources for DUV photolithography -
applications. This competitor, Gigaphoton, is a joint venture between two large companies, Komatsu
and Ushio, and is headquartered in Japan. Gigaphoton is aggressively trying to gain larger market
penetration in the excimer light source industry. We know that our lithography tool manufacturer
customers have purchased products from this competitor and that these customers have approved this
competitor's light sources for use with their products. Additionally, we know that Grgaphoton has been
approved by a number of chipmakers in Japan and other regions in' Asia, as well as a few chipmakers in
the U.S., and that Gigaphoton has an installed base of light sources at chipmakers in these regions.

In the future, we will likely experience competition from other companies as wel'l,' as next
generation technologies must.be adopted in order-to enable critical dimensions to continue to shrink

- beyond the 32 nm node. These technologles include. EUV, an area in which we have been conducting

research and development since 1997 and for which we currently have a very promising light source in
development, and possibly nano-imprint lithography or certain types. of maskless lithography, such as
multiple electron beam direct wrlte lithography. .

To remain competitive, we belreve that we will need to manufacture and deliver products to
customérs on a timely basis without- significant defects and maintain a high level of investment in
research and development and sales and marketing. We might not have sufficient resources to
continue to make the investments necessary to maintain our competitive position.

.Larger companies with substantially greater resources, such as other manufacturers of
industrial light sources for advanced lithography, may .attempt to sell competitive products to our
customers. Potential competitors may also be attracted to our growing installed base of light sources
and may attempt to supply consumables and spare parts to that installed base.

Employees
" On December 31, 2006, we employed 975 persons worldwide. No employees are currently

covered by collective bargaining agreements or are members of any labor organization as far as we are
aware. We have not experienced any work stoppages and believe that our employee relations are good.
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Executive Offlcers o

' | .

Set forth below is. certam mformatlon regarding our executlve off' icers and therr ages as. of
February 23, 2007.

*

Name Age : Posmon )
Rabert P. Akins .........ccceo..... 55 Chairman of the Board and Chlef Executive Officer
Edward J. Brown ................. 49 President and Chief Operating Officer -
Nancy J. IBaker ........ VT " 44  Senior Vice President,iChief,Finelncial Officer )
Christopher W. Smith .......... 47  Senior Vice Prés‘ident, Worldwide Business Operatibns
Stephan D. Spiva ................ 58 Senior Vice President, C_orporale'Operations
Rae Ann Werner ........... e 42 Vice President, Controller and ChEef Accounting Officer

Robert P. Akins, one of our co-founders, has served as cur chairman and chief executive
officer since our inception in 1986, and served as president of the company as well from our inception
until May 2000. He currently serves on the boards of directors!of Semiconductor Equipment and
Materials International ("SEMI"), and SEMI North America. He |s also a member of the council of
advisors to the Irwin and Joan Jacobs School of Engineering at the University of California, San Diego
(*UCSD"), and serves on the board of the UC San Diego Foundation. * Mr. Akins received the Ernst &
Young Entrepreneur of the Year Award for San Diego County in 1997, and with fellow co-founder Rick

- Sandstrom, received the outstanding alumnus award from UCSD, and the prestigious SEMI Award for

North America, the highest honor conferred by SEMI, in 1996 for contributions to the field of DUV
lithography. Mr. Akins received a bachelor's degree in physics, a bachelor's degree in literature, and a -
doctorate in applied physics from the University of California, San Diego.

Edward J. Brown, Jr. has served as president and chief joperating officer since September
2005. Mr. Brown has nearly three decades of experience in the technology sector, including 17 years
as an executive and 11 as a corporate officer. Prior 10 joining us, Mr. Brown held several high-leve!

. management positions at ‘Applied Materials Inc., the world’s largest provider of semiconductor

equipment and services. At Applied ‘Materials, he was respon5|bie for key business innovations,
overseeing global operations, and enabling significant revenue growth Mr. Brown received a master's
degree in business administration from National Unlversrty and a bachelor's degree in mdustrral studies
from San Diego State University. : :

Nancy J. Baker has served as senior vice president and chief financial ofﬁcer since January
2002. Prior to that, she served as our vice president, finance and treasurer' from June™ 1998 to
December 2001. During 2000, she headed the company's successful effort to implement a new
Enterprise Resource Planning system, which was implemented in San Diego in only six months, and
globally in only nine months. From October 1996 to June 1998 she served as director, corporate finance
and treasurer. She joined us as corporate controller for worldwide operations in August 1992, Ms.
Baker's professional career spans more than 21 years, and prior to joining us, she held a variety of
financial management positions with an international manufacturer in the San Diego area. Ms. Baker

~received a bachelor's degree in accounting from the University of Texas at Austin and completed the

executive advanced management program at Harvard Business School.

Christopher W. Smith has served as senior wce president of worldmde busmess operations
since May 2006. He has more than 20 years of sales, marketing and , senior-level management

. experience. Prior to jommg us, Mr. Smith spent about 12 years at Applled Materials, Inc. where he most

- recently served as vice president and general manager for the Intel, Micron and all North American

regional accounts and was responsible for Applied Materials’ largest customer/technical business

: relationships from October 2001 to May 2006. Mr. Smith.served as vice president and general manager
for Applied Materials from October 1998 to October 2001 in the chemical mechanical polishing products

nbusmess group; and from November 1994 to October 1988 he served as managing director of global

'business development in the dielectric deposition products busrness group and the physical vapor
1 ' .

13 |




deposition products business group of Applied Materials where his responsibilities ranged from
marketing and business development to technical and field process support. Mr. Smith holds a
bachelor’s degree in business from San Jose State University, and completed the Executive Program at
Stanford University.

Stephan D. Spiva has served as senior vice president of corporate operations since May 2006.
Mr. Spiva has more than 35 years of management experience, including 20 years with the U.S. Navy.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Spiva was vice president of enterprise solutions at Applied Materials, Inc from
June 1998 until his retirement in June 2001. From March 1988 to June 1998, Mr. Spiva served at
Applied Materials in various management positions, including as the managing director of global
installed base operations, senior director of Intel account operations and director of the advanced
manufacturing group and also implemented the Oracle Enterprise Resource Planning system for
manufacturing and order fulfilment business processes at Applied Materials. Mr. Spiva received his
bachelor's degree in business administration from the University of Phoenix and is also APICS and
CIRM certified.

Rae Ann Werner has served as vice president, controller, and chief accounting officer since
January 2003. Prior to that, she served as-our controller from February 1999 to January 2003. From
1993 to 1999 she held a variety of finance positions with increasing responsibilities since joining us in
November 1993. Ms. Werner's professional career spans more than 19 years, and prior to joining us,
she held a variety of financial positions with semiconductor and communications companies in the San
Diego area.. Ms. Werner received a bachelor's degree in accounting from San Diego State University.

Executive officers serve at the discretion of the board of directors, There are no family
. relationships between any of the directors and our executive officers.

item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks described below may niot be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do not
currently think are material may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or
circumstances described in the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results

of operations could suffer, and the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Our revenues and operating results from quarter-to-quarter have varied in the past and our
future operatlng results may continue to fluctuate significantly.

Factors that contribute to fluctuations in our revenues and operating results include:

e demand for semiconductors in general and, in particular, for leading edge devices with
. - smaller circuit geometries;
- o cyclicality in the market for semiconductor manufacturing equipment;
* rates at which chipmakers take delivery of photollthography tools from lithography tool
manufacturers;
« rates at which lithography tool manufacturer customers take dehvery of hght source systems
_from us;
timing and size of orders from our customers;
changes in market penetration by our competitor;
product lead time demands from our customers;
mix of light source models, consumable and spare parts and service revenues in our total
revenues,
changes in the price and profitability of our products;
o . ourability to develop and implement new technologies and introduce new products;
utilization rates of light sources and sales of consumable and spare parts and services;
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-« our ability to manage customer satisfaction, product relrabrlrty, and direct field service and
) support effectiveness; . t :
" e our ability to manage our manufacturrng requirements; - : ' '
+ foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, principally with respect to the Japanese yen (in
! which sales by our Japanese subsidiary are- denomrnated)
’ » ~ worldwide political instability;
changing global economic conditions, rncludrng rlsrng energy pnces and
+ intellectual property protection.

We have historically derived a large portion of our quarterly and annual revenues from selling a
small number of light source systems. Because we sell a small number of products, the precise time
that we recognize revenue from an order may have a significant! impact on our total revenue for a
particulat period. Our customers may cancel or reschedule orders with little or no penalty. Orders
expected in one quarter could shift to another period due to changes in the anticipated timing of our
customers’ purchase decisions or rescheduled delivery dates requested by our customers. Our
operating results for a particular quarter or year may be adversely affected if our customers, particularly
our three largest customers, cancel or reschedule orders, or if we cannot fill orders |n time due to
unexpected delays in manufacturing, testlng, shapprng and product acceptance

n

We manage our expense levels based, in Iarge part on expected future revenues. As a result,
our expenses are refatively fixed for the short term, and if 6ur actual revenue decreases below the level
we expect, our operating results will be adversely affected. As a result of these or other factors, we
could fail to achieve our expectations as to future revenue, gross prof' it, operating income, net income,

' earnings per share, and cash flows. Our failure to meet the performance expectations set and
' published by external sources could resdilt in'a sudden and significant drop in the price of our stock,
¢ particularly on a short-term basns .and could negatrveiy affect the value of any investment in our stock.

- Our business depends on the semlconductor and the semlconductor capital equrpment
i industries, whrch are highly volatile and unpredlctable
We derive a substantial portlon of our revenues from I|thography tool manufacturers who, as
" original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs"), incorporate our light source systems in photolsthography
. tools that they sell to semiconductor manufacturers, or chipmakers, and from chipmakers who purchase
 consumables, spare parts, upgrades and service directly from us in support of the light source products.
Like us, our OEM customers depend on demand for their products from the chipmakers. The capital
- equipment and related operating expenditures of chipmakers depend on a number of factors, |nclud|ng
the current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and the many products using
“semiconductors. That demand is highly volatile and unpredictable. |
As a result of the cyclicality of the semiconductor industry, the semiconductor capital equipment
‘industry historically has experienced periodic ups and downs. The cyclrcal nature of the semiconductor
and the semiconductor capital equipment industries affects our ability to accuratety predict future
‘revenue and therefore our ability to manage our future expense levels. When cyclical fluctuations result
'in lower than expected revenue levels, operating results may be adversely affected and cost reduction
measures may be necessary in order for us to remain competitive and financially sound. During a down
cycle or slowdown, we must be in a position to adjust our cost and expense structure to prevailing
market conditions while still being able to maintain the longer term strategies of the company as well as
motivate and retain our key employees. During periods of rapid growth, we must be able to increase
manufacturing capacity and personnel to meet customer demand. We can provide no assurance that
these objectives can be met in a timely manner in response to industry cycles. We are not able to
predict with" any certainty the duration of any industry cycle or the t:mmg or order of magnrtude of any
recovery.
Downturns in the semiconductor industry often result in decreases in demand for semiconductor
manufactunng equipment, including the photolithography tools that our OEM customers produce.
Downturns in the semiconductor industry have generally -had severe effects on the demand for
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semiconductor manufacturing equipment and the associated parts and support services. Fluctuating
levels of investment by chipmakers and resulting pricing volatility will continue to materially affect our
aggregate bookings, revenues and operating results. Even during periods of reduced revenues we
believe we must continue to invest in research and development and to maintain extensive ongoing
" worldwide customer service and support capabilities to remain competitive. Continued spending in
furtherance of these objectives may temporarily harm our financial results. Semiconductor industry
downturns and slowdowns are likely to continue to adversely affect our business, financial condition and
operating results, and our operating results may fall below the expectations of public market analysts or
investors in future quarters. Any failure to meet such expectations could materially adversely affect the
price of our common stock.

Our OEM customers try to manage their inventories and production requirements to appropriate
levels that reflect their expected sales to chipmakers. Market conditions in the semiconductor industry
and our OEM customers’ production efficiency can cause them to expand or reduce their orders for new
light source systems as they try to manage their inventories and production requirements. We continue
to work with our OEM customers to better understand these issues. However, we cannot guarantee that
we will be successful in understanding our OEM customers’ inventory management and production
requirements or that our OEM customers will not build up an excess inventory of light source systems. if
our OEM customers retain an excess inventory of light source systems, our revenue could be reduced
in future periods as the excess inventory is utilized, which could adversely affect our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows. If our OEM customers demand shorter product lead times to improve
their inventory and cash positions, our inventory management and cash position may be negatively
impacted, which may adversely affect our operating results, financiat condition and cash flows.

A significant percentage of our revenue is derived from sales to the three lithography tool
manufacturers, and if we are not able to retain these customers, or they reschedule, reduce or
cancel orders, or delay or default on payments, our revenues would be reduced and our financial
condition and cash flows would suffer.

Three large companies, ASML, Canon and Nikon dominate the photolithography tool business.
Collectively, these three companies accounted for the following percentage of our total revenue during
the periods indicated: '

Years ended December 31,

_ _ 2004 2005 2006
ASML 1o et ST . 34% 32% 38%
[02=15 1+ ] | EUUUT e T ~11% 8% 6%.
NIKON .ooveeee. e et rere et rer e n e eneeennee e e e 22% 24% 16%
Total ..overieveeren. et et 67% . 64% 60%

Collectively, these three companies accounted for the following percentage of our total accounts
receivable at the dates indicated: '

December 31, °  December 31,
2005 2006
ASML ..o e SOOI 36% - 48%
Canon ......c..ccovinin, e 5% 3%
NIKOR . eevveveveeseesssemses s sesesese et _25% 19%

TOMD oo e e e e e ee e e e ree et e et . 66% o T0%

We expect that sales of our light source products to these three customers will continue to
account for a substantial portion of our revenue in the foreseeable future. None of our customers are
obligated to purchase a minimum number of our products in the aggregate or during any particular
period. We can provide no assurance that any of our customers will continue to purchase our products
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at past or current levels. For example, revenue attributable to sales to Canon has declined significantly

since 2004. Sales to Canon or any of these customers may be affected by many factors, some of which
are beyond our control. These factors include:

?
-

a change in a customer's competitive position in its industry;
a customer experiencing lithography tool production problems;
a decision to purchase. light sources from other suppliers;

changes in economic conditions in the semiconductor or the photolithography tool
. industries; and

* adecline in a customer's fi nancial condition.

1
N A

e & ¢ 9.
.

The loss of any significant business from or production problems for any one of these three
customers would harm our business and financial condition. !

A substantlal percentage of our revenue is denved from the sale of a limited number of primary
products. !

¥
i

QOur only current product Iune is excimer light source systems mcludrng KrF and ArF systems,
and support, including consumable and spare parts and service support ‘We expect these light source
systems and the related support to continue to account for a substantial majority of our revenues in the

' near term. Continued market acceptance of our light source system products is, therefore, critical to our

future success. The primary market for excimer light sources is 'in, the use of DUV photolithography

- equipment for manufacturing deep-submicron semiconductor devices using smaller circuit geometries.
- The demand for our products depends in part on the rate at which'chipmakers further adopt excimer
. light sources' as the chosen light source for their photolithography toals.

The rate with which chipmakers adopt excimer light sources ‘may vary for a variety of reasons,
mcludmg

* inadequate performance of photoresists used in advenced DUV photolithography,
especially new ArF immersion-specific resists;

' »  potential shortages of specialized materials used in DUV optics;

s - productivity of ArF immersion lithography tools, and in the future, productivity of double-
i patterning ArF lithography tools; and B
.-  consolidation of chipmakers. - o

We cannot guarantee that these factors can or will be overcome or that the demand for our
excimer light source products will not be materially reduced. The demand for our light source products,

and therefore our operating results, financial condrtlon and cash flows, could be adversely affected by a
number of factors, including: '

|
| » adecline in demand for our customers’ DUV photolithography tools;
: » a failure to achieve continued market acceptance of our products;

L ]

a failure to manage customer satisfaction, product relrablllty, and direct field serwce and.
support effectiveness;

¢ an improved version of products bemg offered by a competutor in the market in which we
participate; ]

technological change that we are unable to address with our products; and -
a failure to release new enhanced versions of our products on a timely basis.

We depend on the introduction of new products for our success, and we are subject.to risks
associated with rapid technological change.

4+ Rapid technological changes in semiconductor manufacturlng processes subject us to

increased pressure to develop technological advances enabling such processes We believe that our
|
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future success depends in part upon our ability to develop, manufacture, timely introduce and support
new light source products with improved capabilities and to continue to enhance our existing light
source systems and process capabilities. Due to the risks inherent in transitioning to new products, we
must forecast accurate demand for new products while managing the transition from older products.

QOur maost significant product introduction inrecent years consisted of a technology change from
a single-discharge-chamber excimer light source to a dual-discharge-chamber design called MOPA.
The MOPA design represents a paradigm shift from previously accepted lithography technology and
offers chipmakers higher power, tighter bandwidth and lower cost of operation for their current — and we
* expect for their future — optical lithography applications. As originally designed, the MOPA architecture
was projected to provide its benefils across all three DUV wavelengths — 248 nm, 193 nm, and 157 nm
- but at this time, the semiconductor industry has only adopted MOPA at the 193 nm wavelength, due to
the successful extension of 248 nm single chamber technology, and the omission of 157 nm lithography
from the roadmap. There are risks inherent in the MOPA technology, including effective execution of
our product development roadmap, continuing adoption of the product by lithography tool manufacturers
and chipmakers, manufacturability, cost effectiveness, and product performance in the field of the new
products and the development of a comparable product by our competitor.

" At this time, chipmakers are continuing to expand their manufacturing capacity at 90 nm, and a
growing number of chipmakers are ramping up production capability at 65 nm, while.manufacturers of
certain types of memory chips are in the early stages of ArF immersion production below 65 nm and a
significant level of development is underway at 45 nm. These efforts, along with expanding use of ArF
immersion lithography in production among certain memory manufacturers, are driving demand for our
most advanced ArF light sources. At the same time chipmakers also need tools for the less critical
layers on wafers, and there remains strong demand for our KrF light source products for DUV
photolithography systems as well. After chipmakers have built their capacity to levels appropriate to
meet existing demand, their demand for our light source products will depend, in part, on their sales
forecasts and their estimates regarding the duration and magnitude of the current industry cycle and
whether their projected manufacturing process yields will enable ongoing investments in whatever
capacity seems necessary. .

Future technologies such as EUV, nano-imprint lithography, and certain maskless lithography
techniques may render our excimer light source products cobsolete. We must manage product
transitions, as introduction of new products could adversely affect our sales of existing products. If new
products are not introduced on time, or have reliability or quality problems, our performance may be
impacted by reduced orders, higher manufacturing costs, delays in acceptance of and payment for new
products, and additional service and warranty expenses. We may not be able to develop and introduce
new products or enhancements to our existing products and processes in a timely or cost effective
manner that satisfies customer needs or achieves market acceptance. Failure to develop and introduce
these new products and enhancements could materially adversely affect our operating results, financial
condition and cash flows.

We expect to face significant competition from current and future competitors. We believe that
other companies are developing systems and products that are competitive to ours and are ptanning to
‘introduce new products to this market, which may affect our ability to sell our new products.
Furthermore, new products represent significant investments of our resources and their success, or lack
thereof, could have a material effect on our financial results.

' Failure to maintain effectively our direct field service and support organization could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We believe it is critical for us to provide quick and responsive service directly to the chipmakers
throughout the world that use our light source products in their photolithography systems, and that it is
essential to maintain our own personnel or trained third-party resources to provide these services.
Accordingly, we have an ongoing effort to develop our direct support system with locations in Europe,

18




1

Korea, Japan, the People’s Republic of China, Singapore, Taiwan and the U.S. This requires us to do
the following: .
t
e recruit and train qualified field service personnel; R
|dentlfy qualified independent firms; and | 4 :
maintain effective and highly trained organlzatlons that can provide service to our
customers in various countries. L .

. We may not be able to attract and train qualified personne! to maintain our direct support
operations successfully. We may not be able to find and engage qualified third-party resources to
supplement and enhance our direct support operations: Further, we may incur significant costs in
providing these support services. Failure to implement our direct support operation effectively could
harm our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We must develop and manufacture enhancements to our existing products and introduce new
products in order to continue to grow our business. We may not effectively manage our growth
and mtograte these new enhancements and products, whlch could materlally harm our business.

To continue to grow our business, . our exlstmg Ilght source products and their process
capabilities must be enhanced,. and we must develop and manufacture new products to serve other
semiconductor applications. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to manage our business to grow
effectively. Nor can we guarantee that we will be able to accelerate the development of -new
enhancements to our existing products and create new products Further, we may not be able -to
effectively integrate new products and applications into our current operatlons Any of these risks could
materially harm our business, financial condltlon‘and results of operations.

t

We must effectively manage changes in our business. o
In order to respond to the business cycles of the semiconductor industry, in the past few years
we have sharply expanded and contracted the scope of our operatlons and the number of employees in

. many of our locations and departments. As the semiconductor mdustry cycle moves between growth

and contraction we will need to:
. .,

e improve our product rellablhty through quality controt and our order fulfllment field service
and customer support capabilities;
closely manage our global operations;
improve our process and other internal management systems;
quickly adapt to changing sales and marketing channels;
effectively manage our inventory levels; and .
attract, train, retain and manage key personnel.

¢

L

If 'we fail to effectlvely manage changes in our busmess our operatmg results, financial
' condition and cash flows will be adversely affected.

We depend on a few key suppliers for purchasmg components and subassemblles that are
. mcluded in our products. ) |
t We purchase a limited number of components and subassemblies included in our light source
-products from a single supplier or a small group of suppliers. For certain optical, control system and
ipulse power components and subassemblies used in our light source systems, we currently utilize a

-single supplier. To reduce the risk associated with this single suppller we carry a significant strategic

inventory of these components. Strategic inventories.are managed as a percentage of future demand.

We have also negotiated to have vendor-managed inventory of critical components to further reduce the
risk of a single supplier. In addition, we contract the manufacture of various subassemblies of our
iproducts and depend on our contract manufacturers to deliver o our r'equired specifications, schedule,
: 19 !
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and quality standards. Further, some' of our suppliers have specialized in supplying equipment or
manufacturing services to semiconductor equipment manufacturers and therefore are susceptible to
industry ups and downs and subject to the same risks and uncertainties regarding their ahility to
respond to changing market conditions. Because many of these suppliers reduce the size of their
workforce in an industry downturn and increase it in an upturn, they may not be able to meet our
requirements or respond quickly enough as-an upturn begins and gains momentum. Due to the nature
of our product development requirements, these key suppliers must rapidly advance their own
technologies and production capabilities in order to support the introduction schedule of our new
products. These suppliers may not be able to provide new modules and subassemblies when they are
needed to satisfy our product schedule requirements. If we cannot purchase enough of these materials,

componenis or subassemblies, -or if these items do not meet our quality standards, there could be
delays or reductions in our product shipments, which would harm our operatung results, financial

condition and cash flows.

We are dependent on our manufacturmg facilities and subcontractors to assemble and test our
products. -

Operations'at our primary manufacturing facility and our subcontractors are subject to disruption
for a variety of reasons, including work stoppages, terrorism, fire, earthquake, energy shortages,
flooding or other natural disasters. Such disruptions could cause delays in shipments of our products to
our customers. We provide no assurance. that alternate production capacity would be avaitable if a
major disruption were to occur or that, if it were available, it could be obtained on favorable terms. Such
disruption could result in cancellation of orders or loss of customers, which would have a material
adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We face competition from one company and may face competition from additional competltors
who enter the market.

We currently have one significant competitor that sells light sources for DUV photolithography
applications. This competitor, Gigaphoton, is a joint venture between two large companies, Komatsu
and Ushio, and is headquartered in Japan. Gigaphoton is aggressively trying to gain larger market
penetration in the excimer light source industry. We know that our customers have purchased products
from this competitor and that our customers have approved this competitor's light sources for use W|th
their products. o

Larger companies with substantially greater resources, such as other manufacturers of
industrial light sources for advanced lithography, may attempt to sell competitive products to our
customers. Potential competitors may also be attracted to our growing installed base of light sources
which represents a steady and significant consumable and spare parts revenue stream for us, and they
may attempt to supply consumable and spare parts to that installed base. If any existing or future
competitors gain market acceptance, we could tose market share and our growth could slow or decline,
which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We depend on key personnel, especially management and technical personnel, who may be
difﬁt;_ult to attract and retain.

We are highly dependent on the services of many key employees in various areas, including:

research and development;
engineering;
-sales and marketing;

field service and support;
manufacturing; and
management.

® & & & 8
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In particular, there are a limited number of experts in excimer light source technology, and we.
require highly skilled hardware and software engineers. Competition for qualified personnel is intense
and we cannot guarantee that we will be able to-continue to attract and retain qualified personnel as
needed. We do not have employment agreements with most of our employees We believe that our
future growth and operating results will depend on- : |

+ the continued services of our research and development, engineering, sales and marketing,
field service and support, manufacturing, and management personnel;
» our ability to attract, train and retain highly-skilled key personnel; and

.the ability of our personnel and key employees to contlnue fo expand tram and manage our

employee base.

If we are unable to hire, train and retain key personnel as required, our operatrng results
financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected. A
. Economic, polmcal regulatory and other ‘events in geographic areas where we have significant
. sales or operatlons could interfere with our busmess
We serve an increasingly global market A large portion ofiour total reyenues is derived from
. customers located outside of the U.S. We expect our international 'sales to continue to account for a
- very large portion of our total revenues. In order to support our foreign’ customers, we maintain a
. manufacturing and field service subsidiary in Korea as well as field service and support subsidiaries in
Japan the Netherlands the People’s Republrc of China, Singapore ar;ld Taiwan. *
' We may not be able to manage our operations to address and support our global customers
" effectively. Further, our investments in these types of actrvrtres may not make us competitive in the

. global market or we may not be able to meet the serwce support and manufactunng levels required by
our global customers -

- . . [ .

Addrtronally we are subject to the risks inherent in doing busmess globally, |nclud|ng
' 5

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements; b
. fluctuations in exchange rates and currency controls;
political and economic conditions and instability;
imposition of trade barriers and restrictions, including changes in tariff and freight rates,
foreign customs and duties;
difficulty in coordinating our management and operatrons in several different countries;
difficulties in staffing and managing foreign subsidiary and branch operatrons .
limited intellectual property protection in some countries; b i
potentially adverse tax consequences’in some countries; |
the possibility of accounts receivable collection difficulties;
- in the case of Asia, the risk of business interruption and damage from earthquakes; .

the effect of acts of terrorism and war; and

the burdens of complying with a variety of foréign laws. "

* & o @

Many of our major customers and many of the chipmakers who use our Ilght source products in
therr photolithography. systems are located in Asia. Economic problems and currency fluctuations
affecting these regions in Asia could create a larger risk for us. Further even though it has not been
difficult for us to comply with U.S. export controls, these export rules ‘could change in the future’ and
make it more difficult or impossible for us to export our products to many countries. Any of -these

vulnerabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, fmancnal condition and results of

operatlons
!
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Our ability to compete could be jeopardized if we are unable to protect our intellectual property
rights. These types of claims could seriously harm our busmess or requnre us to incur
srgnlf' icant costs

We believe our success and ability to compete depend in large part upon protectlng aur
proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of patent, trade secret, copyright and trademark laws,
nondisclosure and other contractual agreements and technical measures to protect our proprietary
rights.

As of December 31, 2006, we owned 254 U.S. patents covering certain aspects of technology
related to light sources and piezo techniques. These patents will expire at various times during the
period from January 2008 to September 2025. As of December 31, 2006, we had applied for 137
additional patents in the U.S. As of December 31, 2006, we owned 396 foreign patents and had 373
patent applications pending in various foreign countrles

Our pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved. Qur.patents
might not provide us with a competitive advantage and may be challenged by third parties. In addition,

~ third parties’ patents might have an adverse effect on our ability to do business. As a result of cost

constraints, we did not begin seeking patent protection in Japan and other countries for our inventions
that are covered by u.s. patents and patent applications until 1993. As a result we do not have the right
to seek foreign patent protection for some of our early inventions. Addltlonally, laws of some foreign
countries in which our products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, including various
countries in Asia, may not protect our products or inteilectual property rights to the same extent as do
the laws of the U.S. Thus, the likelihood of piracy of our technology and products is greater in these
countries. Further, third parties might independently develop similar products, duplicate our products, or
desrgn around patents that are granted to us. .

Other companies or persons may have filed or may file in the future patent applications that are
similar or identical to ours. We may have to participate in appropriate proceedings in the courts or the
patent offices to determine the priority of inventions. These.proceedings may determine that these third-
party patent applications have priority over our patent applications. Loss of priority in these interference
proceedings could result in substantial cost to us.

. We also rely on the following to protect our confidential information and our other intellectual
property:

-trade secret protection;
employee nondisclosure agreements
third-party nondisclosure agreements; and
other intellectual property protection methods.

However, we may not be successful in protecting our confidential |nformat|on and intellectual
property, particularly our trade secrets, because third parties may

+ independently develop substantrally the same proprietary information and techniques;
* gain access o our trade secrets; or :
s disclose our technology.

The parties to whom we provide research and development services may dispute the ownershrp
of the intellectual property that we develop performing these services.

"“In the past, funds from research and development arrangements with third parties have been
used to pay for a portion of our own research and development expenses. We receive these funds from
government-sponsored programs and customers, in connection with our designing and developing-
specific products. Periodically, funds from Irthography tool manufacturers and chipmakers are used to
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fund a small portion of our research and development expenses. In providing these research and
development services to these manufacturers, we try to make clear who owns the intellectual property
that resuits from the research and development services we perform. However, disputes over the
ownership or rights to use or market this intellectual property may arise between the funding
organizations and us. Any dispute over ownership of the intellectual property we develop could restrict
our ability to'market our products and have a material adverse effect on our business.

In the future, we may be subject to patent litigation to enforce patents issued to us and defend
ourselves against claimed infringement by our competitor or any other third party.

Third parties have notified us in the past, and may notify us in the future, that we are infringing
their intellectual property rights. Also, we have notified third parties in the past, and may notify them in
the future, that they may be mfnngmg our intellectual property rights.

Specifically, Komatsu notified us in 1996 that we may be infringing" some of its Japanese
patents. During our subsequent discussions, Komatsu also asserted that our former Japanese
manufacturing partner, Seiko, or we may be infringing on some of Komatsu's U.S. patents and a
number of its additional Japanese patents. Komatsu has also notified one of our customers, Nikon, of its
belief that our light sources infringe several of Komatsu’s Japanese and U.S. patents. As a result, we
started proceedings in the Japanese Patent Office to oppose certain patents and patent applications of
Komatsu. The Japanese Patent Office has dismissed our opposition claims. Thus, litigation may result
in connection with Komatsu's Japanese patents or U.S. patenis. Also, Komatsu might claim that we
infringe other-or additional patents. Komatsu notified Seiko that it intends to enforce its rights against
Seiko with respect to its Japanese patents if Seiko continued to engage in manufacturing activities for
us. In connection with our former manufacturing agreement with Seiko, we agreed to pay Seiko under
certain conditions for damages associated with these types of claims. Seiko may not prevail in any
litigation against Komatsu, and therefore, we may be required to pay Seiko for such damages.

-

We have notified our competitor and others of our U.S, patent portfolio.” Specifically, we have

" notified Komatsu that it may be infringing some of our U.S. patents. We have discussed with Komatsu

our claims against each other. Komatsu challenged one of our U.S. patents in the United States Patent

" and Trademark Office (“USPTO") but our patent was subsequently re-issued by the USPTO. Also,

Komatsu transferred its lithography light source business to our competitor, Gigaphoton. We also have
had discussions with a former competitor, Lambda-Physik (a subsidiary of Coherent, Inc.), regarding

" allegations by each party against the other for possible patent infringement. Any of these discussions

with our competitor or former competitor may not be successful and Il.tlgatlon could result.

In the future, patent litigation may result due to a claim of infringement by our competitor or any
other third party or may be necessary to enforce patents issued to us. Any such litigation could result in
substantial cost to us and diversion of our effort, which would have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition.and operating results. Furthermore, our customers and the end-users of our products
might assert other claims for indemnification that arise from infringement ctaims against them. If these
assertions are successful, our business, financial condition and operating results may be matenally
affected. Instead of fitigation, or as a result thereof, we may seek a license from third parties to use their

" intellectual property. However, we may not be able to obtain a license. Alternatively, we may design

around the third party’s intellectual property rights or we may challenge these claims in legal
proceedings. Any adverse determination in a legal proceeding ‘could result in one or more of the

. following, any of which could harm our business, financial condition and operating results:

. Ioss of our proprietary rights;
exposure to significant liabilities by other third parties;
requirement that we get a license from third parties on terms that are not favorable to us; or
restriction from manufacturing or selling our products.

+
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Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention of our
management and technical personnel, which would materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations. : :

We may acquire a busmess or enter a new market that will involve numerous risks. We may not
be able to address these risks successfully without substantial expense, delay or other
operational and financial challenges.

The risks involved with acquiring a new company, forming a joint venture, or entering a new
market include the following:

+ diversion of managements attentlon and resources to integrate the new company or new
business opportunity; '
e failure to retain key personnel;
» client dissatisfaction or performance problems with the acquired company or new product in
a new market;
» amortization of acquired definite-lived intangible assets and deferred compensation;
costs associated wrth acqursmons and joint ventures and the |ntegrat|on of acquired
. Operations;
* cosis associated with developlng marketing, introducing and supporting a new product in a
‘new market; ’
failure to commercialize purchased technologies;
*» ability of the acquired companies, joint ventures or new markets to meet their fi nancnal
. projections;
¢ assumption of unknown liabilities or other unanticipated events or crrcumstances. and
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations, NASDAQ Stock
Market rules and new accounting pronouncements as they relate to the new company or
joint venture :

Mergers acquusutlons and joint ventures, as well as entry into new markets, are inherently
subject to multiple” significant risks, and the inability to effectively manage these risks could have a
material adverse effect on our business. In July 2005, we formed our TCZ joint venture with Zeiss to
produce tools for the manufacture of flat panel displays. This is a new market for both Cymer and Zeiss
and may involve numerous risks.. Any of these risks could materially harm our business, financial
condition and operating resufts. Further any business that we acquire, joint venture that we form or new
market we may enter may not achieve anticipated revenues or operating results.

Compliance with changlng regulatlons of corporate ‘governance and public dlsclosure may
result in additional expenses )

© Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public
disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxléy Act of 2002, new SEC regulations, including accelerated SEC
filing timelines and new Proxy rules, new NASDAQ Stock Market rules, and new accounting
pronouncements are creating uncertainty and additional complexities for companies such as ours. In
particular, the Section 404 internal control evaluation requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act have
added and will continue to add complexity and costs to our business and require a significant
investment of our time and resources to complete each year. We take these requirements seriously
and expect to continue to make every effort to ensure that we receive clean attestations on our internal
controls each year from our outside auditors. To rmaintain high standards of corporate governance and
public disclosure, we intend to invest all reasonably necessary resources to comply with all cther
evolving standards. These investments may result in increased general and administrative expenses
and a diversion of management time and attention from strategic revenue generating and cost
management activities. '
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Decreased effectiveness of equity compensation could adversely affect our ability to attract and

retain employees, and changes in accounting for equity compensatlon could adversely affect
earnings.

* We have historically used broad based stock option programs and other forms of equity-related
incentives as a key component of our employee compensation packages. We believe that stock options
and other long-term equity incentives directly motivate a broader base of employees to maximize long-
term stockholder value and, through the use of long-term vesting, encourage employées to remain with
us. In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (“SFAS No. 123R"), "Share-Based Payment -— An
Amendment to Statement Nos. 123 and 95,” which we adopted on January 1, 2006. This rule requires
us to record an expense to earnings for employee stock option:grants and other equity incentives.
Moreover, applicable stock exchange listing standards relating to obtaining stockholder approval of
equity compensation plans has made it more difficult and expensive for us to grant options to
employees, which has resulted in changes to our equity compensation strategy, including a significant
reduction in the number of stock options granted to employees. We have developed alternative cash
compensation arrangements for our employees to replace the majority of these stock option programs
and may be required to offer additional alternative cash compensation arrangements in the future.
These and other developments in the provision of equity compensation to employees could make it
more difficult to attract, retain and motivate employees, and such a change in accounting rules and

alternative cash compensation programs may adversely |mpact our future operatlng resulis, financial
condition and cash flows. .

We are dependent on air transport to conduct our business and disruption of domestic and
international air transport systems could adversely affect our business.

We depend on regular and reliable air transportation on a worldwide basis for many of our
routine business functions. If civil aviation in the U.S. or abroad is disrupted by terrorist activities or

security responses to ‘the threat of terrorism or for any other reason, our business could be adversely
affected i ln the followmg ways .

. supplles of raw materials and components for the manufacture of our products or our
customers’ products may be disrupted; -

» we may not be able to deliver our products to our customers in a timely manner;

* we may not be able to provide timely service of or support for installed light sources for
chlpmakers and

e our sales and marketing efforts may be dlsrupted

' We are exposed to risks related to the fluctuations in the currency exchange rates for all foreign
" currem:les in which we do busmess, but particularly for the Japanese yen.

‘'When we sell products to our Japanese subsidiary, the sale is denominated in U.S. dollars.

' When our Japanese subsidiary sells our products directly to’ customers in Japan the sale is
' denominated in Japanese yen. Thus, our results of operations may, fluctuate based on the changing
- value of the Japanese yen to the U.S. dollar. We manage the exposure of our Japanese subsidiary to

- these fluctuations through forward contracts to hedge the subsndlarys purchase commitments. We will
continue to monitor our exposure to these currency fluctuations, and, when appropriate, use hedging
_transactions to minimize the effect of these currency fluctuations. However exchange rate fluctuations
-may still have a material adverse effect on our operating results. .In the future, we may need to sell a
~more significant portion of our’products in foreign currencies other than the Japanese yen and the

- management of more currency fluctuations will be more difficult and expose us to greater risks in this
rarea.
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We are subject to many standards and regulations of foreign governments and, even though we
intend to comply, we may not always be in compliance with these rules, or we may be unable to
design or redesign our products to comply with these rules,

Many foreign government standards and regulations apply to our products. These standards
and regulations are always being amended. Although we intend to meet all foreign standards and
regulations, our products may not comply with these foreign government standards and regulations.
Further, it might not be cost effective for us to redesign our products to comply with these foreign
government standards and regulations. Our inability to design products to comply w:th foreign
standards therefore could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Chipmakers’ prolonged use of our products in high volume production may not produce the
results they desire and, as a result, our reputation and that of our customers who supply
photolithography tools to the chipmakers could be damaged in the semiconductor industry.

Over time, our light source products may not meet chipmakers' production specifications or
operating cost requirements after the light source has been used for a'long period in high volume
production. If any chipmaker cannot successfully achieve or sustain their volume production using our
light sources, our reputation could be damaged with chipmakers and lithography tool manufacturers.
This would harm our business.

Our operations are subject to environmental and other government regulétions that may expose
us to liabilities for noncompliance.

We are subject to federal, state and local regulations, such as regulations related to the
environment, land use, public utility utilization and the fire code, in connection with the storage,
handling, discharge and disposal of substances that we use in our manufacturing process and on our
facilities. We believe that our activities comply with current government regulations that are applicable
to our operations and current facilities. We may be required to purchase additional capital equipment or
other requirements for our processes to comply with these government regulations in the future if they
change. Further, these government regulations may restrict us from expanding our operations. Adopting
measures to comply with changes in the government regulations, our failure to comply with
environmental and land use regulations, or restrictions on our ability to discharge hazardous
substances, could subject us to future liability or cause our manufacturing operations to be reduced or
stopped.

Our products are subject to potential product liability claims if personal injury or death resuits
from their use.

We are exposed to significant risks for product fiability claims if personal injury or death results
from the use of our products. We may experience material product liability losses in the future. We
maintain insurance against product liability claims. However, our insurance coverage may not continue
to be available on terms that we accept. This insurance coverage also may not adequately cover
liabilities that we incur. Further, if our products are defective, we may be required to recall or redesign
these products, A successful claim against us that exceeds our insurance coverage level, or any claim
or product recall that results in adverse publicity against us, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Trademark infringement claims agamst our registered and unregistered trademarks would be
expensive and we may have to stop using such trademarks and pay damages.

We registered the trademarks “CYMER” and “INSIST ON CYMER" and others in.the U.S. and
in some other countries. We are also trying to register additional trademarks in the U.S. and in other
countries. We use these trademarks and many other marks in our advertisements and other business
materials, which are distributed throughout the world. We may be subject to trademark infringement
actions for using these marks and other. marks on a worldwide basis which would be costly to defend. If
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a trademark infringement action were successful, we would have to stop using one or more.of the marks
and possibly pay damages. . i

The pnce of our common stock has fluctuated and may continue to ﬂuctuate widely.

The price of cur common stock has fluctuated in the past The market price of our common
stock will continue to be subject to significant fluctuations in the: future in response to a variety of factors,
including the risk factors contained in this report.

Various factors may signiﬁcantly affect the market price of our common stock, including:

the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry;

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results |nclud|ng our net income, product
gross margins and free cash flow; ¥

conditions’and trends in the light source device and other technology industries;
announcements of innovations in technology; - '

new products offered by us or our competitor;

developments of patents or proprietary rights; ;

changes in financial estimates by securities analysts; !

general worldwide political, economic, and market conditions;

U.S. political, economic, and market conditions; and

failure to properly manage any smgle or combination of risk factors Ilsted in this section.

® 0 0 8 0 0 @ 0

In addition, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have
particularly affected the market price for many high technology companies. Such fluctuations have in
some cases been unrelated to the operating performance of these ¢companies. Severe price fluctuations
in a company's stock have frequently been followed by securities litigation. Any such litigation can
_result in substantial costs and a diversion of management's attention and resources and therefore could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
]
Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

1
i
'
i
'

“None.
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Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters is focated in San Diego, California and includes our executive and
administrative offices, manufacturing, engineering, services, and research and development facilities. In
addition, we also have field service offices located throughout the U.S. and internationally, a
manufacturing facility located in Korea that we use to refurbish chamber assemblies, and a small office
in Singapore which is the headquarter office for our TCZ joint venture. We currently have leases for
buildings we no longer occupy in San Diego, California and Charlestown, Massachusetts, but we
sublease all or a major portion of these facilities.

"At December 31, 2006, details on our principal leased and owned properties were as follows:

Total
Lease " Square o
Location Expiration Footage Primary Usage / Status
San Diego, California (1) Owned 135,000 Corporate headquarters, engineering,
) research and development facilities
San Diego, California (1} Owned . 265,000 Manufacturing and administrative office
San Diego, California January 2010 . 108,290 - Facllity subleased
San Diego, California January 2010 36,959 Facility subleased
San Diego, California January 2010 61,300 Facility subleased
Charlestown, Massachusetts October 2007 21,262 11,262 square feet subleased
o ’ 10,000 square feet vacant
Motoyawata, Japan June 2008 13,831 . Field service and sales office
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan June 2008 4,821 Field service and sales office
Goldenhill Plaza, Singapore June 2009 3,315 Field service and sales office
Unity Centre, Singapore January 2008 1,200 Administrative office (TCZ)
Maarssen, Netherlands May 2009 3,715 Field service and sales office
Veldhoven, Netherlands December 2008 2,605 Field service and sales office
Pyongtaek-city, Kyonggi, Korea - Land (2) December 2020
- Building Owned 26,000 Manufacturlng sales and admmlstralive
Pudong, Shanghai, China 4,748 Field service and sales office

October 2008

(1) Land'and building are owned by us.
(2) Land leased through December 2020.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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item 5. Market for Registrant's Common

Purchases of Equity Secuntles

PART Il !

Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
|

1 ' - Our common stock is publlcly traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol

“CYMI": The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the:high and low prices of our common

stock as reported by the NASDAQ Globat Select Market

L
1

1

Year ended December 31, 2005 e High : Low
: First quarter . ' $ 3000 |, % 2265 .
' ‘ Second quarter $ 2813 % 2296
t Third quarter $ 3643 ‘% 2607 -
: Fourth quarter . $ 4043 "'$ 3046

Year ended December 31, 2006 e -

" First quarter ' $ 5038 ., $ 3513

Second quarter $ 56.69 $ 4224

. . Third quarter $ 47:20 . $ 3375
i Fourth quarter $ 5003 $ 4222

The closmg sales price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was 544 10

! on February 23, 2007 and there were 235 registered holders of record as of that date.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and currently do not

t antlmpate paying cash dividends in the future

The information required to be dlsclosed by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K “Securities

| Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans” is |ncorporated herein by reference to our
i Proxy Statement for our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders.

|
1

i
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1
¢
!
|
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated. financial data should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and with Item 7, "Managements Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” which are included elsewhere in this report.

Years ended Dacember 31,
2002 2003 2004 () 2005 2006
(in thousands, except per share data and footnotes)

Consolidated Statements of Operaiions Data: _ ) _
Product sales - $ 287995 $ 265816 - $ 417296 $ 382638 § 543460

Other ) o 871 57 783 1,010 395

Total revenues _ ' 288,866 265873 418,079 303,648 543,855

- Costs and expenses: ) o .
Cost of product sales X 162,095 - 187,679 243,473 227,290 281,243

Research and development (1) T 72,580 56,768 58,612 64,025 73,974
Sales and marketing _ ’ 17,153 16,966 23,369 25,143 T 30,618
‘General and administrative . 18,212 39,094 31,630 26,514 38,889
" Total costs and expenses o T 270,040 300,507 357,084 342,972 424,724
Operating income (loss) ' b 18,826 (34,634 60,995 40,676 119,131
Other incomé {expense) — net (2,077) (1,139) {421) . 5,112 18,561
Income (loss) before income tax . . .
provision (benefit) and minority interest .. 16,748 (35,773) 60,574 - 45788 - 138,692
Income tax provision (benefit) 2,706 {21,4584) - 15,144 262 - 46,137
Minority interest ’ (447) {1,091) (2,276) 1,026 3,093
Net income (loss) . $ 13596 $ (15400) §$ 43154 § 46552 § 95648
Basic eamings (loss) per share ) ' $ 0.41 $§ (044) $ 1.17 $ 129 § 253
Weighted average common shares ' ' e
oulstanding 33,317 35,065 36,758 - 36,017 37,779
Diluted earnings (loss) per share L . $ 039 $  (0.44) $. 1.15 $ 127 § 240
Weighted average common and dilutive . . .
potential common shares outstanding - 4712 . 35,065 37,584 36,544 41,397
As of December 31,
2002 2003 2004 (2) 2005 2006 -

{in thousands, except footnotes)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 92273 $ 110,632 $ 114246 § 233,745 § 302,098
Working capital _ 351,127 397,790 452,579 499,670 686,702
Total assets 766,887 809,244 818,836 791,376 949,004
Total long-term liabilities ‘ 255,154 261,627 208,035 151,304 155,503
Treasury stock . - - - (50,000) {150,704)

Stockholders’ equity _ 412,334 453,330 517,320 538,454 687,894
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(1) Includes amortization of intangible assets associated with the acquisition of ACX in February 2001. These amounts were
previously shown as a separate line on the consolidated financial statements. Amortization of intangible assets totaled
$160,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 and $20,000 for the year ended December 31,
2005. As of December 31, 2005 these intangible assets were fully amortized. | .

{2) During the fourth quarter of 2004, we corrected our accounting treatment for our parts refurbishment activities and all
amounts associated with this correction are included in 2004. This adjustment resulted in a $2.9 million increase in the
inventory balance as of December 31, 2004, a $28.5 million increase in 2004 product revenues, a $25.6 million increase in
2004 cost of product sales, and a $2.0 million increase in 2004 net income. See ltem 7, “Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” under the caption “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” for a
description of our current accounting treatment for our parts refurbishment activities.

item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our fi bancral ¢éondition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto mciuded in this Annuai Report
on Form 10-K.

Lt

Overview

We are the world's leading supplier of light source solutions for the semiconductor industry. Our
products provide the essential light source for DUV photolithography systems. Almost all consumer
electronic devices manufactured in the last several years contain a semiconductor manufactured using
light sources such as ours. We currently supply light sources to all three lithography tool manufacturers,
ASML, Canon, and Nikon, who in turn supply their wafer steppers and scanners to chipmakers. In
addition, we sell replacement parts and-services to the lithography tool manufacturers as well as directly
to the chipmakers. Our light source systems currently constitute a substantial majority of all excimer
light sources incorporated in lithography stepper and scanner tools. Our headquarters are located in
San Diego, California where we' develop and manufacture all of our light source systems and the
majority of our replacement parts. As a large portion of our revenue is derived from customers located
. outside of the U.S., we maintain a spare parts refurbishment facility and field service office in Korea and

field service ‘and support offices in Japan, the Netherlands, the People's Republic of China, Singapore
and Taiwan: Japan is currently our only subsidiary office that sells excimer light source systems. We
also maintain field service offices in the U.S. to service our installed base of light sources located in the
u.s.

Our TCZ joint venture which is headquartered in Singapore, is currently developing, and will
integrate, market and sell, and support production tools for the flat panel display manufacturing industry.
The joint venture is targeting the growing market for LTPS processing used in the manufacture of liquid
crystal displays that are brighter, have higher resolution, and consume less power than displays using
" todays predominant amorphous silicon fims. Although TCZ's product is currently in the development
phase, TCZ performed extensive customer demonstrations on its fi rst generatlon demonstration tool in
2006 and we expect that TCZ will ship its first production tool, the TCZ 900X, in late 2007 or early 2008.

_ Since we derive a substantial portion of our revenues from Iithogfaphy tool manufacturers, we
are subject to the volatile and unpredictable nature of the semiconductor industry. The semiconductor
industry is highly cyclical in nature and historically has experienced periodic ups and downs, and the
activities of the last several years illustrate this cyclicality. (n 2000, the semiconductor industry
experienced strong growth, which was followed by a three year downturn from 2001 through late 2003.
Growth resumed in late 2003, but one year later, in late 2004, the industry again declined for several

. months. Business actn\nty then leveled off early in 2005 and began to slightly improve quarter-over-

quarter thereafter until late 2005, when orders for our light sources increased substantially from the

levels seen earlier in the year. Our chipmaker customers began mdlcatlng that increasing demand for
chips would require them to expand production capacity, and our lithography tool manufacturing

' customers began placing orders for a growing number of light sources to meet increasing demand for

' scanners. By the end of 2005, it appeared that we were again entering a strong industry growth cycle
and upturn.
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There were many positive indicators throughout 2006 that reinforced our \newpomt that we had
entered an upturn in the semiconductor industry, which included: ‘

= Strong continuing demand for our ArF light sources-as chipmakers purchased systems
to enable production at advanced technology nodes.

* Stronger than anticipated demand for our' KrF light sources, which chipmakers
purchased to expand production capacity and-pattern a growing number of less critical
layers with DUV light sources.

« Substantial ongoing growth in our non-systems revenue which was driven by h|gh hght
source utilization at chipmakers and high overall fab utilization.

~ As aresult of these strong demand trends, our bookings, revenue and profits grew substantially
in 2006 compared to 2005. In 2008, we achieved record total revenue of $543.9 million, a 42%
increase over total revenue of $383.6 million in 2005. Utilization of our light sdurce systems at
chipmakers also continued to increase in 2006 compared to 2005. This increased utilization when
coupled with our growing installed base of light sources systems drove our non-systems product
revenue, which consists of consumables and spare parts, upgrades, and service, to a record $261.0
million for 2006, equal to 48% of total revenue for the year. This was a 49% increase over the $175.2
million in non-systems revenue in 2005. Operating income climbed to a record $119.1 million, yielding
an operating margin of 21.9% for the year, ‘compared to 2005 operating income of $40.7 million and
operating margin of 10.6%. Net income for 2006 also reached a record high of $95.6 million, equal to
$2.40 per share fully diluted, compared to net income of $46.6 million, equal to $1.27 per share fully
diluted, in 2005. Our strong financial performance in 2006 allowed us to continue investing heavily in
developing advanced DUV technologies to meet our customers' next generation requirements. It also
allowed us to make progress on our longer-term, growth initiatives such as EUV development and the
activities of our TCZ joint venture

Demand for our most advanced ArF light sources grew more than 20% in 2006 compared to
2005, and we shipped a total of 122 of our.XLA Series light sources during the year. In 2008,
lithography tcol manufacturing customers ramped up their first wave of ArF immersion scanner
production. Many of the immersion tools deliveréd earlier in 2006 were used primarily by chipmakers for
process development purposes mcludlng deféct reduction. As chipmakers experienced success in
qualifying their immersion production processes they moved these tools from qualification into full
production, and will augment them with additional immersion tool purchases to increase critical layer
capacity. At this time, immersion lithography is a production reality at a number of chipmakers’ fabs,
and our expectation is that a.growing number of chipmakers will adopt this advanced production
technique over the next several years.

In general, industry trends that affect lithography are positive. Leading NAND Flash memory
manufacturers began using ArF immersion lithography in production near the end of 2006, and we
anticipate that demand for immersion tools should grow this year as they continue to drive production
with smaller CDs and expand the number of layers they need to pattern with ArF immersion tools.
Demand in the dynamic random access memory (*“DRAM”) segment of the market is strong, driven by
the transition to more advanced types of memory chips and by the large memory requirements of the
Microsoft Vista operating system: Foundries are primarily making technology buys rather than
expanding capacity, but indications from the foundries and lithography tool manufacturers point toward
additional capacity-driven growth in equipment orders beginning in the next few quarters. Demand from
integrated device manufacturers (“IDMs”) remains healthy and should be stable over the near and mid-
term. Although fab utilization experienced a slight decline late in 2006, fab utilization at the 90 nm
production node and below continues to be strong. Additionally, the 65 nm production ramp is well
underway, and 21 new fabs are expected to be in or entering production at that node by the end of
2007. Currently, there are significant research and development efforts underway at the 45 nm node,
which is driving demand, and the first leading edge chipmakers are expected to begin production at 45
nm by the end of 2007. ' '
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Based on current market trends, we believe that mtegrated circuit (“IC”) unit growth in. 2007 will
be in the high single digit to low double digit range. We expect. that chipmakers' capita! spending in
2007 will be down slightly from the 2006 level as they continue to work down chip inventories and
attempt to match capacity expansion to market demand. If this:$cenario is realized, we expect that
v 7 demand for DUV lithography tools in 2007 will be relatively flat tolnshghtly down in units compared with
2006, but that growth in demand for higher priced ArF tools, and partacularly for ArF immersion will drive
; . overall revenue growth in lithography. In-addition we also expect our KrF and non- -systems revenue
~ streams to, at a minimum, remain stable. We therefore anticipate 'that 2007 revenue 'may grow slightly
* above-the 2006 levels. However, macro-economic factors, such as high energy prices and interest
rates, could have a negative impact on consumer spending, including spending on electronic devices.
Additicnally, geopolitical turmcil can create.a heightened sense of uncertainty that can cause
consumers to become more cautious in their spending. Elther or both of these factors would have a
negative effect on the demand for our products.

- Dunng the course of 2006, we focused on better serving our customers, building a better
company, and creating shareholder value. We introduced an mnovatwe new light source, we enhanced
. overall operating efficiencies, and achieved record earnings and cash generation. In 2006, we
generated a record $115.8 million in cash from operations and in'the third quarter of 2006, we used
$100.7 million in cash to repurchase 2.6 million shares of our common stock in the open market. We
expect to continue generating substantial levels of cash from operations in 2007 and we will continue to

explore opportunities for the most effective use of our cash mcludlng addmonal buybacks of our
common stock. .

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ANI.'i ESTIMATES

General
. o

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon
, our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
- statements requires us to make estimates and use judgment that may impact the reported.amounts of
.-assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and-iiabilities. As a
' part of our ongoing internal processes, we regularly evaluate our estimates and judgments associated
. with revenue recognition, valuation of parts used in our refurbishment manufacturing process, inventory
- aflowances, warranty provisions, stock-based compensation, mcome taxes, allowances for bad debts,
. lang-lived assets valuation, intangible assets valuation, and contmgenmes and litigation, We base these
.estimates and judgments upon historical information and other facts and assumptions that we believe to
be valid and/or reasonable under the circumstances. These assumptions and facts form the basis for
'making judgments and estimates and for determining the carrying vaiues of our assets and liabilities
‘that are not apparent from other sources. Actual results could-vary from our estimates if we were to use

different assumptlons and conditions. .

*

We believe that revenue recognition, valuation of parts used in,our refurbishment-manufacturing
process, inventory allowances, warranty provisions, stock-based compensation, and income taxes
require more significant judgments and estimates in the preparatidn of our consolidated financial
statements than do other of our accounting estimates and Judgments ;

[
1

Revenue Recognition . ‘ -
- Our revenues consist of product sales, which include sales of light source systems, consumable
and spare parts, upgrades, service, service contracts, fraining, and limited refurbishments of light source-
systems. Our revenues also consist of certain funded development activities pefformed for our
customers and under government contracts and Iicense agreements.

The sales of our light source systems generally include tralning and installation services. We
dptermined these elements qualify as one unit of accounting under Emerging Issues Task Force
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- (“EVTF") Bulletin No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multipie Deliverables" as we do not have
evidence of fair value for the undelivered training and installation elements. Furthermore, we determined
that the undelivered training and installation elements are perfunctory performance obligations and are
not essential to the functionality of our light source systems. Therefore, in accordance with the
provisions of Staff Accounting Builetin No. 104, we recognize revenue when the revenue recognition *
criteria are met for the light source system, and accrue the costs of providing the training and installation
services. We recognize light source system revenue at one.of following three points, depending on the
terms of our arrangement with our customer — 1) shipment of the light source system, 2) delivery of the
light source system or 3) receipt of an acceptance certificate. For the majority of our tight source system
sales, the shipping terms are F.O.B. shipping point and revenue is recogmzed upen shipment. For our
arrangements which include F.O.B. destination shipping terms, revenue is recognized upon delivery of
the light source system to our customer Lastly, one of our arrangements includes an acceptance
provision, which is satisfied by the issuance of an acceptance certificate by the customer. For these

transactions, we recognize revenue upon receipt of the acceptance certificate. In addition, we test our . '

light source systems in environments similar to those used by our customers prior to shipment-to ensure
that they meet published specifications.

Revenue from consumables and spare parts sales is recognized at the point that legal title
passes to the customer, which is upon shipment from our faciiity. For a significant portion of our spaie
parts sales, our customers return the consumed assembly to us as part of the sale of the new part. We
reuse some of the material within these core assemblies, mainly metal components, for the future build
of core assemblies. As a result, our revenue consists of both cash and the value of the reusable parts
received from our customers as consideration for these spare part sales. Revenue associated with our
customers' return of core assemblies is recognized upon receipt of the returned core assembly. The
amount of the revenue is determined based upon the fair value of the reusable parts that we expect to
yield from the returned core assembly based on historical experience. Service and tralnmg revenue is
recognized as the servuces are rendered.

On a very limited basis, we refurbish light source systems owned by our customers to their
original-or new condition. Revenue from refurbished light 'source systems is recognized when the
refurbishment process has been completed and, dependmg upon the customer, the proper delivery or
acceptance terms have been met:

For funded development contracts, funds received are accounted for on the percentage-of-
completion methodbased on the relationship of costs incurred to total estimated costs. Revenues
generated from these types of funded development contracts are, except as noted below, included in
other revenue, and are derived from cost sharing contracts between certain customers and us. If
milestones on these funded development contracts require that specific results be achieved or reported
by us, revenue is not recognized until that milestone is completed. For some of the funded development
contracts that we enter into with customers and government agencies, we evaluate certain criteria to
determine whether recording the funds received as revenue is appropriaie. If certain conditions are
met, these funds are not recorded as revenue but rather are offset against our own mternal research
and development expenses in the period that the milestone is achieved.

Accounting for Parts Used in Refurbishment Manufacturing Process

Over the last several years as part of our regular business activities, we have conducted
significant parts refurbishment and material reclaim activities related to some of our core assemblies, in
particular our chamber assemblies. The volume of this activity significantly increased in 2004 and we
expect volumes to increase over time as our installed base of light sources continues to rise and we
become more efficient in these refurbishment activities and develop capabilities to reclaim material from
and refurbish other core assemblies. These activities involve arrangements with our customers where
we sell a new part to the customer at a reduced sales price if the customer returns the consumed
assembly that the new part replaces. These returned core assemblies contain a certain amount of
material, primarily metal components, that may be reused by us in future core assemblies. Upon receipt
of these consumed core assembilies from our customers, we record an entry to recognize the estimated
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fair value of the reusable components either 1) as revenue if the return of the core assembly relates to a
spare part replacement sale or 2) as a reduction in cost of product sales if the return of the core
assembly is related to a part being replaced under our warranty or per the terms of an active service
contract with the customer.- The value of the reusable paris contamed within the consumed assembly is
determined based upon historical data on the value of the reusable parts that we typically yield from a
consumed assembly. As part of our normal excess and obsolete inventory analysis, these consumed
assemblies are also reviewed on a monthly basis and an inventory’ ‘allowance is recorded as'appropriate
for these parts. The value that we assign to these core assemblies can be affected by the current
demand for the reusable parts in our manufacturing operations and the actual yield rate achieved for
parts within these consumed core assemblies. . We believe that our methodology for valuing the
reusable parts within these returned core assemblies is reasonable, but any decreases in the demand
for the parts or any changes in the yield of the reusable parts included in these core assemblies could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. In 2005 and 2006,

the. amount by which the value of these core assemblies was affected by decreases in demand and
changes in yields was immaterial. !

L | L

in ventory Aflowance

We perform an analysis of our inventory allowances on at.least a quarterly basis to determine
the adequacy of this allowance on our financial statements. The amount of the inventory allowance is
determined by taking into consideration certain assumptions related to market conditions and future
demands for our products, including changes to product mix, new product introductians, and/or product
discontinuances, which may result in excess or obsolete mventory We determine the level of excess
and obsolete inventory associated with our raw materials and productron inventory, which includes all
parts on hand from our refurbishment activities, by comparing the on hand inventory balances and
inventoryon order to the next 12 months of forecasted demand. :We then adjust this calculation for
inventory that has a high likelihood of use beyond one year or can ‘be used in other products that may

. have lower demands. After this adjustment, we arrive at our total exposure for excess and obsolete
inventory within our raw materials and production inventory. As part of this analysis, we also determine
whether there are potential amounts owed to vendors as a result of cancelled or modified raw material

- orders. We estimate and record a separate liability, which is mcluded in-accrued and other liabilities in

." the accompanying balance sheets for such amounts owed. : ?

The inventory allowance totaled $10.4 m|||ton and $15.1 m|II|on at December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2006, respectively. The increase in the’ inventory allowance at December 31, 2006 as
compared 1o December 31, 2005 was primarily due to changes.in the 12 month forecasted demand
from period to period for both raw materials and consumable and spare parts, engineering change
. orders which impacted excess and obsolete levels and the updated assessment of on-hand inventory

. with no requirements beyond the 12 month forecasted demand by our senior manufactunng
management :

The methodologles used to analyze excess and obsolete mventory and determine the inventory
allowance are significantly affécted by future demand and usage ‘of our products. There are many
. factars that could potentially affect the future demand ar usage of our}products, including the following:

» Overall condition.of the semiconductor industry, which is highly cyclical'in nature;

» Rate at which our lithography tool manufacturers and chipmaker customers take delivery of

. our light source systems and our consumable and spare parts;

» Loss of any of our three major customers or a significant change in demand from any of
- ' these three customers; !

+  Overall mix of light source system models or consumable and spare parts and any changes

to that mix required by our customers; ‘
» - Utilization rates of our light sources at chipmakers; and 1
» Engineering change orders. !
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- Based upon our experience, we believe that the estimates we use in calculating the inventory
allowance are reasonable and properly reflect the risk of excess and obsolete inventory. If actual
demand or the usage periods for our inventory are substantially different from our estimates,
adjustments to our inventory aliowance may be required, which could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Warranty,Provision

We maintain an accrual for the estimated cost of product warranties associated with our product
sales. Warranty costs include the replacement parts and labor costs to repair our products during the
warranty periods. At the time revenue is recognized, we record a warranty provision, which is included
in cost of product sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The warranty
coverage period and terms for light source systems and consumable and spare parts varies by light
source system model. The warranty provision for our products is reviewed monthly and determined by
using a statistical financial mode!, which takes into consideration actual historical expenses, product
failure rates, and potential risks associated with our different products. This model is then used to
estimate future expenses related to warranty and the required warranty provision. The risk levels and
historical cost information and failure rates used within this model are reviewed throughout the year and
updated as these inputs change over the product’s life cycle. Due to the highly technical nature of our
light source system products, the newer model light sources and the modules contained within them
have higher inherent warranty risks with their initial shipments and require hngher warranty provisions
until the technology becomes more mature. 1 :

The total balance in the warranty provision accrual as of December 31, 2005 and December 31,
2006 was $30.2 million and $29.5 million, respectively. This slight decrease is primarily due to improved
warranty performance of both light source systems and consumable and spare parts resulting in lower
warranty provision requirements as calculated by our financial model and updated throughout 2006. The
improved warranty performance in 2006 is the result of proven extended lives of our consumable
modules and an increase in the level of expertise and training of our field service engineers who
perform warranty service on our light source systems and consumable and spare parts. This improved
overall warranty performance and the resulting decrease in the provision requirements was almost
completely offset by the higher level of consumables and spare parts sales in 2006 as compared to
2005 and the resulting higher level of warranty provisions to support those sales.

We actively engage in product improvement programs and processes to limit our warranty
costs, but our warranty obligation is affected by the complexity of our product, product failure rates and
costs incurred to correct those product failures at customer sites. The industry in which we operate is
subject to rapid technological change, and as a result, we periodically introduce newer, more complex .
light sources. Although we classify these newly released light source models as having a higher risk in
our warranty model resulting in higher warranty provisions, we are more likely to have differences
between the estimated and actual warranty costs for these new products This is due to-limited or no
historical product performance data on which to base our future warranty costs. Warranty provisions for
our older and more established light source models are more predictable as we have more historical
information available on these products. if actual product failure rates or estimated costs to repair those
product faitures were to differ from our estimates, revisions to our estimated warranty provision would be
required, which could harm our financial condition and results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

We grant opfions to purchase our common stock to our employees and grant stock unit awards
to our non-employee directors under our current stock plan. The benefits provided under this plan are
share-based payments subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Effective January 1, 2006, we
adopted the requirements of SFAS No. 123R which address the accounting for share-based payment
transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of
the enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or
that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. As a result of this new accounting
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requirement, our consolidated financial statements_include compensation expense as calculated per the
provisions of SFAS No.123R. In adopting SFAS No. 123R, we elected to use the modified prospective
transition method, thus our consotidated financial statements for periods prior to January 1, 2006 do not
include any impact of SFAS. No.123R. We also élected to .attribute the value..of share-based
compensation to expense using the straight-line method for awards granted after December 31, 2005
upon. our adoption of SFAS No. 123R. Compensation expense for awards outstanding and unvested as
of December 31, 2005 are being recognized over the remaining serwce period using the compensation
: expense calculated according to the pro forma disclosure prows:ons under, SFAS No. 123 which uses
| an accelerated expense recognition method for those awards W|th a graded:vesting schedule. Share-
!
)

based compensation expense related to stock options and stock units was $12.5 million before taxes for
the year ended December 31, 2006. included in this stock-based compensation expense for 2006 is
$4.2 million related to a small number of stock options that were granted primarily in-1999 for which we
used the incorrect measurement date to calculate our compensahon expense, and as a result failed to
record the related compensation expense in the correct periods. We recorded the charge in 2006 as the
i charge was neither materlal 1o 2006 or any pnor period. ‘

|

\ Upon adoptlon of SFAS No 123R on January 1, 2006 we elected to value our share-based
. payment awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,'as we had under the pro forma
- provisions of SFAS No. 123. The determination of fair value of stockl.based payment awards on the date
' of grant is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding.a number of complex. and

subjective variables. These assumptions include the expected term, of stock options and.our expected
stock price volatility over the expected term of the awards.

We determine our expected volatility by using @ combination of historical and.implied volatility,
or blended volatility, to derive our expected volatility assumption as allowed under SFAS No. 123R and
. Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107. Implied volatility is based on our six-month traded opt|ons on our
" common stock. We determined that the volatility calculated using a blend of |mplled volatility and our
’l historical volatility is more reflective of expected volatility than usmg only historical volatility. The
+ expected term of stock options represents the weighted-average period the stock options are expected
' fo remain outstanding. We determine the .expected term of our stock options based on observed
| historical exercise patterns for our company, which we believe are indicative of future exercise behavior.
' ‘

! Other assumptions required for estimating fair value under. the Black-Scholes option pricing
' model include the expected risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield of our stock. Our risk-free

y interest rate assumption is based upon currently available rates on zero coupon U.S. Government
. issues, for. the expected term of our stock optlons The expected dmdend rate is not applicable to us as

we have not historically declared or paid dividends nor do we anttcrpate paying cash dl\ﬂdends in the
future.

. ’ PN . ) .. S

SFAS No. 123R also requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and we have -
estimated our forfeitures based on historical experience. We will revise this estimate, if necessary, in
Isubsequent periods if actual forfeiture rates differ from our estlmates In our pro forma information

;required under SFAS No. 123 for periods prior to January 1, 2008, we accounted for forfeitures as they
.occurred.

. ) - ; ’ . ¥
1 If we change any of the key assumptions that we use in the Black Scholes option pricing model
such as expected volatility or expected term or if we decide to use a different valuation model in the

future or change our forfeiture rate, the compensation expense that we record under SFAS No 123R
may differ significantly in the future from what we have recorded in the current period.

' Income Taxes " o 'I

: We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No 108 (“SFAS No. 1097, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Pursuant to SFAS No. 109, a deferred tax
asset or liability is generally recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary
dlfferences net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards and tax credit carlryfonNards Deferred tax assets

. |
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are to be reduced by. a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more
likely than not that some potion or all of the deferred tax assets ‘will not be realized within the carryback
or carryforward periods. Information about an enterprise’s current financial position and its results of
operations for the current and preceding years, as well as all currently avallable information about future
years should be consudered

: 0

We have cons:dered our industry’'s outlook for the future, our hlstoncal ‘perfarmance and
estimated future taxable income, and ongoing tax planning -strategies in assessing the need for a
valuation allowance. Using this information, we have prepared a model to forecast our expected
taxable income in future years and to estimate when the benefits of our deferred tax assets are likely to
be realized. Based upon the analysis, with the exceptions noted below, we believe that it is more likely
than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize all of our
deferred tax assets within the period covered by our model and, as such, no valuation allowance has
been provided against these deferred tax assets. However, a valuation allowance has beén provided
against certain deferred tax assets related to TCZ's business and our French branch operations in the
total amount of $1.2 million, as these businesses have not yet developed sufﬂmently to allow us to
assert that these assets will ultimately be realized.

At December 31, 20086, we had federal tax credit carry'forwards of $11.7 million Wthh begln to
expire in 2018. At December 31, 2006, we had state tax credit carryforwards of $14.2 million, which
may be carried forward indefi nltely At December 31, 2006 we had foreign NOL carryforwards of $2 6
million which may be carried forward indefinitely.

A material adverse change ‘in the outlook for worldwide lithography tool sales, the expected
-selling prices or profit margins for our products or our expected share of the global market for
lithography light sources, could cause us to determine that additional valuation allowances are needed
for some or ali of our deferred tax assets, and would result in an mcrease to our income tax provision in
the penod in which such determination is made.

' Our accounting for income taxes dive effect to the phase out of the Extraterritorial Income .
Exciusion (“ETI") benefit in 2005 and 2006, and its concurrent replacement with a phased in
Manufactunng Activity deduction under Internal Revenue Code Section 199.

It is our intention to reinvest undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries and thereby
indefinitely postpone their remittance, with the exception of our TCZ joint venture, Accordingly, we have
not provided U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $58 million of undistributed earnings
from non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 2006. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of the
deferred tax liability on such unremitted eamnings. :
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain items in our consolidated statements of operations as a
percentage of total revenues for the periods indicated:

1%

+ Years ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Revenues: . ' . o
Product sales ‘ . ’ 99.8 % 99.6 % - 986 %
Product sales - related party . = 0.1 1.3
Other 0.2 0.3 0.1
Total revenues 100.0 % 100.0 % - 100 %
Cost and expenses: - _ ! ' ‘ ’
Cost of product sates ’ 58.2 59.2 51.7
Research and development ‘ 14.0 18.7 13.6
Sales and marketing ' 56 6.6 ‘5.6
General and administrative _ ‘7.6 6.9 P 7.2
- Total costs and expenses 85.4° 89.4 78.1
Operating income ' 148 10.8 219
Other income (expense) — net . - {0.1) 1.3 3.6
Income before income tax provision S .
and minority interest ° . 14.5 119 - " 255
Income tax provision ) ' : 3.6{ 0.1 8.5
Minority interest T - : (0.6) 0.3 . 0.6
Net income ' ’ ' 10.3. % 121 % 176 %
Gross margin on product sales § oo 41.71 % 40.6 % 48.3 %

+

YEARS ENbED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2006

Revefrueé. The types of revenue thét we generate and how we recognize revenue for each is
explained above under the heading “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.”
) t

The following table: summarizes the components of our revenue (in thousands, except units

“sold): \
Years ended December 31,
2004 . 2005 2006 .
- "Light source systems: '
~ Revenue ' $ ' 244,840 $! 207,402 ©  § 282,449
v Units sold ] 301 ' 207 280 .
Average selling price (1) $ = 827 B! 982. % 1,009
Consumable and spare parts and . ‘
service products $ 172,456 $ 175236 ~ § 261,011
Other revenue - $ 783 %, 1,010 $ 395
. Total revenue $ 418079  $ ' 383,848 $ 543855

3

: .- { .
(1) Calculation of average selling price includes $4.2 miilion deferred light source revenue during 2004 and excludes
$4.2 million deferred light source revenue that was recognized in 2005: We had one arrangement where a portion

of the light source system fee was not payable untit the system was installed successfully at the end-user. This
arrangement expired in March 2005.
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Product sales increased 42% from $382.6 million for 2005 to $543.5 million for 2006. The
increase in product sales was due to higher light source system revenues and continued growth in
consumable and spare parts and service product revenues for 2006 compared to 2005. Light source
system revenues increased 36% from $207.4 million for 2005 to $282.4 million for 2006. A total of 207
light source systems were sold in 2005 at an average selling price of $982,000, compared to 280 light
source systems sold in 2006 at an average selling price of $1.0 million. On a foreign currency adjusted
basis, the average selling price for 2005 was $984,000 compared to $1.0 miflion for 2006. The slight
increase in the average selling price year over year refiects a shift in the product mix from capacity
driven lower priced KrF products in 2005 to higher priced technology buys of advanced ArF products in
2006. The increase in quantities of light source systems sold from 2005 to 2006 reflects the slight
siowdown of the industry in the beginning of 2005 compared to the upturn in the semiconductor industry
in 2006. Chipmakers’ expanded capacity needs have impacted the demand for our light source
systems, which, combined with our growing installed base of light source systems, has increased the
demand for our consumables and spare parts and service products. This growth in consumable and
spare parts demand and rising tool utilization resulted in an increase in consumables and spare parts
and service revenues of 49% from $175.2 million for 2005 to $261.0 million for 2006. Consumable and
spare parts and service products revenue was also favorably impacted by the revenue recorded under a
laser replacement agreement we entered inte in 2006. Revenues from funded development contracts
were $1.0 million for 2005 compared to $395,000 for 2006. There were no revenues recorded or
earned associated with the TCZ joint venture for 2008. We expect that our first quarter 2007 revenue
will be fiat or increase slightly from the fourth quarter 2006 levels.

Our backlog at December 31, 2005 was $90.8 million compared to $94.4 million at December
31, 2006. Bookings for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2008 were $395.4 million and $547.4
million, respectively. The book-to-bill ratio for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 was 1.17
compared to 1.03 for the quarter ended December 31, 2006. The increase in the backlog is due to the
changing condition of the semiconductor industry from 2005 to 2006 and the increase in our average
selling prices from year to year due to the continued adoption of our advanced ArF products. The
backlog as of December 31, 2005 reflected the brief slowdown and flattening in the semiconductor
industry that started in late 2004 and continued into 2005, whereas the backlog as of December 31,
2006, reflects the recent growth phase and upturn in the semiconductor industry. The 38% increase in
bookings year over year was primarily due to increased orders of light source systems and
consumables and spare parts in 2006 as a result of the upturn in the semiconductor industry in 2006.

We installed 248 light sources at chipmakers and other end-users during 2005 compared to 298
light sources installed durmg 2006. ’

Sales to our three lithography tool manufacturing customers, ASML, Canon, and Nikon,
amounted to 32%, 8% and 24%, respectively, of total revenue for 2005, and 38%, 6% and 16%,
respectively, of total revenue for 2006,

Qur sales are generated primarily by shipments to customers in Europe, Japan, Korea, Taiwan,
and the U.S. Approximately 84% of our sales for both 2005 and 2006 were derived from customers
outside the U.S. We maintain a wholly owned Japanese subsidiary, Cymer Japan, which sells to our
Japanese customers. Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan,
accounted for 31% and 22% of total revenues for 2005 and 2006, respectively. The activities of Cymer
Japan are limited to sales and service of products purchased by Cymer Japan from us as the parent
corporation. We anticipate that mternat:onal sales will continue to account for a significant portion of our
sales.

Cost of Product Sales. Cost of product sales includes direct material and labor, warranty
expenses, license fees, manufacturing and service overhead, and foreign exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency forward exchange contracts (“forward contracts”) associated with purchases of our
products by Cymer Japan for resale under firm third-party sales commitments. Shipping costs
associated with our product sales are also included in cost of product sales. We do not charge our
customers for shipping fees.
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The cost of product sales increased 24%: from $227.3 million for 2005 to .$281.2 million for
2006. This increase in the cost of product sales was primarily dué to higher light source system sales
and sates of consumables and spare parts and service products in 2006 compared to 2005. This
increase in cost of product sales was partially offset by a decrease in warranty costs year over year.
This decrease in warranty costs in 2006 is primarity due to the proven extended lives of our consumable
modules and efficiencies gained through an increase in thelevel 'of expertise and training of our field
service engineers who perform warranty service on our light source systems and consumable and spare
parts. Gross profit increased 69% from $155.3 million for 2005 to $262.2 million for 2006. The gross
margin on product sales was 40.6% for 2005 compared to 48.3% for 2006. This higher gross margin in
2006 as compared to 2005 was primarily due to operating effrcnency improvements, cost reductions,
reduced lead and cycle times and reduced warranty costs which resulted from product reliability
lmprovements which were made throughout 2006. The higher gross margin year over year was also
caused by the overall increase in product sales in 2006 and the mrx of those product sales being. higher
margin products. Going forward, we anticipate that gross margin, will remain ‘strong but stay at the
current level in the high 40% range. " - ' . ! .

Research_and Development. Research and development expenses .include costs of internally-
funded and externally-funded projects as well as continuing product development support expenses,
which consist primarily of employee and material costs, depreciation of equipment and other
engineering related costs. Our research and development expenses are offset by amounts associated
with certain of our externally funded research and development contracts. Research and development
expenses increased 16%: from $64.0 mitlion for 2005 to $74.0 mrlllon for 2006 due primarily to costs
associated with our LTPS product-development efforts, EUV light source development efforts and ArF
product development efforts for the design of an enhanced universal platform for-our XL.Series light

.. sources, and associated derivative products based on this platform. Research and development
- expenses were offset by amounts related to our externally funded research and development contracts’
. of $2.8 miltion and $154,000 for 2005 and. 2008, respectively. - In addition-to our development of EUV

and LTPS technologies, we also continued to focus on next generation ArF and KrF products. As a
percentage of total revenues, research and development expenses decreased 3.1 percentage points

. from 16.7% for 2005 to 13.6%. for 2006 due primarily to ‘revenues ‘increasing at a faster rate than
. research and development expenses in2006 as compared to 2005. As a result-of our decision to enter
. the flat panel display manufacturing tools. market with the formation of the TCZ joint venture,, our

research and development expenses going forward will also include’a greater focus on LTPS product
development efforts. We expect that our investment in research and development expenses overall will

* continue and that our research and development expenses associated with TCZ will remain relatlvely

flat in 2007 compared to the 2006 levels:

I
o

Sa!es and Marketing. Sales and marketing ei.pe'nses include s‘ares' rriarketing and customer

' support staff expenses and other marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased 22%

from $25.1 million for 2005 to $30.6 million for 2006. The sales ahd marketing expenses increase
"primarily reflects $2.8 million in profit sharing and bonuses due to our |mproved financial performance in
2006 and $1.6 million of stock-based compensation expense associated with the SFAS No.- 123R
requirements which we adopted in January 2006. In addition, sales and marketing expenses were
h|gher in 2006 compared to 2005 as a result of expenses associated,with our TCZ joint venture which
'was formed in July 2005. As a percentage of total revenues, such sales and marketing expenses
decreased from 6.6% for 2005 to 5.6% for 2006..-We anticipate that sales and marketing expenses may
remain relatively flat in the fi rst quarter of 2007. - o , .

‘ i EES . . ' ' .

. .General and Administraﬁve. General and administrative \expenses .consist primarily of
management and-administrative personnel costs, professional services, including external audit fees,
and administrative operating costs. General and administrative expenses increased 47% from $26.5
million for 2005 to $38.9 million for 2006. The increase is primarily due to a $5.¢ million increase in
stock-based compensation expense recorded in 2006 as a result of our adoption of-SFAS No. 123R on
January 1, 2006. In addition to stock-based compensation expense recorded as a result of SFAS No.
123R, we recorded $4.2 million of stock-based compensation expense in the fourth quarter of 2006
refated to a small number of stock options granted primarily in 19?9. This additional stock-based

t
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compensation expense resufted from us using the incorrect ‘measurement date to calculate our
compensation expense for those stock options. Additional increases in general and administrative
expenses from 2005 to 2006 include $2.1 million in profit sharing and bonus expenses and a $1.1
million increase in external audit and advisory fees. In addition, general and administrative expenses in
2006 reflect increased expenses associated with the TCZ joint venture formed in July 2005. As a
percentage of total revenues, general and administrative expenses increased from 6.9% for 2005 to
72% for 2006. We anticipate that general and administrative expenses will decrease in the first quarter
of 2007 compared to the fourth quarter 2006 levels as a result of recording the $4.2 million’ in stock-
based compensation expense related to the 1999 stock options in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Total Other income - Net. Net other income consists primarily of mterest fncome and expense,
foreign currency exchange gains and losses associated with fluctuations in the value of the functional
currencies of our foreign subsidiaries against the U.S. dollar, and gains and losses associated with debt
extinguishment transactions. Net other income was $5.1 million and $19.6 million for 2005 and 2006,
respectively. This significant increase in net other income from year to year was primarily due to a
significant increase in interest income, the receipt of $3.2 million in life insurance proceeds following the
death of oné of our executive officers in the first quarter of 2006, a decrease in interest expense and a
foreign currency exchange gain recorded in 2006 as compared to a foreign currency exchange loss
recorded in 2005. The increase in interest income reflects higher market interest rate yields on larger
cash and investment balances which resulted from higher earnings and significant proceeds from stock
option and warrant exercises during 2006. The decrease in interest'expense from year to year was due
to our lower debt balances as a result of the repurchase of our convertible subordinated notes that we
made in the second quarter of 2005. Other income was positively impacted in 2005 by a $2.2 million
gain on debt extinguishment which resulted from the repurchase of these convertible subordinated
notes. Foreign curréncy exchange losses totaled $1.1 million, interest income and other income totaled
$10.9 million, interest expense totaled $6.9 miliion and gain on debt extinguishment totaled $2.2 million
for 2005, compared to a foreign currency exchange gain of $1.7 million, interest and othér income. of
$23.9 million, and interest expense of $6.0 million for 2006. . -

Income Tax Provision. The tax provision of $262,000 and $46.1 million for 2005 and 20086,
respectively, reflects an annual effective rate of 1% and 33%, respectively. The change in the annual
effective tax rate from year to year was primarily attributable to the significant increase in pre-tax
earnings, changes in the geographical distribution of income, a reduction in tax benefits from the ETI,
and the release of certain tax reserves in 2005 as a result of the expiration of statutes of limitations. The
annual effective tax rate for 2006 was less than the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result of
permanent bookftax differences and tax credits and is a function of current tax law and geographic
location of pre-tax income. The ET| was repealed by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 subject to
certain transition rules. The ETI exclusion is being replaced with a Manufacturing Activity deduction
under IRC Section 199 with a phase out of ETI benefits in 2005 and 2006. Our estimated ET! beneﬁt
for 2006 reflects the transition rules.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2005

Revenues. Product sales decreased 8% from $417.3 million for 2004 to $382.6 million for
2005, This decrease in product sales was due to lower light source system revenues partially offset by
higher consumable and spare parts and service product revenues during 2005 as compared to 2004.
Light source system revenues decreased 15% from $244.8 million for 2004 to $207.4 million for 2005.
A total of 301 light source systems were sold in 2004 at an average selling price of $827,000, compared .
to 207 systems sold in 2005 at an average selling price of $982,000. On a foreign currency adjusted
basis, the average selling price for 2004 was $816,000 compared to $984,000 for 2005. The increase in
the average selling price from year to year reflected the shift in the product mix from capacity driven
lower priced KrF products in 2004 to higher priced technology buys of advanced ArF products in 2005.
The decrease in quantities of light source systems sold from year to year was due to the brief upturn in
the semiconductor industry in 2004, when chipmakers expanded capacity, compared to the slight
slowdown and flattening of the industry in 2005 which impacted the demand for our light source
systems, particularly KrF light sources for capacity expansion. This decrease in light source system
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revenues from year to year was partlally offset by a 2% increase in revenues associated with our
consumable and spare parts and service products from $172.5 million for 2004 to $175.2 million for
2005. Revenues from funded development contracts were $783,000 for 2004, compared to $1.0 million
for 2005. There were no revenues recorded or earned associated with the TCZ joint venture for 2005.

Sales to our three lithography tool manufactunn-g cdsiomers ASML, Canon, and Nikon,
amounted to 34%, 11% and 22%, respectively, of total revenue for 2004, and 32%, 8% and 24%;,
respectively, of total revenue for 2005. i

Approximately 82% and 84% of our sales for 2004 and 2005, respectively, were derived from
customers outside the U.S. Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan,
accounted for 32% and 31% of total revenues for 2004 and 2005, respectlvely

Cost of Product Safes. The cost of product sales decreasclad 7% from $243.5 million for 2004 to
$227.3 million for 2005. This decrease in the cost of product sales was primarily due to lower light
source system sales in 2005 compared to 2004. In addition, the decrease in the cost of product sales
from year to year also reflects lower overall product costs as a result of our material costs reduction
efforts. Gross profit decreased 11% from $173.8 million for 2004 to $155.3 million for 2005.

The gross margm on product sales was 41.7% for 2004 as compared to 40.6% for 2005. This
lower gross margin from year to year was primarily due to the increase in consumables and service
revenues which have lower gross margins. In addition, the gross margin for 2004 was favorably
impacted by approximately two percentage points due to‘a customs refund that was received by our
Korea office and credited to cost of product. sales. - Gross margin in the ‘second half of 2005 was
improved from the first half of the year due to increased factory yield and utilization and decreased cycle
tlmes and overall material costs. !

: Research and Development. Research and developmentrexpenses increased 9% from $58.6
million for 2004 to $64.0 million for 2005 due primarily to costs' associated with our LTPS product
development efforts and EUV light source development. Research and development expenses were
offset by amounts related to our externally funded research and development contracts of $7.6 million
and $2.8 million"for 2004 and 2005, respectively. In addition to our development of EUV and LTPS
technologies during 2005, we also continued to focus on next generation ArF products based on the XL
platform and next generation KrF products. As a percentage of total revenues, research and
development expenses increased from 14.0% for 2004 to 16.7% for 2005 due primarily to increased
research and development efforts and lower revenues in 2005 as co:mpared to 2004.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses increased 8% from $23.4 million for 2004
to $25.1 million for 2005. This increase in sales and marketing expenses from year to year primarily
reflects increased sales expenses associated with our chipmaker customers at our foreign locations and
market development costs associated with the TCZ joint venture. These expenses were offset by
decreased profit sharing and bonus expenses incurred in 2005 compared to 2004, As a percentage of
total revenues, such sales and marketing expenses increased from ?.690 for 2004 to 6.6% for 2005.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased 16% from $31.6
million for 2004 to $26.5 million for 2005 primarily due to the receipt of rent payments in 2005.from the
tenants.in two of our San Diego facilities, which we subleased in the third and fourth quarters of 2004.
General and administrative expenses in 2004 also included $3.0 million in costs associated with
revisions of our estimates related to the timing and market rates for subleasing the San Diego and
Charlestown facilities, which we exited in 2003 compared to $384,000 of such expenses recorded in
2005. The lower general and administrative expenses in 2005 were offset by increased stock-based
compensation expense associated with non-employees and initial expenses associated with the TCZ
joint venture during the year. As a percentage of total revenues, general and admlnlstratlve expenses
decreased slightly from 7. 6% for 2004 to 6.9% for 2005.
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Total Other Income (Expense) - Net. Net other expense totaled $421,000 for 2004, compared
to net ather income of $5.1 million for 2005. The change from net other expense to net other income
was primarily due to an increase in interest income, a decrease in interest expense-and a higher gain on
debt extinguishment related to our.notes repurchase activities from year to year. This was offset by a
foreign currency exchange loss recorded in 2005 compared to a small foreign currency gain recorded in
2004. The increase in interest income from 2004 to 2005 reflected higher market interest rates for our
short-term and long-term investments on higher cash and investment balances. The decrease in interest
expense from year to year was due to our lower debt balances as a result of the repurchase of our
convertible subordinated notes that we made in the third quarter of 2004 and the second quarter of
2005. Foreign currency.exchange gains totaled $82,000, interest income totaled $8.1 million, interest
expense totaled $9.5 million and gain on debt extinguishment totaled $911,000 for 2004, compared to a
foreign currency exchange loss of $1.1 million, interest income of $10.9 million, interest expense of $6.9
million and gain on debt extinguishment totaling $2.2 million for 2005.

income Tax Provision. The tax provision of $15.1 million and $262,000 for 2004 and 2005,
respectively, reflects an annual effective rate of 25% and less than 1%, respectively. The change in the
annual effective tax rate from period to period was primarily attributable to the decrease in pre-tax
earnings as well as tax benefits from U.S. export incentive programs and research credits. The annual
effective tax rates for both periods were less than the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result of
permanent book/tax differences and tax credits. The effective tax rate is a function of current tax law
and geographic location of pre-tax income. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the expiration of certain
statutes of limitations related primarily to U.S. federal tax credits and deductions allowed us to release

 tax.reserves in the amount of $4.2 million. As a result, our fourth quarter of 2005 annualized effective

tax rate was a benefit rate of 11% resulting in an annual effective tax rate of less than 1%. The decision
to release tax reserves is made each quarter based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

The ET! was repealed by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 subject to certain transition
rules. The ETI exclusion is being replaced with 2 Manufacturing Activity deduction under IRC Section
189 with a phase out of ETI benefits in 2005 and 2008. - Our estimated ETI benefit for 2005 reflects the
transition rules. We did not benefit from the Section 199 deduction in 2005 due to the taxable income
limitation. The benefit is available to us for future tax years subject to certain transition rules. We
anticipate that the benefit available to us under both regimes will be comparable for y&ars in which we
have taxable income. .

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCéS

Historically we have funded our operations primarily from cash generated from operations, the
proceeds of the note offerings, bank borrowings, and.the proceeds from employee stock option
exercises. ‘As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $302.1 milion in cash and cash
equivalents, $207.9 million in short-term investments, $8.4 million in long-term investments, and $686.7
million in working capital.

in February 2002, we issued $2500 miflion in aggregate principal amount in a private
placement of notes. These notes are due on February 15, 2009 with interest payable semi-annually on
February 15 and August 15 of each year at 3.50% per annum. The notes are convertible into shares of
our common stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount or an effective
conversion price of $50.00 per share. We used a portion of the net proceeds from this private
placement to redeem the previcusly issued notes that were then outstanding. The remaining proceeds
are being used for our operating, investing and financing activities. With the approval of our hoard of
directors, we have periodically repurchased these notes in the open market. We repurchased $49.2
million and $60.0 million principal amount of these notes in 2004 and 2005, respectively. As of
December 31, 2006, there were $140.7 million principal amount of notes outstanding.

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $34.2 miilion. $114.0 mitlion and

$115.8 million for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Net cash provided by operating activities during
2004 reflects net income for the, year and increases in accrued and other liabilities and income taxes
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offset by increases in accounts receivable, inventories, and accounts payable. The increase in accounts
receivable was significant for 2004 and resulted from a higher number of product shipments than normal
taking place in the last month of the year. The increase in inventories was primarily due 1o our response
to the growing light source utilizations and higher spares inventories to support what we thought would
be a continued upturn in the semiconductor industry. When the industry started to slow down in the later
half of 2004, we itook action to reduce our spares and consumables inventory. As a result of these
actions, our inventory decreased by $10.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2004. Net cash provided by
operating activities during 2005 reflects net income for the year, significant decreases in accounts
receivable and inventory and increases in accounts payable. The decrease in accounts receivable
primarily reflects collections made in our receivable balances that were outstanding at December 31,
2004 and a decrease in'sales compared to 2004, The decrease in mventory reflects the reduction in our
field and factory inventory as a result of our ongoing -initiative during 2005 to improve asset
management by reducing inventory and increasing inventory turns. Net cash provided by operating
activities during 2006 reflects significant net income for the year and increases in accrued expenses and
other liabilities offset by increases in accounts receivable and inventories. The increase in accounts
receivable is the result of higher revenues recorded during 2006 as compared to 2005. The increase in
inventory balances for 2006 is primarily the result of an increased demand for spares and consumable
parts to support our growing installed base of light source systems, |part|cularly our more advanced XLA
series systems and the increase in sales of our light source systems. In addition, cash from operations
was negatively impacted in 2006 as a result of classifying excess tax benefits from stock option
exercises in the amount of $20.2 million in financing activities in 2006 rather than operating activities in
accordance with SFAS No. 123R which was adopted on January 1'12006'

Net cash provided by investing activities was approxima{ely $272,000 and $78.6 million for
2004 and 2005, respectively, compared to $87.2 million in cash used in investing activities in 2006. Net
cash provided by investing activities during 2004 reflects the timing of short-term and long-term
investments that matured and were reinvested during the year, the acquisition of $19.5 million of
property and equipment, a $6.0 million payment to acquire certain patents and a $2.0 million payment to

~- acquire an additional 6% minority interest in our Cymer Korea: subsndlary Net cash provided by

investing activities during 2005 reflects the timing of short-term and long-term investments that matured

. and were reinvested during the period, the acquisition of $18.8 million of property and equipment and a

$2.5 million payment to acquire certain patents. Net cash used in investing activities for 2006 was due
primarily to the timing of short-term and long-term investments that matured and were reinvested during
the period, a $7.0 million payment to acquire the final 19% minority interest in our Cymer Korea
subsidiary, a $8.2 million payment to acquure certain patent Ilcense nghts and the acquisition of $16.4
mitlion of property and eqmpment

Net cash used in financing activities was approximately $32.0 miilion and $71.0 million for 2004
and 2005, compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $35.6 million in 2006. In 2004, net
cash used in financing activities reflects the repurchase of $49.2: million.in principai amount of our
convertible subordinated notes in the third quarter of 2004, at a discount to par. This was offset by
proceeds received from the exercise of stock options in 2004 totaling $15.4 million. Net cash used in

¢ financing actlvmes for 2005 reflects the repurchase of treasury stock of $50.0 million and the purchase

of approximately $60.0 million pnnmpal amount of our convertible subordmated notes, at a discount to
par, during 2005. The treasury stock and note purchases were offset’ partially by proceeds received from
the exercise of employee stock options totallng $25.2 million and the minority interest investment
received from Zeiss in the TCZ joint venture of $11.1 million during 2005. Net cash provided by
financing activities for 2006 primarily reflects the proceeds received from the exercise of employee stock

' options as well as the exercise of warrants and proceeds from the employee stock purchase plan

. totaling $116.1 million. In addition, cash from financing activities in 2006 was positively affected by the
- excess tax benefits for the period from stock option exercises which totaled $20.2 million. This cash

. provided by financing activities was offset by the repurchase of treasury stock totaling $100.7 miliion

dunng 2006.

)
b

We require substantial working capital to fund our business, particularly to finance inventories,
including purchase orders with our vendors, accounts receivable, and for capital expenditures. Our
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future capital requirements depend on many factors, including our manufacturing activity, the timing and
extent of spending to support product development efforts, expansion of sales and marketing and field
service and support, competitive labor market compensation requirements, the timing of introductions of
new products and enhancements to existing products, and the market acceptance of our products. We
believe that cash-generated from operations along with the liquidity provided by our. existing cash
balances and short-term investments will be sufficient to sustain operations ‘and provide for any
potential future expansion of our business for at least the next 12 months,

TABULAR DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and other commitments as of December
31, 2008, and the impact such obligations could have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in
thousands):

Amount of Commitment Expiring by Period

More than
Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 5 years

Cperating lease obligations (1) $ 12681 $ 5095 . $4,088 $ 3393 g8 $ 16 & 2

' Convertible subordinated notes 140,722 - - 140,722 - - -
Interest on convertible .

subordinated notes 12,313 4,925 4,925 2,463 - - -

Purchase orders 50,123 50,123 - - - - -

Total commitments ' $215839 $60,143 $9013 $146578 $89 $ 16 § 2

(1)  We currently sublease all or a portion of our leased facilities, and the payments received under these are direct offsels to
our operating lease obligations. The amounts in the table above represent the gross lease amounts and the following table
summarizes amounts to be received under these non-cancelable sublease agreements (in thousands):

Future Sublease Payments

More than

Tbtal 2007 2008- 2009 2010 201 5 years

Total sublease agreements  $6,254 § 3604 $ 1526 § 1124 $ S -8

At December 31, 2005 and 2006, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities
or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance, variable interest, or
special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we did not engage in
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, we are not exposed to any
financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships. We do
not have relationships and transactions with persons and entities that derive benefits from their non-
independent relationship with us or our related parties except as disclosed herein.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2008, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 487),
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes". FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes by
prescribing a minimum probability threshold that a tax position must meet before a financial statement
benefit is recogmzed The minimum threshold is defined in FIN 48 as a tax position that is more likely
than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to
be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that has a greater than fifty percent chance
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of being realized upon ultimate settiement. FIN 48 must be appl‘ied to all existing tax positions upon
initial adoption. The-cumulative effect of applying FIN 48 at adoption, if any, is to be reported as an
adjustment to opening retained earnings for the year of adoptlon FIN 48 is effectlve for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. ‘ . . _ ‘ '

“We have adopted a FIN 48 implementation strategy. This strategy is aimed at identifying,
evaluating and méasuring all of our uncertain tax positions. ", This will be done for all open tax years, by
units of account and for all of our legal entities. We are currently in the process of identifying and
evaluating uncertain tax positions for all of our legal entities according to their units of account. Once
this stage is completed, we will begln the measurement stage and determine the cumulative effect
adjustment, if any. Since we are still in the process of |mplementlng FIN 48, we are not currently in a
position where we can quantify or d|sclose the potentlal effect of FIN 48 on our 2007 consolidated
financial statements..- { .

‘In September 2006, the FASE issued Statement of Flna!nual Accounting Standards No. 157
("SFAS No.- 157"), "Fair Value Measurements". SFAS. No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value using generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures related to fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB.having previously concluded
in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly,
SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements.- However, for some entities, the
application of this Statement wilt change current practice. This Statement is effective for us on January

1, 2008. We are currently evaluatmg the impact of this pronouncement on our consolidated financial
statements . . |

. j . . R B

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 158 (“SFAS No. 158"), “Employers' Accounting for
Defined Benefit.Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R)"." We adopted all provisions of SFAS No. 158 in December 2006 except for the
provision which will require us to measure the funded status of our pension plans as of the date of our

year-end statement of financial position. -This provision will be effective for us for the fiscal year ending

December 31, 2008, and we do not expect its adoption to have a!material impact on our consolidated
financial statements. See Note 1 under Accounting Pronouncements Adopted and Note 12 under
Retirement Plans to our consolidated financial statements for information on the provisions of SFAS No.
158 which we adopted effective with our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Marke;t Risk

'

Foreign Currency Risk ‘ o

We conduct business in several international currencies through our global operations. Due to
the large volume of our business that we conduct in Japan, the Japanese operation poses our greatest
foreign currency risk. We use financial instruments, principally forward contracts, to manage our foreign
currency exposures. We enter into forward contracts in order ! ito reduce the impact of currency
fluctuations related to purchases of our inventories by Cymer Japan in U.S. dollars for resale under firm
third-party sales commitments denominated in Japanese yen, as well as other foreign currency
exposures including exposures related to intercompany debt. We do not enter into forward contracts for
speculatlve purposes. t

As of December 31, 2006, we had outstanding forward contracts to buy U.S. $42.0 million for
5.3 billion yen under foreign currency ‘exchange facilities with contract rates ranging from 113.23 yen to
117.32 yen per U.S. dollar. These contracts expire on various dates through December 2007.
'

. - |

Our forward contracts generally qualify for hedge accounting treatment per the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No. 133, "Accountmg for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities”. As a result, we defer changes in the fair value for the effectlve portion of these
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hedges and record the amount in other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassify the gain or
loss to cost of product sales in the same period that the related sale is made to the third party. The fair
value of all of our forward contracts and the deferred gain {net of tax) for those that qualify for hedge
accounting treatment totaied $652,000 and $17,000 respectively, as of December 31, 2006.

The fair value of these forward contracts as of December 31, 2006 would have fluctuated by
$4.2 million if the foreign currency exchange rate for the Japanese yen to the U.S. dollar on these
forward contracts had changed by 10%. :

Investment and Debt Risk

We maintain an investment portfolio consisting primarily of government and corporate fixed
income securities, certificates of deposit and commercial paper.- While it is our general intent to hold
such securities until maturity, we will occasionally sell certain securities for cash flow purposes.
Therefore, our investments are classified as available-for-sale and are carried on the balance shest at
fair value. A change in market interest rates of 1% would have impacted our net income from these
investments by approximately $2.3 millicn in 2006 :

In February 2002, we issued $250.0 million prmmpal amount of unsecured fi xed rate 3.50%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due February 15, 2009. Interest on these notes is payable on February
15 and August 15 of each year. The notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at a
conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount subject to adjustment under certain
conditions. We may redeem the notes after February 20, 2005 at certain redemption prices expressed
as a percentage of the principal amount. The notes are subordinated to our existing and future senior
indebtedness and effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries.
Because.the interest rate is fixed, we believe there is no risk of increased interest expense. These notes
are recorded at face value on the consolidated balance sheets. In the third quarter of 2004 and the
second quarter of 2005, we repurchased, at a discount to par, $49.2 million and $60.0 million principat
amount, respectively, of these notes. As of December 31, 2005 and 2006, $140.7 million principal

_amount of the notes were outstanding. - The fair value of such debt based on quoted market prices on
December 31, 2005 and 2006 was $136.5 million and $147.6 million, respectively. ’

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplémentary Data

The information required by this Item is included in Part IV ltems 15(a)(1) and (2} of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

ltem 9. Changes in and Dlsagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None,
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

1. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Qur chief executive officer and our chief
financial officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”)) as of December 31, 2006, have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of such date because of the existence of a material weakness in
our internal control over financial reportmg related to our accounting for income taxes, as descrihed
below. .

2. Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our management is

responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act).
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\

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, using the criteria established in Internal’ Control’ — Integrated Framework issued by the

. Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commlssmn {COS0). Based upon this

assessment, we have concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over financial
reporting was not effective due to the material weakness related to our accounting for income taxes,

" described below. A material weakness in internal control over financial reporting is a significant

deficiency, or combination of signifi icant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood

that a material misstatement of the annual.or interim financial statements will not be prevented or

detected. I

Managements assessment identified the following material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006:

Our policies and procedures did not provide for effective oversight and review of our accounting for
income taxes. Specifically, our policies and procedures did not include adequate management
review of various income tax calculations, reconciliations and related supporting documentation to
ensure that our accounting for income taxes was in accordance with generally accepted accounting

“principles. This material weakness resulted in material errors in our consolidated income tax

provision that were corrected prior to the issuance of our 2006 consolidated financial statements.

“ Management's assessment of the effectiveness of our mternal control over financial reporting as of
- December 31, 2006, has been audited by KPMG LLP, an mdependent registered public accountlng

firm. Their report appears on page F-2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. ) '

l
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportlng There were no changes in our internal
control over financial reportlng that occurred dunng the lastifiscal quarter that-have materially-
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting
other than the following steps taken. by us during the fourth quarter of 2006 in response to the

matenal weakness that we disclosed |n our 2005 Form 10-K related to our accounting for income

taxes ‘ :

i ‘ ‘ | ‘

. ¢ Improved the procedures for reviewing, and re'conciling all subsidiary office tax
accounts; and

- o Increased the level of communications wrth our subsudlary office accountants over the

| preparation of our foreign quarterly and annual tax provisions.

Management's Remediation Plans. Because 2006 is the seco',nd year in which we have identified

.and reported a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting associated with our

accounting for income taxes, we plan to conduct significant remediation efforts throughout 2007 with
the goal to remediate this material weakness prior to December 31, 2007. Although we are still
discussing and fi nalrzmg the specifics of these plans, they currently include the following:

» Hiring additional tax personnel and providing additional regulatory training for select tax
" personnel; |

* Redesigning and implementing new review and approval procedures and processes

. associated with all income tax provision workpapers and the consolidated income tax

reconciliation schedules; :

. Restructunng of the income tax department to allow

processes; l

¢ Identifying and implementing an automated tax provnsmn software tool that will reduce
the number of manual spreadsheets that we use tocalculate and reconcile all income

. tax accounts on a quarterly and annual basis; and 4
“» Improving the communications between our tax  department and our accounting

department, and increasing the involvement of our accounting department in the
rewews of income tax reconciliations.

for the proper review and approval .

l
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" ‘We will monitor the effectiveness of these new processes, procedures and controls as they are
implemented in 2007 and will make changes management determines to be appropriate. ‘

5. Inherent Limitations on the Effectiveness of Internal Control. There are inherent limitations in the
effectiveness ‘of any internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention
or overriding of -controls. Accordingly, even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable
assurances with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in
conditions, the effectiveness of internal controls may vary over time. ‘

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

. - .. PART I
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information regarding the identification and business experience of our directors under the
caption "Proposal 1 - Election of Directors" in our Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of
stockholders to be held on May 17, 2007 to be filed with the SEC within 120 days’ after the end of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 20086, is incorporated herein by reference. For information regarding
the identification and business experience of our executive officers, see "Executive Officers” at the end -
of Item 1 in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Information concerning filing requirements
applicable to our executive officers and directors under the caption "Section 16(a) Benefi mal Ownershlp

"Reporting Compllance in our Proxy Statement is mcorporated herein by reference.

In 2003, we adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. We
have posted the text of the code of ethics on oOur website which can be accessed at
hitp:/fiwww.cymer.com under “Investor Relations.” In addition, we will promptly disclose on our website
(1) the nature of any amendment to the code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar
functions and (2) the nature of any waiver, including an implicit waiver, from a provision of the code of-
ethics that is granted to one of these specified officers, and the name of such person who is granted the
waiver on our web5|te in the future.

Item 11. Executlve Compensatlon

[

" The information-under the captioné “Compensation of Executive Officers” and “Report of the
Compensation Committee” in our Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership ‘of Certain ‘Beneficial Owners and’ Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The informati'on under the captions "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners-and
Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Informatlon in our Proxy Statement is mcorporated '
herein by reference.
item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Indeﬁendence

The information under the caption "Certain Transactions” in our Prdxy Statement is incorporated
herein by reference. . '

With the exception of the information specifically incorporated by reference from our Proxy
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Statement in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be filed as
part of this Report. Without limiting the foregoing, the information under the captions “Report of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors in our Proxy Statement is not incorporated by reference in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

- . !
ltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services :

. . The information under the caption "independent Reglstered Public Accounting Firm Fees” in our
Proxy Statement is. incorporated herein by reference.

PARTIV:
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedul.es

{(a) - The following documents are fi led as part of or incorporated by reference into, this
" Annual Report on Form 10 K: |

{(1¥2) Financial Statements and _Financial _Statement Schedule. The following
.Consolidated Financial Statements of Cymer, Inc., Financial Statement Schedule and Reports of
independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are |ncluded in a separate section of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1:
I

Description - ' o . Page Number
Report of independent Registered PublicAcc‘ountinlg Firm oo, F-1
" Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm...................oooinn, F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2005 and 2006 ........................ F-4

.» * Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended .
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 S TR F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
. Financial Statement Schedule: - - |

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

AII other financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required information is
not applicable or not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because
the information required is included in our consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

?
(3) Exh|b|ts The exhlblts listed under Item 15(c) hereof are filed with, or
ancorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Each management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement is identified separately in item 15(c) hereof.
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(b)

: - Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed as part .of, or incorporated by
reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10- K .

3.1

3.2

33

4.1

4.3

10.1#

10.2

10.3

10.4%#

10.5#

10.6#.

Amended and Restated Articles of I'ncorporation of Cymer, Inc.
{(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer's Reglstratlon
Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383). .

Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2002).

Amended and restated Bylaws of Cymer, as amended and restated
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer’s Form 8-K filed
on November 21, 2006). . "
Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 12, 2002, among Cymer, Credit
Suisse First Boston Corporation and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner and Smith -
Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cymer's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

Indenture, dated as of February 15, 2002, between Cymer and State Street
Bank and Trust Company of California, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

Reglstratlon Rights Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2002, among
Cymer, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation and Merrill Lynch Pierce
Fenner and Smith Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
43 to. Cymers Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2002)

Form of Indemniﬁcation Agreement with Directors and Officers
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Single-Tenant Industrial Lease, dated December 19, 1996, by and between
Arden Realty Finance I, LLC (orlglnally AEWI/LBA Acquisition Co. Il, LLC)
and Cymer, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 .
to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, -
2004) _ .

Sublease Agreement; dated December-22, 2004, by and between Northrop
Grumman Systems "Corporation and Cymer (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31 2004)

1996 Stock Option Plan as amended (incorporated hereln by reference to.
Exhibit 99.1 to Cymer's Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration
No. 333-69736). _

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 1996 Stock
Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-48242).

1996 Employee Stock’Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Cymer's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 18, 2006). :
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10.7#
10.8%#

10.94

10.10#
10:11#

10.12#

- 10.13#

10.14#

© 10.15#°

10.16%#

10.17#

10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

2000 Equity Incentive Plan (formerly known as the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan and incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Cymer's
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No, 333-69736).

Form of Stock Option Agreement u'sed in connection with the 2000 Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Cymer's
Registration Statement on Form S-8,'Regi_stration No. 333-69736).

2005 Equity Incentive Plan (tncorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to Cymer's Current Report on Form 8-K ﬁled on May 20, 2005).

"Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 2005 Equity

Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Cymer's

_ Current Report on-Form 8-K filed on May_ 20, 2005).

Form of Stock Unit Grant Notice Jand'Stock- Unit Agreement used in
connection with the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Cymers Current Report 8-K filed on February

10, 2006).

Amended and Restated'Emponfnent 'Agjreemen't, effective as of January 2,
2007, by and between Robert P. Akins’l and Cymer.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effectlve as of January 2,
2007, by and between Nancy J. Baker.and Cymer:

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 1, 2003, by and between
Pascal Didier and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30,

2003). .

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between
Edward P. Holtaway and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2003). '

Employment Agreemenit, éffective as of May 1, 2003, by and between Brian
C. Klene and Cymer (incorporated” herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to -
Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10 Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between Rae
Ann Werner and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003). |

| Employment Agreement, effective as of January 2, 2007, by and between

Edward Brown, Jr. and Cymer. i

Employment Agreement effective as of Oetober 21, 2004, by and between
Bill N. Alexander and Cymer (:ncorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.21 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December,
31 2005). A

Summary description of Cymer, Inc. Incentive Bonus Program as amended
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Cymer's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2006).
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10.21#

10.22#

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27#

10.28#

10.29*

10.30*

Summary description of Cymer, Inc. 3-Year Bonus Program (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 89.1 to.Cymer's Current Report on Form 8-K

filed April 1, 2005).

Executive Nonqualified Excess Plan, as amended and restated as of
January 1, 2007. .

Amended and Restated Joint Venture Agreement, dated September 12,

. 2006, among TCZ GmbH, Cymer, Inc., Carl Zeiss SMT AG and Carl Zeiss

Laser Optics Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH and TCZ Pte Ltd (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2* to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006).

Patent License Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and among Cymer, Inc.,
Linda B. Jacob, Joseph A. Mangano, and Science Research Laboratory, Inc.

.(incorporated herein .by reference to Exhibit 10:2 to Cymer's Quarterly

Report on-Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and between
Science Research Laboratory, Inc. and Cymer, Inc. {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer's Quarterly. Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Patent Sublicénse Agreement, dated November 7, 2003, by and between

SRL-EUV, LLC and Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.27 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended

" December 31, 2003).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated November 7, 2003, by and between
Science Research Laboeratory, Inc. and Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Cymer's Annual- Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003). :

Reduction in Force Benefits Plan, as .amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form .10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003).

Executive Option and Group Health Coverage Extension Program
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Cymer's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

- Development Agreement-dated January 23, 2004, by and oehNeen Cymer,

Inc.. and Intel Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2004).

Amendment of ‘Cymer Corporation and Intel Corporation Development

_Agreement, effective July 17, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference to-

Exhibit 10.1* to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

"ended September 30, 2006).

Intellectual Property License Agreement dated February 4, 2004, by and
between Cymer, Inc. and Intel Corporation (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2004).




(d)

14.1

21.1

23.1,

241

311

312

321 -

322

- the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Amendment Intellectual Property License Agreement, effective June 27,
2006, by and between Intel Corporation and Cymer, Inc (incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.2* to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2006).

[}
Code of Ethics for Chief Executiveé, Chief Financial and Chief Accounting
Officers (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Cymer's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Subsidiaries of Cymer. !
. T l
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independentl Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Power of Attornéy (reference is madé to the signature page).

3

- Certification of Chief Executive Off' icer pursuant to Sectlon 302 of the

Sarbanes- Oxley Act.

Certification of Chief Financial Offcer pursuant ‘to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes- Ox1ey Act.

Certification of Ch|ef Executive Oﬁ' icer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

1
Certification of Chief -Financial A(;)fﬁcer pursuant to Section 906 - of

-

# Indicates management contract or. compensatory plan or arrangement.

3

* Confidential treatment was requested with 'i'espect to certain portions of this
- exhibit. Omitted portions were filed separately, with the SEC.

Financial Statement Schedule. See item 185, pafagraph (a) (2), above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CYMER, INC.

By: s/ ROBERTP. AKINS
Robert P. Akins,
Chief Executive Officer,
and Chairman of the Board

Dated: February 27, 2007

KNOW ALL PERSCONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears
below constitutes and appoints Nancy J. Baker and Rae Ann Werner, and each of them, as his true and
lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his
name, place, and stead,.in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other. doccuments in connection.
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unte said attorneys-in-fact and agents,

‘ - and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and

necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to-all intents and purposes as he might or could do
in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that all said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their
or his substitute or substituted, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Chief Executive Officer,
and Chalrman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Isi ROBERT P. AKINS
Robert P. Akins

February 27, 2007

"Senior Vice President

fsf NANCYJ. BAKER ‘and Chief Financial Officer *

February 27, 2007

Nancy J. Baker

/s/ RAE ANN WERNER

Rae Ann Werner

isi CHARLES J. ABBE

Charfes J. Abbe

fsf  EDWARD H. BRAUN

Edward H. Braun

fsf MICHAEL R. GAULKE

Michael R. Gaulke

/st WILLIAM G. OLDHAM

William G. Oldham

fs/ PETER J. SIMONE

Peter 4. Simone

/sf _YOUNG K. SOHN
Young K. Sohn

fs/ JON D. TOMPKINS
Jon D. Tompkins

(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President, Controller |
and Chief Accounting Officer
{Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

. 3
The Board of Directors and Stockholders ‘
Cymer, Inc.:

)
i

~ We have audited the accompanymg consolidated balance sheets of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries (the

Company) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolldated statements of operations,

. stockhoiders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash- ﬂows for each of the years in the

three-year period ended December 31, 2006. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial
statements, we also have audited financial statement Schedulé ll. These consolidated. financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consohdated fi nanmal statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in. accordance with the standards of the Publrc Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
., An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
. audits prowde a reasonable basis for, our opinion. “y '

-

In our opinion, ‘the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
' respects, the financial position of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 -and 2005, and
' the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the yéars in the. three-year period ended
' December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
»opinion, the related financial statement Schedule II, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated

financial statements taken as a whole presents falrly, in all matenal respects the information set forth
nthereln

i : .
As discussed in note 1 to the consolldated f" nancial statements, effectwe January 1, 2008, the Company

|adopted Statement of Flnanmal Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share —Based Payment

‘We also have audlted, in accordance with the standards of the F’-ubllc Company Accountlng Oversight
‘Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control = Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO0), and our report dated

'February 26, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and an adverse
opmlon on the effectlve operatlon of internal control over f nancial reporting.

{

'1sl KPMG e -
| . . - . B

‘. | - | :
' |

San Diego, California o . :
February 26, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accoun_tipg Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders .
Cymer, Inc.: S : '

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Over. Financial Reporting (Item 9A.2), that Cymer, inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) |
did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, bécause of
the effect of the' material weakness identified in management's assessment, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for-its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility-is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an
opinion on the effectlveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reportmg based on our audlt

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Over5|ght
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reperting was maintained in all material
respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control’ over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing and evatuating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the mrcumstances
We believe that our audlt provides a reasonabie basis- for our oplmon : .

A companys mternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reascnable
assurance reqarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally -accepted accounting principles,
and that -receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or' dlsposmon of the companys
assets that could have a material eﬁect on the financial statements. .

Because of its inherent Ilmltatlons internal control over fi nanmal reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in cond:tsonq or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more "
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial information will not
be prevented or detected. '

v
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The following material weakness has been identified an’d included in management’s assessment:

. The Company’s policies.and procedures did not provide for effective oversight and review of its

"~ accounting for income taxes. Specifically, the Company's policies and procedures did not include
adequate management review of various income tax calculations, reconciliations, and supporting
documentation to ensure that its accounting for income taxes was in accordance with U.S.

generally accepted accounting principles. This deficiency resulted in material errors in the
Company's consolidated income tax provision.

In our opinion, management’s assessment. that the Company did hot maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20086, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internai Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, because-of the effect of the
material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 20086,
based on criteria established in Internal Conirol — Integrated Framework issued by the Commlttee of
N Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Pljblic Company Accounting Oversight
. Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year peried ended December 31, 2006.
This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
' applied in our audit of the 2006 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our
© report dated February 26, 2007 which expressed an unqualified oplmon on those consolidated financial .
* statements.

!

/s/ KPMG LLP .

* San Diego, California . . '
February 26, 2007 ’




CYMER, INC. «
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except share data) a

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

‘Cash and cash equivalents

"Short-term investments

Accounts receivable - net
Accounts receivable - related party
Foreign currency fomrard exchange contracts
Inventories ' .
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets’

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
GOODWILL

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related party
Accrued warranty and installation
Accrued payroll and benefits
Accrued patents, royalties and other fees
Income taxes payable
Unearned income
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

3

* CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES

OTHER LIABILITIES
Total liabilities
MINORITY INTEREST
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Preferred stock - $.001 par value, authorized 5,000,000 shares;

no shares issued or outstanding

Common stock - $.001 par value per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized;
38,036,000 and 41,774,000 shares outstanding at December 31, 2005

and December 31, 2006, respectively
Additional paid-in capital

Treasury stock at cost (1,943,000 and 4,536, 000 common shares)

at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respeclively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained eamings
Total stockholders' equity -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

F4'

) December 31,
2005, : 2006
$ 233,745 $ 302,098
130,204 207,943
-1 89,818 115,857
588 834
' 1,776 652
* 89,046 104,296
33,338 46,943
6,497 7,143
585,012 785,766
117,251 112,074
29,395 8,384
34,429 12,766
8,358 ., 8,833
10,474 15,880
6,457 5,391
$ 791,376 $ 949,094
3 17,710 $ -18,711
4,975 4,858
30,775 20,974
12,461 © 21,707 -
7,180 4,262
7,268 13,293
1,726 2,544
3,247 3,715
85,342 99,064
140,722 - 140,722
10,582 14,781
236,646 254 567
16,276 6,633
. 38 42,
407 549 557,082
(50,000) (150,704)
{9,025) {4,066)
189,892 285,540
538,454 687,894
$ 791,376 3 949,094
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© EARNINGS PER SHARE:

CYMER, INC.,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

' REVENUES:
Product sales

Product sales - related party
Other

- Total revenues

COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of product sales
Research and development
Sales and marketing

- General and administrative

Total costs and expenses
OPERATING INCOME .

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) - net
Gain on debt extinguishment
Interest and other income
Interest and other expense

Total other income {expense) - net

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION
AND MINORITY INTEREST

INCOME TAX PROVISION
MINORITY INTEREST
NET INCOME

Basic earnlngs per share
Weighted average common shares outstandlng

Diluted earnmgs per share

Weighted average common and dllutlve
potential common ghares outstanding

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

|
|
|
:

Years ended December 31,

2004/ 2005 2006 .
$ 417,296 $ 382238  $ 536098
| - 400 7,362
783 1,010 395
418,079 383,648 543,855
243473 227,290 281,243
58,612 64,025 73,974
23,369 06,143 30,618
31630 26,514 38,889
|
357,084 - 342972 424,724
.60,995 40,676 119,131
1. )
}. o
82 (1,115) 1674 -
911 2,220 -
8,079 10,943 - 23,8652 .
(9,493) - (6,936) (5,965).
I .
(421) 5,112 18,561
i
! v
60,574 45,788 138,692
15,144 262 46,137
(2,276) 1,026 3,003 .
$ 43,154 46,552 & 05648
|
o .
$ 117 129 § 253
36,758 36,017 37.779
H
g
$ 115 127§ 240
37,584' 36,544 41,397
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]
CYM ER, INC. :
CONSOLIDATEJ STATEM E\H’ S OF CASHFLOWS
{Inthousands) B

Years'ended Dec:er'pbe.lr 3,

] N . s . . “u

; ] ' . 2004 2005 2006
OPERATNGACTVIES: = - » -+ | :
Net income - ) . - 3 43,154 $ 46,552 $§ 95648
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash S )
provided by operating activities: | oy . :
Gain on debt extinguishment 4 ' ' (911 (2,220) -
Depreciation and amortization . : 128,364 28,280 25,127
Non-cash stock-based compensation - - . . . 345 1,019 13,235
Amortization of unearned compensation S 130 18 - -
Mnority interest - - y 2,276 {1,026) (3,093)
Provision for deferred income taxes : ' ' 13,035 S (1,680) 8,558
Loss on disposal and impairment of property and equipment ' ] gk 55 27
thange in assets and liabilities: e
Accounts receivable - net - ‘ (47,861) 20,862 (26,039)
Accounts receivable - related party : ' l - {588) {246)
Foreign currency forw ard exchange contracts . ’ (679). {3,002} 1,264
hventories - ' . : (17 010} 20,976 ' (15,250)
Prepaid expenses and other assets | (884) {1,936) (359)
Accounts payable o | (5 150) 3,761 1,001
Accounts payable - refated party . © 4,975 {117)
Accrued expenses and other liabitities : : 16 270 2,634 . 9,686
Unearned income ‘5.399 (4,426) 818
Income taxes payable ' (2,439) (230) 5,541
,Net cash provided by operating activities - . ?;4,170- 114,022 115,801
INVESTING ACTIV ITIES: o , : .
Acquisition of property and equipment ' " (19,485) {18,750) (16,404)
Purchases of investments . (641,674) (290,728) (278,594)
Proceeds from sold or matured investments ’ 669,421 '390,580 223,004
Acquisition of patents (5,990) (2,500) {8,200
Acc!uisition of minority interest - (2,000) - ) (7.024)
Net cash prqvided by (used in} investing activities . 272 78,602 (87.218)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: | .
Proceeds fromissuance of common stock R Y 15446 25,218 116,059
Redemption of convertible subordinated notes (4'?,407) o {57,336) -
Cash investment received from minority shareholder - - 11,120 ) -
Excess tax benefits from stock option exercises C- - 20,243
Payments on capital fease obligations ' ' (48) (20) - -
Repurchase of common stock into treasury - . (50,000) (100,704}
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . {32,009) T (71,018) 35,598
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASHAND ‘ o . ‘
CASH EQUIVALENTS ) ©1,181 (2,107) 4172
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , 37,614 119,499 68,353
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 110,632 . 114,248 233,745
CASH AND CASH EQUIVA LENTS AT BND OF THE YEAR $ 114,248 $ 233748 $ 302,098

: ' . _ F-7 o




CYMER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED

{In thousands) :

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Interest paid
Income taxes paid, net

See Notes to Consolidéted Financial Statements.

F-8

Years ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006

9,033 $ 65914 - & 5,301

$

3,515 $ 2,613 b 12,111
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. ,

1
H
|
|
'

‘Nature of Operations — Cymer, Inc. and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries, are
" engaged primarily in the development, manufactunng and marketing of excimer light sources for

_sale to manufacturers of photolithography tools in the semiconductor equipment industry. We sell

our product to customers primarily in Japan, Asia, Europe andithe U.S. in addition, we entered into
an agreement in July 2005 with Carl Zeiss SMT AG, a German corporation, and Carl Zeiss Laser
Optics ‘Béteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, a German limited liability company (which we.refer to with
their affiliated entities as “Zeiss") to establish a joint venture which we’call TCZ (for Team Cymer
Zeiss). In. September 2006 we amended and restated this joint venture agreement with Zeiss to
move the location of the TCZ joint venture from Switzerland to Singapore, and in connection with the
‘move; formed TCZ Pte Ltd. TCZ is developing a process tooi for the ﬂat panel dlsplay manufacturing
industry. :

: Principles of Consolidation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our

accounts and the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries — Cymer Japan, Inc. (“Cymer Japan"),
Cymer Smgapore Pte Ltd. (“Cymer Singapore™), Cymer BVt in the Netherlands (“Cymer B.V."),
Cymer Southeast Asia, Ltd, in Taiwan (“Cymer SEA”), Cymer Semlconductor Equipment Shanghai
Co., Ltd, in the People’s Republic of China (“Cymer PRC”), Cymer Korea, Inc” (*Cymer Korea"), and
our’ majority-owned subsrd|ary, TCZ Pte Ltd., a company. incorporated ‘in Singapore - ("TCZ
Slngapore ). ' ; _ ‘ : ' )

On January 2, 2006, we acqmred the remaining 19% minority mterest in Cymer Korea. We paid a
total of $7.0 million for this 19% interest. This transaction increased our total interest in Cymer
Korea from 81% to 100%. Cymer Japan is currently our only subsidiary that sells excimer light

' "sbi.nrce systems. Cymer Japan also provides field service to]customers in Japan. Cymer Korea

- provides refurbishment manufacturing, field service, and administrative activities for Korea and the
--Asia-Pacific region. Cymer Singapore, Cymer B.V., Cymer SEA and Cymer PRC are f eld service
offlces for customers in:their respective countries.

We formed the TCZ joint venture in July 2005 with Zelss Per the terms of our original joint venture
agreement, TCZ was -originally formed as TCZ GmbH, a Swiss limited liability company ("“TCZ
. Switzerland™), -and Switzerland was designated as the location for the TCZ joint venture. In
September 2006, we moved the location of the TCZ joint venture from Switzerland to Singapore and
changed our joint venture entity into a Smgapore corporation. See Note 2 for more details. We own
60% of TCZ and Zeiss owns 40%. TCZ is currently developing, and will integrate, market.and sell,
and support tools employing an excimer laser beam to induce crystaliization of low-temperature
_poly-silicon (“LTPS”) processing for the manufacture of flat panel displays.’

All S|gn|f|cant antercompany balances and transacuons have been elrmmated in consohdatlon

Accountmg Esttmates — The preparation of fi nanmal statements in conformlty with* accounttng
principles generally accepted in the United States of America reqmres us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure .of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of-the financial statements and the reported amounts: of revenues
and expenses during the reporting peraod Actual results may dlffer from those estlmates

‘Cash Equ:valents Cash equwalents COI"ISISI of money market mstruments commercnal paper and
other highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturlty of three months or less. As of
December 31, 2005 and 2006 we had $143.0 million and $2273 m:lllon of cash equivalents,
respectlvely : .
. : . I

Investments — We maintain an- investment portfolio consnstmg primarily of government and
corporate fixed income securities, auction rate securities, certificates of deposit, and commercial
paper. While it is our general intent to hold such securities until maturity, we will occasionally sell

F-9




CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

certain securities for cash flow purposes. Therefore, our investments are classified as available-for-
sale and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. In September 2004, we sold approximately .
$20.3 million of corporate debt securities that resulted in a $281,000 gain on the sale. The cost of
securities sold is determined by a specific identification method We had no sale of investments
- which resulted in a gain or loss in 2005 or 2006.

Inventories — Inventories are carried at the tower of cost, which approximates the first-in, first-out
method, or market. Cost includes material, labor and manufacturing overhead costs. Our
inventories include reusable parts that we receive from our customers as part of consumed
assemblies. We refurbish these returned core assemblies, which consist primarily of metal
components, and reuse them in future core assemblies. Refurbishment costs -are capitalized as
incurred. We review the components of our inventory on a regular basis for excess or obsolete
inventory and make appropriate allowances and dispositions in the period that such inventory is
identified.

Parts Refurbishment — Over the last several years as part of our regular. business activities, we
have conducted parts refurbishment and material reclaim activities related to some of our core
assemblies, in particular our chamber assemblies. The volume of this activity significantly increased
in 2004 from prior periods and we expect volumes fo increase over time as our installed base of
light sources continues to rise and we become more efficient in these refurbishment activities and
develop capabilities to reclaim material from and refurbish other core assemblies. These activities
involve arrangements with our customers where we sell a new part to the customer at a reduced
sales price if the customer returns the consumed core assembly that the new part replaces. These
_returned core assemblies contain a certain amount of material, primarily metal components, that
may be reused by us in future core assemblies. Upon receipt of these consumed core assemblies

' ~ from our customers, we record an entry to recognize the estimated fair value of the reusable

components either 1) as revenue if the return of the core assembly relates to a spare part
replacement sale or 2) as a reduction in cost of product sales if the return of the core assembly is’
related to a part being replaced under our warranty or per the terms of an active service contract
with the customer. The value of the reusable parts contained within the consumed assembly is
determined based upon historical data on the value of the reusable parts that we typically yield from
a consumed core assembly. As part of our normal excess and obsolete inventory analysis, these
consumed core assemblies are also reviewed on a monthly basis and an inventory allowance is
recorded as appropriate for these parts. The value that we assign to these core assemblies can be
affected by the current demand for the.reusable parts in our manufacturing operations and the
actual yield rate achieved for parts within these consumed core assemblies.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Additions and lmprovements are capitalized and maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets (generally one to five years). The buildings that we own are depreciated
- over a useful life of twenty years. Leasehold improvements and equipment held under capital leases
are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the asset or the remaining
lease term. Equipment acquired under capital leases is stated at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments. Amortization of equipment obtained under capital leases is included in
depreciation expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. - Light source systems
built for internal use are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over three years.

Goodw:Mntang:ble Assets — We account for our goodwill and other intangible: assets in
.accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (* SFAS No. 142"), “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 142 includes provisions that discontinued the amortization
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives associated with purchase business
combinations. Under SFAS No. 142, our goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test. We
conduct this test in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year or whenever events or circumstances occur
indicating potential impairment. . -
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. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CYMER, INC.

intangible assets consnst primarily of acquired patents. Intangtble assets with finite: lives are
‘recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-line method over their expected useful lives.
The expected useful life can vary depending upon the nature of the technology and the remaining
useful life of the patent, but currently, it ranges from four to seventeen years. We review the carrying
value and remaining useful life of intangibles for 1mpa|rment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The amount of impairment, if any, is
measured based -on the projected discounted future operatmg cash flows using a discount rate
reflecting our average cost of funds. The assessment of the recoverablllty of |ntang|ble assets will
be |mpacted if estimated future operating cash ﬂows are not achleved

Imparrment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lrved Assets to Be Disposed Of — Long -lived
assets and certain identifiable intangibles are reviewed for :mpalrment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a companson of the carrying amount of
the assets to future net cash flows (undiscounted and without mterest) expected to be generated by
the asset. If such assets are considered to be.impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the
assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
costs to sell. Impairment losses for 2004, 2005 and 2006 were immaterial.

Asset Retirement Obligation — We currently account for our asset retirement obligations in

accordance 'with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 (“SFAS No. 143"),

“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 establishes accounting requirements
for retirement obligations associated with tangible long-lived assets, including (1) the timing of the
habrhty recognition (2) the initial measurement of the liability (3) the ‘allocation of the asset retirement

" cost to” expense "(4) the subsequent measurement of the liability and (5) financial statement
© dlsclosures SFAS'No. 143 requires that the cost for the asset retlrement obligation be capitalized

as part of, the ‘cost of the related long- hved ‘asset and subsequently allocated to expense using a
systematnc and ratlonal method. ‘

We currently.have e' Iease agreernent for our facility in Japan which includes an obligation for us to
restore the facility to its original condition when we vacate it. We have estimated the fair value of
this asset retirement obligation to be approximately $657,000 at December 31, 2006 and have
recorded it in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The total'accretion
expense that we recorded related to this obligation for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
,2006 was $200 000 and $67 000 respectively. |,

Fair Value of Fmanc:al instruments - We used the fotlowmg methods and assumptrons to

‘estimate the fair value of each class of ﬁnanmal instruments for which it is suitable to estimate that

value: ., . , o

Cash and.cash equivalents, ‘accounts receivable; accounts recelvable - related party, accounts
payable, accounts payable - related party, accrued warranty and installation, accrued payroll and
benefits, accrued patents, royalttes and other fees, income tax payable, unearned income, and
other currént liabilities — the carrying amount reported in the, consolidated balance sheets for
these balances approximates fair value due to the short maturmes of these instruments,

Investments — Investments are recorded at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices for
. such securities. . i

|
Forward Contracts — Forward contracts are recorded at fair value which is based on the quoted |
exchange rates for such instruments (see “Derivative Instrume;nts below).
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Convertible Subordinated Notes — Convertible Subordinated Notes are recorded at their face
value of $140.7 million at both December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006: The fair value of
such debt, based on quoted market.prices at December 31, 2005 and 2006, was $136. 5. million . .
and $147.6 million, respectively. : .

Lease Loss Accrual - In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146
(“SFAS No. 1467), “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities®, our costs
associated with exit or disposal activities are recognized when they are incurred or when we cease
using a property. To date, our exit or disposal activities have consisted of lease obligations net of
expected sublease income for our San Diego, California and Charlestown, Massachusetts facilities
which were vacated by us prior to the end of their leases. The total liability is included wrthm Other
Current Liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The foltowing table summarizes information related to our accrued lease loss llablllty for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 (in thousands): - :

2005 2006 . .
Balance, January 1 T $ 2230 - §% 634
Lease loss accruals . 384 -
Rent payments : (1,980) - (359)

Balance, December 31 : $ 634 M_ o

Guarantees/Warrant:es ~.In the ordinary course of business, we are not subject to potential
obligations under guarantees that fall within the scope ‘of Financial Accounting ‘Standards Board
(“FASB") Interpretation No. 45 ("FIN 45"), “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, except for standard warranty
provisions associated with product sales and indemnification provisions related to intellectual
property that are contained within many of our lithography tool manufacturer agreements. All of
these provisions give rise onIy to the disclosure requirements prescribed by FIN 45 except for
product warranties.

(a) Product Warranties — Warranty provisions contained within our lithography tool manufacturer
~ agreements are generally consistent with those prevalent in the semiconductor equrpment
~ industry. The warranty period and terms for light source systems; ‘and.spares and consumable
parts varies by light source system model. We record a provision for warranty for all products,
which is included in cost of product sales in the consolidated statements of operations and is
recorded at the time that the related revenue is recognized. We review our warranty provision
monthly, which is determiined using a statistical financial model which calculates actual
historical expenses, product failure rates, and .potential risks associated with our different
product models. We then use this financial model to calculate the future probable expenses
related to warranty and the required level of the warranty provision. Throughout the year we
review the risk levels, historical cost information and failure rates used within this model and
update them as information changes over the product's life cycle. If actual warranty
expenditures differ substantially from our estimates, revisions to the warranty provision would
be required. Actual warranty expenditures are recorded against the warranty provision as they
are incurred.
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The following table summarizes information related to our warranty provision for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 (in thousands): ' '

2004 2005 2006
Balance, January 1 ’ 3 26:200 % 28200° $ 30,191
Liabilities accrued for warranties |ssued durlng B '
the year, net of adjustments and expirations 23,§95 . 26,331 18,209
Warranty expenditures incurred during the year (21,595) ' {24,340) (18,950)
Balance, December 31 . - % 28200 _$ 30,191 $ 29,450

. . . . e .

(b) Intellectual Property Indemnifications — -We include intellectual property indemnification

-, clauses within our general terms and conditions with our customers and the generat purchase
agreements with our three lithography tool manufacturers, ASML, Canon, and. Nikon. In
general, these indemnification provisions provide that we defend our customers against any
infringement claims directed against our products. Under, the indemnification clauses, we pay
all costs and damages, including attorney's:fees, associated with such settlements: or
defenses, provided that the lithography tool manufacturer follows specific procedures for

. notifying us of such claims and allows us:to manage the settlement proceedings.

- An indemnification provusmn was also mcluded in the contract manufacturlng agreement with
. Seiko Instruments, Inc. (“Seiko™), which was terminated effective March 31, 2003.. As with our
_ indemnification provisions on intellectual property, we continue to honor this indemnification
clause within the agreement even after its termination. 'Seiko and at least one Japanese
lithography tool manufacturer have been notified that our light source systems in Japan may
infringe certain Japanese patents. We believe, based upon the advice of counsel, that our

products do not infringe any valid claim of the asserted patents or that we are entitled to prior
use clalms in Japan

As part of the original research and development agreement signed with Intel Corporation
(“Intel”) in 2004, we also agreed to provide Intel with mdemmty against any infringement of the
intellectual property rights of any third party arising from Intel's purchase and/or use of our EUV
source systems. Under the terms of this agreement, as recently amended, our obligations to
indemnify Intel will be specuf cally negotiated in any purchase agreement related to such future
praducts. : o

As part of the supply agreement signed with TCZ 'in September 2005 and amended in
September 2006 in connection with the amendment- and restatement of the original TCZ joint
venture agreement, we agreed to indemnify TCZ against any infringement of. the intellectual
.property rights of a third party arising from TCZ's purchase of our products. ‘'We will defend
such actions at our own expense and will pay the cost and damage awarded in any such action
provided that TCZ grants us sole control of the defense and settlement of such action and also
provndes us with information required for the defense and settlement of such action.

Due to the nature of the indemnification provisions descrlbed above, these prowsmns are
indefinite and extend beyond the term of the actual agreements

Comprehensive Income — Comprehenswe income ‘includes net income, unrealized gams and
losses on effective forward contracts, foreign_currency transtation adjustments, net unrealized
pension gains and losses, and unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, which.

are recorded as short-term and Iong-term investments in the accompanylng consolidated balance
sheets. .

!

F-13 '




CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue Recognition — We recognize revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin
(“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition”. We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, our price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Our revenues consist of product sales, which
include sales of light source systems, consumable and spare parts, upgrades, service, service
contracts, training, and limited refurbishments of light source systems.. Our revenues also consist of
certain funded development activities performed for our customers and under government contracts
and license agreements.

The sales of our light source systems generally ‘include tramlng and mstallatlon services. We
determined these elements qualify as one unit of accounting under Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF") Bulletin No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” as we do not have
evidence of fair value for the undelivered training and installation elements. Furthermore, we
determined that the undelivered.training and installation elements are perfunctory performance
obligations and are not essential to the functionality of our light source systems. Therefore, in
accordance with the provisions of 'SAB No. 104, we recognize revenue when the revenue
recognition criteria are met for the light source system, and accrue the costs of providing the training
_and installation services. We recognize light source system revenue at one of following three
pomts depending on the terms of our arrangement with our customer — 1) shipment of the light
source system, 2) delivery of the light $ource system or 3) receipt of an acceptance certificate. For
the majority of our light source system sales, the shipping terms are F.O.B. shipping point and
revenue is recognized upon shipment. For our arrangements which include F.O.B. destination
shipping terms, revenue is recognized upon delivery of the light source system to our customer.
Lastly, one of our arrangements includes an acceptance provision, which is satisfied by the
issuance of an acceptance certificate -by the customer. For these transactions, we recognize
revenue upon receipt of the acceptance certificate. In addition, we test our light source systems in
environments similar to those used by our customers prior 1o shipment to ensure that they meet
- published specifications.

Revenue from consumables and spare parts sales is recognized at the point that legal title passes
to the customer, which is upon shipment from our facility. -For a significant portion of our spare parts
sales, our customers return the. consumed assembly to us as part of the sale of the new part. We

" reuse some of the material within these core assemblies, mainly metal components, for the future
build of core assemblies. As a result, our revenue consists of both cash and the value of the
reusable parts received from our customers as consideration for these spare part sales. Revenue
associated with our customers’ return of core assemblies is recognlzed upon receipt of the returned
core assembly. The amount of the revenue is determined based upon the fair value of the reusable
parts that we expect to yield from the returned core assembly based on historical expenence
Service and training revenue is recognized as the services are rendered.

On a very-limited basis, we refurbish tight source systems owned by our customers to their original
or new condition. Revenue from refurbished light source systems is recognized when the
refurbishment process has been completed and depending upon the customer, the proper delivery
oracceptance terms have been met:

For funded development contracts, funds received are accounted for on the percentage-of—
_completion method based on the relationship of costs incurred to total estimated costs. Revenues
generated from these types of funded development contracts are, except as noted below, included
in other revenue, and are derived from cost sharing contracts between certain customers and us. If
- milestones on these funded development contracts require that specific results be achieved or
reported by us, revenue is not recognized until that milestone is. completed. For some of the funded
development contracts that we enter into.with customers and government agencies, we evaluate
certain criteria to determine whether recordmg the funds received as revenue is appropriate. If
certain conditions are met, these funds are not recorded as revenue but rather are offset against our
own internal research and development expenses in the period that the mllestone is achieved.
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Research and Development — We expense research and development costs, which:include costs
associated with funded development contracts, in the period incurred. Funded development
contracts are generally cost sharing contracts between us and a customer where each party pays
near equivalent portions of ‘the total development costs. | As a result, ‘costs for the 'funded
~ development contracts approximate the revenue we record for these contracts in other revenue in
the accompanying statements of operations. The services performed under the funded development
contracts are provided on a best efforts basis. Qur research and development expenses also

include offsets for amounts we receive from certaln of our externally funded research and

development contracts. t
.-

Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounted for under the as'set and liability method. Deferred tax
assets and liabilittes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of exlstlng assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates that
are expected to apply in the pericds in which the deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be
realized or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Stock-Based Compensation - We estlmate the fair value of our stock options usmg a Black-

Scholes option pricing model, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R which we adopted

on January-1, 2006. See Accounting Pronouncements Adopted section of Note 1 for more details

+ . -onthe adoptlon of SFAS No. 123R. In addition, we used this same option pricing model to calculate
. the fair value of our stock optlons included in our pnor penod pro forma disclosures as. required by

SFAS No.123. W
The fair value of stock options granted is recognized to expense over the requisite service period.
For stock options granted after the SFAS No. 123R effective date of January 1, 2006, the straight-
line attribution approach is used. For stock options granted prlor to January 1, 2006 and which are
continuing to vest, we will continue to record expense using the FASB Interpretation No. 28 (“FIN
28" )accelerated attribution approach. — + .+ - )

. . TS ' :
Upon the adoptlon of SFAS No. 123R, we used a comblnatton of hlstoncal and |mp||ed volatility
(‘blended volatility”). to value our stock options. Historical volatility is based on a period
commensurate with the expected term of the options. Implied volatlhty was derived based on six-
month traded options of our common stock. Prior to January 1, 2006, we used only historical stock
price volatility in accordance with SFAS No. 123 for purposes of our pro forma stock compensation
calculation. The expected term of our stock options represents the period of time options are
expected to be outstanding and is based on observed historical exercise patterns for our company
which we believe are indicative of future exercise behavior. For the risk free interest rate, we use the
then currently available' rate on'zero coupon U.S. Government issues W|th a remaining perlod
commensurate with the expected term for valuing options.

[

F-15




CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Stock-Based Compensatlon Valuation Assumptions
The following weighted average assumptions were used for grants issued in the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2005 under the SFAS No. 123 requirements and in the year ended
* December 31, 2006 under the SFAS No. 123R requrrements

Years ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006

Dividend yield : T None None None
Volatility rate: - S ’

Options | : L T5%. - 74% .. 56%

ESPP : : . . 75% 75% . N/A
Risk free interest rate: .

Options : E 340% 3.97% ) 4.75%

ESPP 2.30% 333% N/A
Expected life: : : .

Options o 4.36 years 4.19 yearsl 3.15 years

ESPP g y - .Byears ' .5 years - N/A

" In our pro forma disclosures prior to the 'adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we accounted for forfeitures as
they occurred. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised if
necessary in subsequent periods if actual forfeiture rates differ from those estimates. Forfeitures
were estimated based on historical activity for our company. We amended our 1996 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (*ESPP") in May 2005 and as a result, our ESPP is treated as a
noncompensatory plan.

(b) Impact of SFAS No 123R

The followrng table presents the impact to our consolidated financial statements as a result of our
adoption of SFAS No. 123R for the year December 31, 2006 (in thousands, except per share
. amounts):

Year ended
December 31, 2006

Stock-based compensation expense by type of award:

.

Employee stock options : - % 7,637

Stock units - ‘ ) . B . 671
Total stock-based‘compensation ) 8,308
Tax effect on stock-based compensation (2,767)
Net effect on net income $ 5,541
Effect on eamings per share:

Basic 3 0.15

Diluted . 3 0.13
Impact of stock option deductions on:

Cash flows from operations : ' $ {(20,243)

Cash flows from financing activities $ 20,243
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As of December 31, 2006, the*_unamortrzed compensation expense related to. outstanding unvested
options was approximately $8.0 million with a weighted average remaining vesting period of 2.04
years We expect to amomze this expense over the remalnmg vesting perlod of these stock options.
¥ - h

The amount of stock based compensatron costs capitalized into anventory durmg the year ended
December 31, 2006 was |mmatenal 1

. |
We account for optlons granted ,tq non-employees under SFAS No. 123 and EITF Issue No. 96-18,
“Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to other, than Employees for Acquiring or in
Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services”. We measure the fair value of such options usrng the
Black-Scholes option pricing model at each financial reporting'date. We account for changes in fair
values between reporting dates in accordance with FIN 28. Stock-based compensation expense for
options granted to non-employees and for those employees who changed status from employee to
a non-employee during the years ended December 31 2004! 2005 and 2006 was $326,000, $1.0
million and $723,000, respectively. ) : :E
Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we applied the intrinsic value-based method of accounting
required by Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB") No! 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees™-for options granted to employees and provided the pro forma disclosures of SFAS No.
123 as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Cormpensation—Transition and
Disclosure”. During 2004 and 2005, we recorded no compensation expense related to the grant of

options to employees since the exercise price of such options equaled or exceeded the market
vatue of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

In the fourth quarter. of 2006, .we recorded $4.2 million of lstock' based compeénsation expense
related to a 'small number of stock options that were grante'd primarily’in -1999. This additional
* stock-based compensation expense resulted from us using the incorrect measurement date to
calculate the compensation expense and as a result, we falled to record the related compensation
" expense for these 1999 stock options. we recorded the charge in 2006 as the charge was not
material to 2006 or any prior periods. In connectlon with thls $4.2 mlllron of stock based
compensatron expense we recorded a §1. 2 miftion tax benef t. f

!
|

. L ) ) .
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(c) Pro Forma for 2004 and 2005 Under SFAS No. 123 e
- . .
The following table compares the earmngs per share that we’ reported to the pro forma amounts that
we would have reported had we recognized compensation expense for our stock-based
‘compensation plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years ended December 31,
PR . . 2004 2005

Net ihcome, as reported { o . $ 43,154 $ 46,552
" Add: Stock-based employee compensat;on ‘ .

.expense included in reported net - - -

« income, net of related tax effects - | S . 258 . 1,013

Deduct; Total stock-based employee :
compensation expense determined
under the fair value based method for

" all awards, net of related tax effects™ + +* - . {17,112) {22,911)"

[

Pro forma net income +~ . . ’ % 26,301 $ 24,654

3

N . v : -
Earnings per share: o

rie

$ . 117 $ 1.29

. Basic — as reported . © oz ‘ 29
Basic — pro forma ' : $ 072 . 3 0.68
. Diluted —asreported . . 8 115 & 127

Diluted — pro forma el . ) g 070 . % 0.67

e A

in February 2005, our board of d|rectors approved the acceleration of the vestmg of stock options
that had exercise prices of $30 50 per share or higher held by employees. This acceleration of stock
options excluded directors, executive offi icers and certain vice presidents. The purpose of this
acceleration of vesting was to enable us to eliminate the recognition in our statement of operations
of the compensation expense associated with these “out of the money” stock options in future
periods, upon our adoption of SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006. The acceleration of vesting of
these stock options in the year ended December 31, 2005 contnbuted approximately $10.4 million
of pro forma stock-based compensation expense.

Foreign Currency Translation — The financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries where the
functional currency is the local currency are translated into U.S. dollars’ using current rates of
exchange for assets and liabilities and rates of exchange that approximate the rates in effect at the
transaction date for revenues, expenses, gains and losses. Gains and losses resulting from foreign
currency translation are accumulated as a separate component of consolidated stockholders' equity
as accumulated other comprehensive loss. Gains and: losses resulting from foreign currency
transactions are included in the consolidated statements of operations. Net losses from foreign
currency transactions totaled $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and net gains from
foreign currency transactions totaled $82,000 and $1.7 million for the years ended December 31,
2004 and.2006, respectively. Such amounts are recorded in other income (expense} in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Derivative Instruments - We conduct business in several international currencies through our
global operations. We maintain a foreign exchange risk management policy with the goals of
protecting product margins and minimizing the volatility of reported earnings due to foreign currency
exposure. In accordance with our policy, we use financial instruments, principally foreign currency
forward exchange contracts (“forward contracts”), to manage our foreign currency exposures. We
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enter into forward contracts in” order to reduce the impact of currency fluctuations related to
purchases of our inventories by Cymer Japan in U.S. dollars for resale under firm third-party sales
commitments denominated in Japanese yen, as well as other foreign currency exposures including
exposures related to intercompany debt. We do not enter into forward contracts for speculative
purposes. '

Our forward contracts generally qualify for hedge accounting treatment as “cash flow hedges" per
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“SFAS No. 1337,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. Pursuant to SFAS No. 133,
designated hedging instruments and hedged items or transactions qualify for cash flow hedge

, accounting treatment if certain criteria are met. For example, at the inception of the hedge, we must
"have formal documentation of the hedging relationship and our risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge including identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, and how the hedging instrument's effectiveness will
be assessed. Furthermore, the hedging relationship must be highly effective in achieving offsetting
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the term of the hedge.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 133, we defer changes in the fair value for the
effective portion of these. hedges and record the amount in other comprehensive loss, and
subsequently reclassify the gain or loss to cost of product sales in the same period that the related
sale is made to the third party. For forward contracts entered into after May 1, 2004, interest
charges or "forward points” on our forward contracts are excluded from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness, and are recorded currently in foreign currency exchange gain (loss) in the
consolidated statements of operations. In the event that an anticipated, hedged transaction is no
longer likely to occur within a certain time period, the derivative gain or loss reported in accumulated
other comprehensive loss is immediately reclassified into foreign currency exchange gain (loss).

The fair value of all forward contracts and the associated deferred gain in other comprehensive loss
totaled $652,000 and $17,000, respectively,. as of December 31, 2006. It is expected that 100% of
.the deferred gain will be reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months. The excluded
component of our forward contracts amounted to a gain of $809,000 and $721,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. In the third quarter of 2004, we recorded a loss
of $1.1 million as a result of the discontinuance of certain cash flow hedges. This loss is included in
foreign currency exchange gain (loss) on our consolidated statements of operations.

As of December 31, 2008, we had outstanding forward contracts to buy U.S. $42.0 million for 5.3
billion yen under foreign currency exchange facilities with contract rates ranging from 113.23 yen to
117.32 yen'per U.S. dollar. These contracts expire on varigus dates through December 2007. We
recognized a net loss through cost of product sales from forward contracts of $2.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, and a net gain through cost of product sales of $1.4 million and
$254,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2008, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Financial instruments, which potentially' subject us to
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash and accounts receivable.

- Cash and cash equivalents — We invest our excess cash in an effort to preserve capital, provide
liquidity, maintain diversification and generate returns relative to our corporate investment policy
and prevailing market conditions. We have not experienced any material losses in our cash and

o investment accounts. The cash balances that we hold in fi nancial institutions are -in excess of

" federally insured limits. We perform periodic evaluations of theirelative credit standing of financial
institutions and limit the amount of risk by selecting fmanmal, institutions with a strong relative
credit standing. At.December 31, 2005 and 2008, we had $233.3 million and $301.9 million
respectively, in deposits with major financial institutions that exceeded the federally insured limit
of $100 000 : .
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Accounts receivable — We maintain an ailowance for doubiful accounts for estimated losses due
to the inability of our customers to make required payments, which results in bad debt expense.
Qur management periodically determines the adequacy of this allowance by continually

" evaluating individual customer receivables considering our customer's financial condition, their
payment history, security deposits, and current economic conditions. We have minimal credit
losses to date.

Concentration of Supplier Risk — We obtain a limited number of components and subassemblies
included in our products from a single supplier or a small group of suppliers. We currently utilize a
single supplier for certain optical, control systems and pulse power components and subassemblies
used in our light source systems. Where possible, we work with secondary suppliers to qualify
additional supply sources. We carry significant strategic inventories of these components to reduce
the risk associated with this single supplier. Strategic inventories are managed as a percentage of
future demand. We have also negotiated to have vendor-managed inventory of critical components
to further reduce the risk of a single supplier. To date we have been able to obtain adequate
supplies of the components and subassemblies used in the production of our light source systems
in a timely manner from existing sources.

Major Customers — Revenues from our major customers are detailed as follows (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2004 . 2005 2006
Customer )
ASML : $ 140,828 . $ 121,156 $ 204,931 .
Canon . 45,597 29,957 33,503
Nikon 90,972 93,203 88,405

Accounts receivable balances for these same major customers are detailed as foflows (in
thousands):

{
December 31,

2005 2006 )
Customer
ASML $ 31,846 $ 55,001
Canon . - 4,079 2,875
Nikon ‘ " 22,303 22,080

Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan, accounted for 32%,
31% and 22% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006,
respectively. Revenues from ASML in the Netherlands accounted for 34%, 32% and 38% of
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively. The ioss of
business of any of these major customers would have a material adverse effect on our operating
results, financial condition, and cash flows.

Earnings Per Share — Basic earnlngs per share ("EPS") excludes dilution and is computed by
dividing net income or loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average of
common shares outstanding-for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock (convertible subordinated notes using
the “if-converted” method, warrants to purchase common stock and common stock options using the
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i
treasury stock method) were exercised or converted into common stock: Potential dilutive securities
are excluded from the diluted EPS computatlon in loss perlods as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

The following table sets forth the basic and diluted EPS for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2005, and 2006 (in thousands, except per share information):;

‘_ Years ended December 31,

2004 . 2005 - - 2006
NET INCOME: : ‘
Net income, as reported (used for basic EPS) $ 43,154 $ 46,552 $ 95848,
" Adjustment for interest expense on 3.5% convertible _ )
subordinated notes, net of taxes ) L, _ - 3,709
Net income, as adjusted for assumed conversion ; ) . -
(used for diluted EPS) $ 43,154 - § 46,552 $ 99,357
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES: . !
Basic weighted.average common : ' ‘ :
shares outstanding ‘ ) _—_— 36,758 36,017 37179
Effect of dilutive securities: b C
Warrants ‘ _ S _ 14 - 22
Options and stock units - - . 812 527 782
Convertible subordinated notes S - - . 2814
Diluted weighted average common and l : :
potential common shares quistanding 37,584 36,544 41,397
Earnings per share: ’ o .
Basic ) ' $ 147 $ 129 $ 2.53
Diluted e I 5 3 T I

o .

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, weighted average options and warrants
to purchase shares of common’stock were 3,326,000, 4,500,000 and 622,000, respectively, and
were outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per sharé as their effect
was anti-dilutive. In addition, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, weighted average
common shares attributable to convertible subordinated notes consisting of 4,645,000 and
3,820,000 shares, respectively, were not included.in the computatlon of dlluted earnings per share
as their effect was also anti-dilutive. . {

Accounting Pronouncements Adopted .~ i

“In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial A(':counting Standards No. 151 (“*SFAS

No. 1517), “Inventory Costs, an Amendment of ARB 43° Chapter 4", This statement amended
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43 (“ARB No. 43") Chapter 4, to clarify accounting for abnormal
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material. SFAS No. 151
requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges. 'SFAS No. 151 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We adopted SFAS No. 151 on January 1, 2006. The
adoption of SFAS No. 151 has not had an impact on our consolldated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accountrng Standards No. 154 (“SFAS
No. 1547), “Accountmg Changes and Error Corrections—a rep!acement of APB Opinion No. 20 and
FASB Statement No. 3°. This Statement replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes” and
FASB Statement No.3, “‘Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements”, and
changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting prmcnple
SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also applies to changes
i
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required by an accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the pronouncement does not

include specific transition provisions. When a pronouncement includes specific transition provisions,
those provisions should be followed. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and

corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. We adopted SFAS
-No. 154 on January 1, 2006. The adophon of SFAS No. 154 did not have an impact on our
" consolidated financial statements, :

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of FASB Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123R (“SFAS No. 123R"), “Share-Based Payment” which replaces. Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (“SFAS No. 123"), “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB No. 257),
“‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS

 No. 123R, stock-based compensation ¢ost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of
the award and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period, or the vesting period. .
We elected the modified-prospective’ method in implementing SFAS No. 123R- which does not
require’us to revise prior period financial statements for comparative purposes. We elected to use
the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of our stock options under SFAS
No. 123R. The valuation provisions of SFAS No. 123R apply to new options granted on or after
January 1, 2006. We also elected to’ attribute the value of share-based compensation to expense
using the straight-line method for awards granted on or after January 1, 2006. Estimated
compensation expense for grants that were outstanding and unvested as of the effective date will
be recognized over the remaining service period using the compensation cost estimated for the
SFAS No. 123 pro forma disclosures which uses an accelerated expense recognition method for
those awards with a graded vesting schedule. The adoption of SFAS No. 123R had a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements. For more detailed information on our adoption of
SFAS No. 123R, see Note 1 under Stock-Based Compensation.

On November 10, 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 123(R)-3, “Transition
Election Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards™. We have elected
to adopt the “short-cut” method provided in the FASB Staff Position for calculating the tax effects of
share-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123R. The “short-cut” method includes simplified
methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool {"APIC pool”)
| : related to the tax effects of share-based compensation, and to determine the subsequent impact on
| the APIC pool, the consolidated statements of cash flows, and earnings per share of the tax effects
of share-based compensation awards that were outstanding upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, beginning in the first quarter of 2006, we have presented
excess tax benefits for the exercise of share-based compensation awards as a financing activity in
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we presented the
tax benefits for deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as an operating cash
flow activity.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 ("SFAS
No. 1587), “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)". SFAS No. 158 requires an
employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement

" plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or fiability in its statement of financial position
and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through other
comprehensive income of a business entity or changes in unrestricted net assets of a not-for-profit
organization. We adopted SFAS No. 158 for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, and its
:adoption did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. For more detailed
information on our adoption of SFAS No 158, see Note 12 under Retlrement Plans.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FAS 115-1 and FAS 124 1 ("FSP 115-1
and 124-17), “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain
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investments™. FSP 115-1 and 124-1 applies to debt and equny securities accounted for, under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, "Accountrng for Certain’ investments in Debt
and Equity Securities”. The objective of FSP 115-1 and 124-1 is to provide guidance for identifying
other-than-temporarity impaired investménts. FSP 115-1 and. "124-1- als0 provides. new disclosure
requirements for investments that ‘are deemed to be temporarily impaired. The disclosure
requirements were effective in annual financial statements for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2005. We adopted FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 on January 1, 2006. The
adoption of FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 did not have a materlat 1mpact on our consolldated

financial statements ; .

-

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (“SAB No.: 1087,

- “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements”. The intent of SAB No. 108 is to reduce diversity in practice for the
method companies use to quantify financial statement misstatements, including the effect of prior
year uncorrected errors. SAB No. 108 establishes an approach that requires quantification of
financial statement errors using both an income statement .and a cumulative balance sheet
.approach. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption
of SAB No. 108 dld not have a signifi cant impact on our consolidated financial statements

2. JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT _ R N : ST
~In July 2005, Cymer entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with Zeiss to
establish TCZ, which was originally formed as TCZ GmbH, a Swiss limited liability company {(*TCZ
Switzerland™). TCZ is currently developing and will integrate, market and sell, and support tools
employing an excimer laser beam to induce crystallization of LTPS processmg for the manufacture
of flat panel disptays. ‘ B L
. . EE. . . I
TCZ is owned 680% by us and 40% by Zeiss and earnings and losses are distributed according to
the same percentages. As an initial capital contribution to TCZ, we contributed certain intellectual
property and approximately $14.2 million in cash in the third quarter of 2005. We consdlidate the
financial position and results of operations of TCZ and reflect Zéiss' interest in TCZ as minority
interest in our consolidated financial statements. If TCZ is dlssolved the intellectual property owned
by TCZ will be distributed to the members as joint owners, and the remaining assets, net of
. liabilities, will be distributed to the members in accordance with thlerr perceniage interests.
As a result of the formation of TCZ, we entered into various agreements with TCZ. Included in
these agreements was a long-term supply agreement which reqmres us to provide TCZ with
components for TCZs products and an intellectual property agreement whlch controls the use of
. any intellectual property developed by us for the joint venture (*JV}'). . :

! On September 12, 2006, we amended and restated' the JV A‘grei_ement' to move the location of our
TCZ joint venture from Switzerland to Singapore and to change our joint venture entity to a
Singapore corporation. The terms and conditions of the original joint venture agreement we entered

l into with Zeiss remain in effect, except for the following: 1) the change in the business location; 2)

the addition of TCZ Pte. Ltd. as a party to the' amended and restated JV Agreement and successor

to the rights and obligations of TCZ Switzerland and 3) the updates to the governance provisions to

' reflect differences in Swiss and Singapore corporate law.

{

Based upon our analysis of the TCZ operations and Cymer as a consolidated entity, we have

determined that. TCZ qualifies as a separate operating segment. See Note 15. :
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BALANCE SHEET DETAILS-

The consohdated balance sheets detail is as follows as of December 31 2005 and 2006 (in

thousands):

. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Trade
Other

’
.

Less allowance for doubtful accounts -+
Total i L S

INVENTORIES:
Raw materials i
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Ai_lowance for excess and obsolete inventory
Total

UNEARNED INCOME:
Funded development contracts
Service contracts
License agreement

-

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT;
Land
Building
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment
Capitalized light sources . - -
Leasehold improvements'
Construction in process

Less accumulated depreciation and amortlzatlon
Total

December 31,

2005 2006
$ 88,404 $ 113,599
2,170 3,201
90,574.. § . 116,800
_ (756) (943)
$ 89,818 $ 115857
'3 42,482  $ 39,512
18,408 ‘ 24,082
38,601 55,812
"5 (10,445) - “(15,110)
$ 89,046 $ 104,296
$ 796 $ 145
880 ' 2,349
50 .7 50
$ 1,726 $ 2,544
$ 9,080 »+ $ - 9,080
: 89,852 T 90,349
'6,687 7.538
85,804 89,054
41,739 46,294
3473 - 3,447
1,552 2,675
238,167 248,437
(120,936) " . (136,363)

$ . 117,251 $ 112,074

Deprematlon expense totaled $24.7 mllllon $25.0 million and $21.6 million for the years ended

December 31 2004, 2005 and 2008, respectively.
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‘4. INVESTMENTS

]
'
\
)

N

Investments at December 31, 2005 consist of the following (in thousands):

1
Gross

Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
. Cost Gains Losses Value
Short-term: ' b - .
Corporate debt securities : L 17,079 L ‘ - $ (179) $ 16,800
Commercial paper 4,611 ' - (2) 4,609
 U.S. government agencies 77,868 { - (768) 77,100
.Auction rate securities 31,575 I - - 31,575
Other : x ‘ - 20° ' - - 20
7 Total ' $ 131,153 - $ - $ (949} $ 130,204
Long-term - U.S. government agencies 3 30,000 % ’ = 3 (605) $ 29,395
. - i * '
investments at December 31, 2006 ¢onsist of the following (in thousands): *
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized ' Unrealized Market
- Cost Gains Losses Value

Short-term: R E ' : i . )

U.S. government agencies $ 93256 $ 5 & (393) $ 92,868

Auction rate securities ) 115,075 | ‘ - - 115,075

Total : $ 208331t _§ ' 5 _§ (383) _§ 207,943

- Long-term: ) '

' Corporate debt securities 5,414 L - (24) - 5,390

U.S. government agencies ] . 3,000 - L - . (6) .2,994

Total L - _$ 8414 _$ ' - 8 (30) _$ 8,384

f
|

As of December 31, 2006, the contractual'maturitieé of debt securities were as follows (in'thousands):
b !

i

- . Less than One to L
' : One Year Three Years ‘Total
Short-term: $ 207943 L8 207,943
Long-term: - 8,384 8,384
Total RS 207,943 . _§ 8384 _$ 216,327
7 4
T

| : F-25




CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The followmg table shows the fair value of our investments with gross unrealized losses that are not
deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired grouped by investment category at December 31,
2006:

. _ Gross
Market Unrealized
Value Loss
' N » .
Corporate debt securities’  $ 5,390 © $ (24)
U.S. government agencies ' - 82,322 (399)
: Total _ $ 87,712 $ (423)

' R

At December 31, 2006, we did not have any investments in individual securities that have been in a

continuous unreahzed loss posmon deemed to be temporary for more than 12 months. The
unrealized losses are the result of market conditions affecting fixed-income securities. Because our
- general intentis to hold our investment securities to maturity, and considering the high quality of the

investment securities, we are confident that the unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 represent a
temporary condition and will not result in realized losses on sale or maturity of the securities. We
review our investment portfolio to identify and evaluate investments that have indications of possible
impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary include the length of
time and extent to which fair value has been less than the cost basis, the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the investee, credit quality and our ability to hold the investment for a period
of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value. ’

. REPORTING COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income includes net income, effective unrealized gains and losses on forward
contracts, foreign currency translation adjustments, net unrealized pension gains and losses, and
unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, which are recorded as short-term and
long-term investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

See the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equnty for the 1mpact of the components of
comprehensive loss to our net income. '

The following table summarizes the change in each component of accumulated other
comprehensive foss for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 (in thousands):

Total unrealized

loss on  ° Total unreafized . Accumulated
availabledor-sale . gain (loss) on . other
Translation Investn]ents,l derivatives, " Net unrealized comprehensive
adjustment net of tax net of tax - pension loss (1) loss
January 1, 2004 Batance $ {4473 % 1448 & (2709) 5 - 3 (5,734)
Period net change 697 (1,672) 2254 . 1279
December 31,2004  Balance $ (3.776) § (224) § 455) 8 - 8 (4,455)
Period net change {4,381) ' {574) ag5 (4,570)
December 31,2005  Balance $ (8151 § (798) § (7o) § - 5 (9,025) -
. Period net change 4,173 706 87 th] 4,959

December 31,2006 Batance § (3984) § ] 92) % 7§ {n 8 {4,066)

(1) See Note 12 under Retirement Plans for additional information.
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- i
6. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LICENSE AGREEMENT -

. - The research and development agreement we entered .into effective January 23, 2004- with Intel
was amended on July 17, 2006 (“Amended Development Agreement”). Under the terms of the
original agreement, Intel was to provide us with up to a total of $20.0 million over a. three-year
period to accelerate the development of production-worthy extreme ultraviolet (“EUV™) lithography
light sources. Under the terms: of the Amended Development Agreement, most of the mutual
+ obligations between us and Intel have been terminated, including Intel's obligation to provide us with
up to a total of $20.0 million. As of the date of the amendment, we had received a total of $8.5
million from Intel under the original agreement, mcludlng an advance payment of $1.3 million paid”
. by Intel at the initiation of the original agreement in 2004. Under the Amended Development
Agreement, Intel has no obligation to provide us with further fundmg beyond the amount we already
received and we returned $347,222, which represented the uneamned portion of the advance
_ payment made by Intel. Although we wili receive no addltlonal funding from_ Intel under the

N Amended Development Agreement, we intend to continue to develop the EUV technology as part of

i our existing product roadmap. In addition, per the terms of the Amended Development Agreement,
we will continue meeting with Intel on a regular basis to review our progress towards developing a
production-worthy EUV source system. The total funded amounts recorded under this agreement .
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were $6.1 mllllon $1 9 million and

; - $104,000, respectively : o

.-

-
I

The intellectual property ficense agreement we entered mto effectlve as of January 28, 2004 with .
Intel was amended on June 28, 2006 ("Amended Intellectual Pmperty License Agreement”). Under
the original intellectual property license agreement, pursuant té which we licensed certain patents
and trade secrets from Intel related to EUV lithography technology, our obligation to. pay license
i - fees to Intel did not commence until our first high volume manufacturing shipment of an EUV
lithography light source. The Amended Intellectual Property License Agreement replaces the
license fee payments tied to product shipments with an up-front'license fee which we paid to Intel in
full upon execution of the amendment. The Amended Inteliectual Property License Agreement aiso
changes a number of the EUV patents covered by the license. Atl of the licensed patents under the
Amended Intellectual Property License Agreement relate to EUV technology, and.we intend to use
them in connection with our continuing research and development efforts related to EUV.
We recorded the patent license rights acquired from Intel valued at $8.2 million under this Amended
Intellectual Property License Agreement as an intangible assetf in our accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. These amounts have been capitalized as we expect to use the technology in future
research and’ development projects. See Note 13, Patent License Agreements for more
. |nformat|on , o . . o

. . 1.
7. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS : : |
: We account for our goodwilt and other |ndet" nite life mtanglble assets in accordance with SFAS No.
142. Under SFAS No. 142, our goodwill is subject to an annual |mpa|rment test. In addition, SFAS
No. 142 requires us to test for goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level. For the_year.ended
December 31, 2006, we concluded that we have two separate reporting units, our primary business
to design, manufacture and sell excimer light source systems, replacement parts, and support
- services for use in photolithography systems used in the manufacture of semiconductors and our
TCZ joint venture with Zeiss that is currently developing a process tool for use.in the manufacture of
L - flat panel displays. - During the fourth quarter of 2006 we completed our annual impairment test of
1 goodwill and intangibles and concluded that no impairment of goodwill or intangibles existed. As a
| result,.no impairment Joss was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2006. Since all of our
i recorded goodwill was acquired pnor to the formation of TCZ, none of the goodwﬂl was allocated to
the TCZ reporting unit. .
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" Changes in goodwill from the year ended December 31, 2005 to the year ended December 31,
2006 consisted of approximately $475,000 as a result of our acquisition of the final 19% minority
interest in Cymer Korea in January 2006. The carrying amount of goodwill was $8.4 million and $8.8
million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

intangible assets — net, within the accompanying balance sheets represents amounts associated
with patents that were acquired in 2001, 2003, 2005 and 2006. As of December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2006, the net carrying amount of these patents was $10.5 milliorn and $15.9 million,
respectively. The accumulated amortization of these patents at December 31, 2005 and December
‘31, 2006 was $8.3 million and $11.1 million, respectively. Amortization expense of our patents was
$2.4 million, $2.4 million and $2 8 mllllon far the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 20086,
respectively.

As-of December 31, 2006, future estimated amortization expense for these patents for the next ﬁve
years and beyond is expected to be as follows (in thousands); - .

oo T Future
T ‘ Amortization

Year-ending December, 31, 2007 $ 3,046

- Year ending December 31, 2008 3,046
Year ending December 31, 2009 1,564
Year ending December 31, 2010 675
Year ending December 31, 2011 ‘ 875
Thereafter ) 6,873

CREDIT FACILITIES

Margin Facility — During 2005 and 2006, we maintained a revolving credit facility referred to as a
“margin facility” with a large U.S. financial institution. The facility carries a preferred interest rate
which is tied to the U.S. Federal Funds rate, and is secured by certain investment securities which
we hold at the same financial institution. The applicable rate of interest on this facility at December
31, 2005 and 2006 was approximately 4.95% and 6.0%, respectively. No amounts were outstanding
_ under this facility during 2005 or 2006.

Foreign Currency Exchange Facilities — During 2005 and 20086, we maintained foreign currency
exchange facilities with five financial institutions in the U.S. See also “Derivative Instruments” in
Note 1. The foreign currency exchange facilities provided up to $100.0 million in 2005 and 2006 to
be utilized for spot and futures foreign currency exchange contracts for periods of up to one year. As
of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, $46.2 million and $42.0 million was utilized under
the foreign currency exchange facilities, respectively.

. CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES

In February 2002, we issued $250.0 miliion principal amouni of unsecured fixed rate 3.50%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due February 15, 2009. Interest on these notes is payable on
February 15 and August 15 of each year. The notes are convertible into shares of our common
stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount subject to adjustment under
certain conditions. We may redeem the notes after February 20, 2005 at certain redemption prices
expressed as a percentage of the principal amount. The notes are subordinated to our existing and
future senior indebtedness and effectively subordinated o all indebtedness and other liabilities of
our subsidiaries. In the third quarter of 2004 and the second quarter of 2005, we repurchased, at a
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discount to par, $49.2' million and $60. 0 million pnncrpal amount of these notes, respectively. As a
result of these repurchases weé recoghized a gain on debt extmgurshment of $911,000 in 2004 and
$2.2 million in 2005. As of December 3, 2005 and 20086, we had $140 7 million- prmcnpal amount of
the notes outstanding. . |

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY . o !

Common Stock Warrants — Durrng 2001 we issued warrants to purchase 200,000 shares of our
common stock ‘at a _weighted average purchase price of $31.43 per share in conjunction with the
acquisition of certain patents (See Note 13): During 2005 and 2006, no warrants were granted. In
May 2006; all 200, 000 warrants were exermsed for total proceeds of $6 3 million in cash.
Stock Repurchaseé Program Zin January 2005, our board of dlrectors authorized us to repurchase
up to $50 million‘of our:common-stock in the open market or in prlvately negotiated transactions.
_ We executed stock repurchases under this program untit the full $50 million was repurchased at the
end of I|\nay 2005. As aresult of thrs program ‘we repurchased 1.9 million shares of our common
stock L _ |

'On July 28, 20086, our board of diréctors authorized*us to repurchase up to $150 million of our
comimon stock under a second repurchase_ program. The purchases will be made from time to time
in the open market or in privately' negotlated transactions and the program may be discontinued at
any time. Total purchases through December-31, 2006 were $100.7 million or 2.6' miltion shares
under this 2006 approved program. o

Stock Optron Plans - We have the followmg stock optaon planls '

2005 Equity Incenrrve Plan {the “2005 P!an’? - In May 2005 at’ dur anhual méeting of

PRI e

- stockholders, .our stockholders approved the 2005 Plan. The, 2005 Plan provides for the grant or

~award of various equity incentives to our employees, directors and consultants. Upon approval of the
2005 Plan by the stockholders; we discontinued the use of our 1996 Stock Option Plan and 2000
Equity incentive Plan for future equity awards. Options issued under the 2005 Plan expire ten years
after the options are granted and generally vest and become exercisable ratably over a four-year

* period following the date of grant. Stock unit awards ‘issued under the 2005 Plan generally vest one

year from the date granted. A total of 1,000,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance
under the 2005 Plan and it provides for the issuance of incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock

- options, stock appreciation rights, stock bonus awards, stock’purchase awards, stock unit awards

and other stock awards. Options to purchase 635,948 shares,are outstanding and 344 154 shares
remain available for grant under this plan as of December 31, 2006 .

1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Plan”) — The 1996 Plan provided for the grant of incentive
stock options to our employees and nonqualified stock options to our employees, directors and
consultants. The exercise prices of stock options granted under the 1996 Plan were at least equal to
the fair market value of our common stock on the dates of grant Options issued under the 1996 Plan
expire five to ten years after the options were granted and generally vest and become exercisable
ratably over a four-year period following the date of grant. The 1896 Plan was terminated in May

- 2005 with the approvai of the 2005 Plan. A total of 7,900,000 shares of common stock were

reserved for issuance under the 1996 Plan. Of these shares, options to purchase 1,607,671 shares
are outstanding as of December 31, 2006.

2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”) — In"August :200_0, our board of directors adopted

- the 2000 Plan which provides for the grant of options to our employees or consultants who were

neither directors nor officers. The exercise prices of the options granted under the 2000 Plan were
equal to the quoted market value of our commaon stock at the date of grant. Options issued under the
2000 Plan expire ten years after the options were granted and generally vest and become
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exercisable ratably over a four year period following the date of grant. The 2000 Plan was amended
in 2002 to increase the shares reserved for issuance under the plan from 1,850,000 to 4,950,000.
The.plan was terminated in May 2005 with the approval of the 2005 Plan. Of these shares, options
to purchase 1,232,520 shares are outstanding as of December 31, 2006. :

ACX 1993 Stock Option Plan (the “ACX Plan”} — We assumed the ACX Stock Option Plan upon
completion of the acquisition of ACX in February 2001. Outstanding options may’ be exercised
. solely for shares of our common stock, according to the conversion ratio established in the terms of
the acquisition. The outstanding ACX options were converted to options to purchase 336,109 of our
shares, at exercise prices ranging from $2.08 to $38.71 per share. The 'ACX Plan provided for the
grant of incentive and nonstatutory options to purchase shares of common stock to employees,
directors and consultants at exercise prices not less than 100% of the fair market value of common
stock on the dates the options were granted. Options issued under the ACX Plan expire five to ten

. years after the options were granted and generally vest and become exercisable ratably over a four-
year period following the date of grant. No further options will be issued under the ACX Plan. As of
December 31, 2006, no options to purchase shares are outstanding under the ACX Plan.

In 1996, we adopted a 7996 Director Option Plan (the “Director Option Plan”) whereby 200,000
shares were reserved for option grants to our directors. There were 80,000 options issued under the
Directar Option Plan in 1997. The Director Option Plan was terminated in October 1997 and none of
these options rerqain outstanding as of December 31, 2006.

Stock Options

A summary of the stock option actwnty under all stock option plans is as follows (|n thousands,
except per share data):

: Options Qutstanding
.Stock Options * : ) Weighted Average

Available ‘ Number of Exercise Price
for Grant . | -, Shares . . Per Share

Balance at January 1, 2004 o 1,584 o 7226 $ T 30.36
Granted ] ‘ o (1,053) . 1,053‘ : 36.73
Exercised S (502) . 23.34
Cancelled . 315 (248) . ’ 29.98
Expired - : @) . (67) Co 44.16
Balance at December 31, 2004 - 852 : 7462 31.62
Reserved for 2005 Plan 1,000 -

Granted ) . _ (732) 732 : 29.90
Exercised ) - (928) _ 24.27
Cancelled ’ a2 . {131) . 3097
Expired . (799) ' 211) Co T a067
Balance at December 31, 2005 663 6,924 ' 32.15
Granted ' {331) - R | K S 44.94
‘Exercised = - o : - (3.509y - ! : 30.91
Cancelled ot 270 (213} ’ 30.90
Expired ‘ (258) {57) 48,73
Balance at Décember 31, 2006 344 3,458 3 34.38
Exercisable at December 34, 2006 * . _ o 2,696 $ 33.60
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The followmg table summarizes information as of December 31 2006 concermng currently

outstanding and exercisable options: - ... _ . - L e
Options Outstanding ; Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average | o
~ Number - Reinainihg . Welghted Aggregate " Number Weighted " Aggregate
) Outstanding Contractua) Average Intrinsic + Exercisable Average Intrinsic
Range of As of 12131i06 Term . Exercise Value , As of 12/31/06 - Exercise Value
Exercise Prices {in thousands}) {in years) Price (in thousands} |{In thousands) " Price {in thousands)
$1275 - § 1573 4 167 $1275 $ w4 $1275 § 115
$16.32 - § 1998 193 522 19.19 4,784 193 19.19 4784
$2000 - $ 2576 405 436 2324 T ogage ! . 384 2324 7,963
$25.79 - $ 3166 644 . 6.02 28.66 9,844 ! 453.. 28.88 6,974
§3169 - § 301 1457 5.12 3582 nas | 1207 36.11 9,466
83985 - $48.64 534 120 4483 S 7 | 44.87
$48.73 - $ 5513 2 5.34 50.25 - 170 50.71 -
$1275 - § 55.13 " 3458 | 554" 538§ U973 3 2606 $3360 § 29,302

1

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on
a per share price of $43.95, the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2006 as
reported by The NASDAQ Global. Select Market, which would have been received by the option
holders had all option_holders exercised their options as of that date. The total number of in-the-
. money stock options exercssable as of December 31, 2006 was 2, 3 mllllon
I
The weighted average per share fair value of 'the options granted was $21. 76 $17.39, and $18.85
during the years ended December 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectlvely

The tota| intrinsic value of optlons exercised was $8.9 million, $10 2 million. and $62.0 mlllron during
the years ended December 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively.

The total cash received from employees as a result of employe!e stock option exercises during the
- year ended December, 31, 2006 was approximately $108.4. million. _. In. connection with these

exercises, the tax benefits. recogmzed by us for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $21.5 '
million.

We settle employee ‘stock optien exercises with nery issued shares of our common stock.

Stock Units h l

In January 2006, our board of directors approved the use of annual stock unit awards for non-
employee directors pursuant to our 2005 Plan in lieu of quarterly stock options grants. The number
of shares subject to each stock unit award is determined by dividing $100,000 by the closing price
_ per share of our common stock as-of the date of grant. During the year ended December 31, 2006,
17,948 shares subject to such stock units awards were granted to non-employee directors with a
grant date fair value of $39.00 per share. Each stock unit award shall vest 100% after one year from

the date of grant. Stock based compensation expense for stock unuts for the year ended December
31, 2006 was $671,000. ‘
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A summary of the change in stock unit awards cutstanding during the year ended December 31,
2006 is as follows {in thousands, except life data): .

Weighted Aggregate
Average Intrinsic Value
Shares Remaining as of
(in - Contractual December 31, 2006
.- thousands) Life {in thousands)
Beglnnmg Outstandmg : -
Awarded . 18
Vested -
* Forfeited -
Ending Qutstanding 18 0.04 $789

Ending Exercisable - ’ -
Weighted Average Remaining Recognition Period - 0.04 years

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pré-tax intrinsic value based on
our closing stock price of $43.95 as of December 31, 2006.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan '

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPPT} — Our ESPP is intended to qualify for favorable
income tax treatment associated with rights granted under an employee stock purchase plan which
qualifies under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the ESPP, eligible employees
may purchase shares of our common stock through payroll deductions of up to 15% of his or her
~ ‘compensation {as defined in the plan), at a price per share equal to 95% of the fair market value of
our common stock-at the end of the purchase pericd. Our ESPP was amended in 2005. The
amendment: a) changed the duration of offering pericds under the plan from two years to six
‘months, b) reduced the discount to market price used to determine the purchase price for shares of
our common stock under the plan from 15% to 5%, and c¢) eliminated the “lookback” feature that
allowed the purchase price to be determined as of the beginning of an offering period, or enroliment
date; if the market price as of the enroliment date was lower than the ‘market price at the end of the
offering period. As aresult of the amendment the plan became non- compensatory

On February 7, 2006, our board of directors amended our ESPP to extend the expiration date of the
plan until July 31, 20186. In addition, on May 18, 2006, our stockhclders approved an amendment to
increase the number of shares of common stock reserved for isstiance under the plan by 300,000
shares from 1,200,000 shares to 1,500,000 shares.

The number of shares issuable under the ESPP as of December 31, 2006 was 366,295, and
1,133,715 shares have been previously issued. Because our ESPP is a non-compensatory plan as
_deﬁned by SFAS No. 123R, no stock-based compensation expense is recorded for our ESPP.

~ The total cash received from eémployees as a result of ESPP shares |ssued during the year ended
December 31, 2006 was approximately $1.3 m|II|on

v
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1

INCOME TAXES

'
]

!

_ Total income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2004 2005 and 2006 were allocated as

follows (in thousands}:

+

Years ended December 31,

2004 t 2005 2006
To income from continuing operations $ 15,144 ' $ 262 . $ 46,137
To stockholders' equity and goodwill (2,748) (736} o {19,759)
Total income taxes | $ 12,396 $ (474) $ 26,378

The breakdown of income before income tax provision and min'ority interest and the compenents of

the provision for income taxes on continuing operations on U S. and foreign pre-tax income are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

I .
- - : : . Years ended December 31,

] 2004 - 2005 . 2006 .
LS. pre-tax income ‘ $ 48362 |$ 43002  $ 137,961
Foreign pre-tax income 12,205 \ 2,786 731

" Total . $ 60574 i$ 45788 $ 138,692
Current income taxes: . - .

Federal : $ (794 8 1,576 $ 24,541
State : . 78 (1 665
‘' Foreign - _ . 1,838 ‘ 1,032 T .3,813
Total . ' 1122 | 2,597 29,019
Deferred income taxés: ! | s "
Federal - . . 16,455 . 328 15,641
State s , (1,226) : {2,338) 964
Foreign . . ' (1,207} ; {325) 513
Total . s . 14,022 t (2,335) 17,118
,'Incomé tax p;qvision $ 15144 3 262 ":$ 46,137

T
The income tax provision is different from that which would be' obtained by applying the statutory

- federal income tax rate (35%) to income before income tax ',expense.' The items causing this
-differénce for each period are as follows (in thousands): ' o

* 1
. R . - : -

|
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Years ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006 . -

Provision at statutory rate ) $ 21,201 - % 16,026 $ 48,542
Foreign prowsmn in excess of (less than) ' )

- federal statutory rate - 2,958 {1,443} 3,739

- State income taxes, net of federal benefit (135) (2,035) 1,629

Extraterritorial income exclusion benefit - (7,305) (7.571) (3.629)

U.S. manufacturing benefit . - . (897)

Federal tax credits - (1,139) {3,896) (3,500)

Change in cash surrender value of life insurance - - (883) : (1,117)

Change in valuation allowance .. ' 293 910

Other _ . (436) (229) 460

Provision at effective tax rate . $ 15,144 $ 262 $° 46,137

Deferred income taxes reflect the nét tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income
tax purposes. Significant components of our net deferred tax assets are as follows (|n thousands)

December AN,
o7 . 2005 2006
Deferred tax ‘assets: : - .
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible . B 19216 . § . 20,731
Difference between book and tax basis of inventory 5,667 6,297
Tax carryforwards , 39,363 26,227
Tax effect of foreign transactions i . 6,192 A 5,950
Foreign deferred tax assets, . 373 i 4,080
Total gross deferred tax ‘aseels . 74,169 ., 63,285
Valuation allowance (293) (1,203)
Net deferred tax assets ) 73,876 . 62,082
Deferred tax liabilities: .
Difference between book and tax basis of property and equ1pment " (5,986) .. (2,787)
Reserves and accruals not currently taxable {123y {B6)
Totai deferred tax liabilities . (6,109) °~ - . (2,873)

Net deferred tax assets ‘ 3 67,767 3 59,209

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax.assets will not be realized. With regard to certain
deferred tax assets related to our TCZ joint venture and French branch operations, we believe there
is insufficient evidence to conclude that realization of the benefit is more likely than not, and
therefore we have provided a full valuation allowance of $1.2 million against these assets. With-
regard to all other deferred tax assets, we believe that it is more likely than not that the results of
future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the benefit, and therefore no
valuation allowance has been provided for these assets.

At December 31, 2006, we had federal tax credit carryforwards of $11.7 million, which begin to
expire in 2018. At December 31, 2006, we had state tax credit carryforwards of $14.2 million,
- which may be carried forward indefinitely. At December 31, 2006, we had foreign NOL
carryforwards of $2.6 million which may be carried forward indefinitely.
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Our 2004 and 2005 U.S. federal income tax returns are under audit by the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS"). The audit has focused primarily on our extraterritorial income exclusion for these years. No
assessments or changes have been proposed to date by the IRS auditors.

‘We benefit from a tax holiday in Korea where we manufacture' certain products. The tax holiday is
awarded by Korea's Ministry of Finance and Economy to promote capital investment in certain
qualified high-technology businesses. The holiday is effectlve for a 10-year period, from 2003
through 2012, and provides exemption from corporate mcome tax of 100% of eligible income
through 2009 and 50% of eligible income from 2010 through 2012. Since its inception, the tax
holiday has produced tax benefits to us totaling $3.6 million.

It is our intention to reinvest undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries and thereby

indefinitely postpone their remittance, with the exception of our TCZ joint venture. Accordingly, we

have not provided U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $58 million of undistributed

earnings from non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 2006. ' It is not practlcable 1o estimate the
: 'amount of the deferred tax Ilablllty on such unremitted earnings. 1. v

Leases - We lease certain facilities under non-cancelable operatmg leases. The Iease terms on
these facilities are through January 1, 2010 and provide for certain rent abatements and minimum
annual increases and options to extend the terms. In addition, we have a land lease in Korea with a
lease term through December 2020. This land lease is exempt from lease payments because the
building meets certain investment and operational criteria of the! Korean government. From time to

time we lease certain equipment and vehicles under either capital or operating leases. We had no
capital Iease agreements as of December 31, 2006.

i
Rent expense under operating leases net of sublease rental income is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the life of the related leases, and totaled approximately $6,495,000, $679,000 and
$334,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Rent expenses for
2004 and 2005 include $3.0 million and $384,000 in costs recorded for-lease losses associated with
our subleasing activities for our San Diego and Charlestown facilities, respectively. Sublease rental
income totaled $1,085,000, $4,044, 000 and $4 666 000 for the lyears ended December 31, 2004,

. 2005 and 20086, respectively. -

Total future minimum lease commitments under operating leases are as follows {(in thousands):

Years ending December 31, : o OEerating
2007 ‘ $ 50095
2008 : ' 4,088

" 2009 - a 13,393 .
2010 . . - S ' i o 89
2011 & thereafter : - . . ‘ 18
Total .

v, 18 12683
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The following represents future minimum rentals to be earned under our noncancelable subleases (in
thousands). These amounts are directly offset to the operating Iease amounts above.

Sublease
Years ending December 31, ~ | Paments
2007 . - T $ 3604
2008 o - 1,526
2009 . 1,124
Total - ' $ 6,254

Employee Savings Plan - We have a 401(k) plan that allows participating employeeg to contribute
a, percentage of their salary, subject to certain annual IRS limits. The plan is available to
substantlally all full-time U.S. employees and, per the terms of the plan, we are allowed to make a
matching contribution of up to 5% of each participating employee’s compensation, not to exceed
$5,000 per year. Under the plan, we contributed $2.8 million, $2.4 million and $3.0 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan -~ We have an executive deferred compensation plan for

. certain officers and key. executives. - Beginning in 2001, we used. corporate owned life insurance to
finance the plan. Compensation expense under this plan totaled $182,000, $222,000 and $628,000
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Our liability for deferred
compensation totaled $4.1 million and $4.5 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively,
and is included in other liabilities.. The cash surrender value of the life insurance polucnes totaled
$2.5 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006 and is included in other assets.

Executive Option and Group Health Coverage Extension Program — We have an executive,
option and health coverage extension program for eligible executives who meet certain minimum
service and age requirements. This program is designed to provide extended benefits to eligible
executives who retire and cease to serve us on a full-time basis. .Under the terms of the plan, the
executive acts as our consultant for a term of four years. In return for these services, the program
allows the executive to continue vesting in_his or her stock options after the retirement separation
date. The program also provides the executives with specified health insurance continuation benefits
until the age of 65. We had one former executive who participated in this program in 2005 and
2006. The cost for this program was not material in either year.

Retirement Plans Two of our sub51dlary offices, Cymer Japan and Cymer Korea have retirement
allowances and pension plans covering a substantial portion of their employees. Benefits under
these plans are based upon years of service and compensation levels. Details on each of these
plans are as follows.

Cymer Japan - Cymer Japan has a Retirement Allowance and Pension Plan (“pension plan”) for all
Cymer Japan employees, as well as a retirement allowance for Japanese directors (“directors’
plan”). Expense under these plans totaled approximately $536,000, $321,000 and $248,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The expenses for the pension plan
are recorded pursuant to the accounting requirements under Statements of Financial Standards No.
87, 88 and 132(R). We use November 30 as the measurement date. Our liability for both plans
totaled approximately $1.4 million and $1.5 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2008, respectively.
Although the total expenses and liability balances provided above include both plans, the directors’
plan is immaterial to all amounts and years provided. The projected benefit obligation at December
31, 2005 and 2006 was approximately $1.3 million and $1.4 million, respectively. The accumulated
benefit obligation at December 31, 2005 and 2006 was approximately $1.0 million for both years.
There was an unrecognized actuarial loss of approximately $69,000 at December 31, 2005 and an
unrecognized actuarial gain of approximately $66,000 at December 31, 2006.
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The pension plan is an unfunded plan and includes no plan assets. The net periodic pension costs
for the year 2007 are estimated at approximately $229,000. Estimated future benefit payments
expected under the pension plan from 2007 through 2011, and thereafter are approximately
$89,000, $101,000, $115,000, $185,000, $198,000 and $665,000, respectively. The following
assumptions were used in the "actuarial calculations for 2005 and 2006. - The estimated salary
" increases were 4% and 3.5% for 2005 and 2008, respectively. The mortality rates for both 2005 and
2006 were as announced by the Japanese Ministry of Health and Welfare on October 2004 for use
in funding valuation of the Employees Pension. Fund. The discount rates used in the actuarial
: calculatlons were 1. 50% and 2% for 2005 and 2006, respectlvely

As discussed in Note 1 .we adopted SFAS No. 158 for the year endlng December 31, 2006. Due to
the unrecognized actuarial gain in 2006 for the Cymer Japan pension plan, the adoptlon of SFAS
No. 158 resulted in a decrease of approximately $66,000 in our other liabilities and an increase of
approximately $39,000 in our accumulated other comprehenswe loss for the tax affected portion of
the unrecognized actuarial gain. We do not plan to recognize as a component of net period benefit
cost in 2007 the $39,000 recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss for.2006 as the total
amount does not exceed 10% of the projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2006. There
were no unrecognized transition costs or unrecognized prior service costs for either of the years
ended December 31, 2005 or December 31, 2006 for the Cyrmer Uapan pension plan.

Cymer Korea — Cymer Korea has a government mandated Retirement Allowance and Pension Plan
(“pension plan”) for all Cymer Korea employees. Expense under this plan totaled approximately
$279,000, $319,000 and $249,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively. The expenses for the pension plan are recorded pursuant to the accounting
requirements under Statements of Financial Standards No. 87, 88 and 132R. We use November 30
. as the measurement date. -Our liability for the pension plan totaled approximately $403,000 and
. $461,000 as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The prolected benefit obligation and the
accumulated benefit obligation were approximately $1.1 million and $795,000 at December 31,

2008, respectively. The unrecogmzed actuarial loss was approximately $59,000 at December 31
. 2006. : t

The net periodic pension costs for the year 2007 are estimated at approximately $274,000.
‘Estimated future benefit payments expected under the pension plan from 2007 through 2011, and
thereafter are approximately $113,000, $117,000, $126,000, $131,000, $133,000 and $734,000,
respectively. We expect to make contributions of $243,000 t6 the plan in 2007. The following
assumptions were used in the actuarial calculations for 2006. The estimated salary increase was
" 6%. The mortality rates were based upon data announced by the Korea Insurance Development
* Institute as required by Korean regulations for pension plans wrth less than 300 employees. The -

-discount rate used in the actuarlal calculation was 5. 06% and the expected rate of return on plan
assets was 4.60%. ! :

1

Cymer Korea has an established‘ life insurance trust fund to maintain the pension plan assets. The
life. insurance fund is a guaranteed investment product and is heavily regulated by the Korean
government. As of December 31, 2006, total plan assets were $655,000. To develop the expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption, we considered the current level of expected
returns on risk free investments (primarily government bonds), the historical level of the risk premium
associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for
future returns of each asset class. We then weighted the expected return for each asset class based
on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
assumption in the portfolio. " This resulted in our selection of the 4.60% assumption.

Due to the unrecognized actuarial loss for the Cymer Korea pension plan in 2006, the adoption of
SFAS No. 158 resulted in an increase of approximately $59,000 in our other liabilities and a
decrease of approximately $46,000 in our accumulated other comprehensive loss for the tax
affected portion of the actuarial loss. We do not plan to recogniZze as a component of net period
benefit cost in 2007 the $46,000 recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss for 2006 as the
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total amount does not exceed 10% of the projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2006.
There were no unrecognized transition costs or unrecognized prior service costs for either of the

" years ending December 31, 2005 or December 31, 2006 for the Cymer Korea pension plan.

Korea Customs Investigation — In 2002, the customs agency in Korea had asserted that parts
being imported into Korea from our corporate office in San Diego were classified improperly for
customs and duties purposes and some used items, which were returned to San Diego, were valued
improperly during the period from 1997 through July 2003. Aithough we did not agree with*these |
assertions, Korean customs assessed and required us to pay additional duties related to shipments

" during this time period. As a result of these assertions and discussions that we had with the

customs agency in Korea, we recorded an expense of $4.7 million in the cost of product sales for the
year ended December 31, 2003. Payments made to the customs agency in Korea were $2.5 million
and $1.9 million during 2003 and 2004, respectively. The 2004 payment was net of a $289,000
refund received from the Korea customs agency. In 2004, we received notification from the Korean
customs.agency that we would receive a refund of a portion of duties prewously paid. As a result, we
recorded a $2.3 million reduction to cost of product sales and $100,000 to interest income in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 related
to this refund. No balances related to this refund were outstanding as of December 31, 2006.

Contmgenc.'es We are party to legal actions in the normal course of business. Based in part on
the advice of legal counsel, our management does not expect the outcome of legal action in the
normal course of business to have a material |mpact on our financial position, liquidity, or resuits of
operations.

Qur former Japanese manufacturing partner, Seiko, and one of our Japanese customers were
notified in July 1996 that our light source systems in Japan may infringe certain Japanese patents
held by another Japanese company. We have agreed to indemnify our former Japanese
manufacturing partner and our customers against patent infringement claims- under certain
circumstances, even after the termination date of the contract manufacturing agreement. We
believe, based upon the advice of counsel, that our products do not infringe any valid claim of the
asserted patents or that we are entitled to prior use claims in Japan.

PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENTS

in May 2001, we acquired certain patents for use in our deep ultraviolet ("DUV") light source
applications. The total consideration for this transaction was $10.3 million, which included a $6.0
‘million cash payment and the issuance of 200,000 warrants valued at $4.3 million. The warrants
were valued on the date of issuance using the Black-Scholes pricing model using the following

~assumptions: 87% volatility, 5.0% risk-free interest rate and 4.6 years expected life. The total value

of these patents are being amortized over eight years which represents the remaining useful life of
the patents purchased under the agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in cost of
product sales on the accompanying statements of operations since they are used in products which
are currently being shipped to customers. : -

In November 2003, we acquired ‘the rights to the same list of patents as in the May 2001 agreement
but for a. different field of use, for a total amount of $6.0 million in cash. This license agreement
allows us to use the patents for EUV and other future applications. The total value of these patents
are being amortized over a period of 5.5 years which represents the remaining useful life of the
patents purchased under the agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in research
and development expenses on the accompanying statements of operations since the field of use
involves applications which are still in the research and development stages.

Per the terms of the May 2001 and November 2003 patent license agreements relating to the above,

we are required to pay a minimum $200,000 royalty annually in the event that we do not ship a

certain number of production tools to third parties which contain the intellectual property that we in-

licensed under these agreements. This royalty provision which applies to both agreements, became
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effective on January 1, 2006. Although this royaity was not triggered in 2006 for the DUV light source
applications that we shipped, it was triggered for the EUV field of use since we did not ship any EUV
systems to third parties in 2006. This $200,000 royalty for 2006 is .included in research and
.development expenses on the accompanyrng statements of operatlons

in November 2005, we acquired certain patents for use in our DUV hght source appllcatlons |n mask
based lithography for a total of $2.5 million in cash. The total value of these patents are being

. amortized over a period of 14.65 years which represents the average remaining useful life of the

patents purchased under the agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in cost of
product sales on the accompanying statements of operations since’they are malniy being used in
products which are currently being shipped to customers. '

.. In June 2006, we acquired certain patent license rights valued at $8.2 million for use in our
" continuing research and development efforts related to EUV The acquisition of these patent
. license rights are associated with the Amended Intellectual, Proper‘(y License Agreement with Intel

which is discussed in Note 6. fo our consolidated financial statements. The total value of these
patent license rights are being amortized over a period of_16. 29, ;years which represents the average

" remaining useful life of all of the patents purchased under this amendment. The amortization of

these patents is included in research and development expenses on the accompanylng statement

of operations since the field of use involves appl:catlons wh:ch are still in the research and
development stages.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2006 the net carrymg amount re|ated to all of these patent license
agreements was $10.5 million and $15.9 million, respectively.

'
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS . | . S

i
Collaborative Arrangement — We have a coliaborative . arrangement with a Japanese company that
was also a stockholder of ours until 2000. The arrangement, entéred into in August 1992, includes a )
product license agreement and contract manufacturing agreement. In early 2003, we mutually

agreed to terminate the contract manufacturing agreement. The general provisions of the product
Ilcense agreement are as foIlows

|

We granted to the stockholder the exclusive right in Japan and the non-exclusive right outside Japan
to manufacture and sell one of our products and any subsequent enhancements. We also granted
the stocknolder the right of first refusal 1o license and fund the development of new technologies not
developed with funding from other parties. In exchange for these nghts we received up-front license
fees and were entitled to royalties of 5% on related product sales through September 1999, after
which the royalty rate was subject to renegotiation. To date theré has been no renegotiation of the
royalty rate, The: license agreement also provides that product sales between us and the
stockholder will be at a 15% discount from the respective companies’ list price. The agreement
terminates in August 2012. There was no activity under this agreement in 2004, 2005 and 2006.

Joint Venture Agreement — As a result of the formation of our TCZ joint venture in July 2005 and
under the terms of the joint venture agreement which was amended in September 2006, Zeiss is
now a related party. In addition to transactions that occur among us, Zeiss and TCZ Singapore
refated to the joint venture, we also purchase certain optical parts directly from Zeiss and sell our
light source system products to Zeiss periodically. We recorded revenue associated with this related

party of $400,000 and $7.4 million for the years ended December; 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2006, we had accounts receivable balances of $588,000 and
$834,000, respectively, and accounts payable balances of |$5.0 milion and $4.9 million,
respectively, all of which were assocrated with these related party transactions with Zeiss.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Our primary business is to desngn manufacture and sell excimer light source systems replacement
parts, and support services for use in photolithography systems used in the manufacture of
semiconductors. In addition, as discussed in Note 2, we entered into a joint venture agreement in
July 2005 with Zeiss and formed TCZ. On September 12, 2006, we amended the joint venture
agreement to move the location of TCZ from Switzerland to Singapore. As a result, the geographlc
information table below reflects that the majority of TCZ's assets were located in Europe in 2005

" and in Asia in 2006. TCZ is currently developing a process tool for use in the manufacture of flat

panel dlsplays TCZ is owned 60% by us and 40% by Zeiss and we consolidate the financial
position and results of operations of TCZ into our consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131 (*SFAS No. 1317},
“Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, we determined that our
‘business consists of two operating segments. Aithough the assets and results of operations of the
TCZ business do not exceed established quantitative thresholds included in SFAS No. 131 for the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, we have provided the following segment information
(mformatlon is in thousands and TCZ net mcome is presented net of mmorlty interest):

Yeér ended December 31, 2005

Cymer - TCZ . Total
Revenue $ 383,648 $ - $ . 383,648
NetIncome (Loss) ~  $ 48574 3 2022) $ 46,552 ‘
'Tolal Assets $ 761,859 $ ‘ 29,517 5 791,376

Year ended December 31, 2006

_ - Cymer TCZ ’ Total

Revenue : - § 543,855 $ S $ 543,855
. Net income (Loss) $ 100,094 $ . (4,446) *© § 95,648 '
Total Assets 3 926,999 $ 22,095 $ 949,094
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1:,.‘5“7‘ .

Geographic Information

-

Sales to unaffiliated customers, long- I|ved assets, all other ldentlf able assets and total identifiable
assets, classified by operations located in the U.S., Japan, Korea Talwan Singapore, the People s
- Republic of China, the Netherlands, and Swntzerland are as foIIows (in thousands):

PR . -

Year ended December 31, 2004

Asia ~ Europe
(Korea, Taiwan, {the Netherlands and
U.5. Japan Singapore and China] . Switzerland) ) Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers (1)~ § 212283 § 132512 § Po53g1 % 19661 0§ 418079
-- * | - ' . bl
Long lived assets (2) 114,134 3,115 5249 1,050 123,548
All other idenlifiahl'e assets 575,696 52470 } 54,037 13,085 695,288
Total identifiable assets - ‘ $ 689,830 § 55585 § .1 59286 $ 14,135 . $ 818836
Year ended December 31, 2005
Asia Europe
3 " {Korea, Taiwan, " (the Netherlands and
Us. Japan Singapore and China) Switzerland) Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers (1) $ 180,804  § 118,563 $ : ‘63612 % 20669 $  383.648
. 1. . -8
Long lived assets (2) 108,892 2,231 ' 5129 993 117,254
All other identifiable assets 528,969 49,644 - 54638 ‘40,874 674,125
. Total identifiable assets . §3 637881, § 51875 § 459787 $ 273§ - TN
i .
' Year ended Decembar 31, 2006 o -
Asla
' ) " (Korea, Taiwan, _ Europe
U.s. . Japan Singapore and China} (the'Neir'\erIands) . Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers (1) 8 292,481 $ 119,969 § 105,336 $ ~ 26069 $ 543,855
' ‘ . :, P I '
Long lived assets {2) . 103,076 1,292 v 7,005 ' e L (1) BU 112,074
All other identifiable assets 680,511 44,569 95,936 16,004 837,020
Total identifiable assets 3 783,587 $ 453861 $ 102,941 $ ) 16,705 $ 949,094

(1) Sales to unaffiliated customers consist of sales generated from each ofllhe geographic locations. All signifi icant

intercompany balances are sliminated in consolidation.
90% to 95% of the price of products sold to outsude customers.

Intercompany sales to our subslidiaries are generally priced between

(2) Long-lived assets include net pmperly. plant and equipment attributed to the geographic location in wtgich they are located.
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '

16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The table below includes quarterly data for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2008 (|n
thousands, except per share data):

(1) Eamnings per share are computed separately for each quarter and the full year using the respective weighted average

o4

@

: . _ Year ended December 31, 2005

1st 2nd 3rd 4th (2)
Revenues : $ 84810 $ 96392 $ 99653 § 102,793 .
' Operating income $ 5077 § 8925 $ 12,181 $ 14493
Net income $ 538 §$ 11,015 $ 12684 § 17,468
Basic eérnings per share (1) $ 015 $ 0.31 $ 0.36 $ 0.49
Diluted earnings per share (1) $ 014 $ 030 $ 0.35 '$ 0.48

Year ended Decembei‘ 31, 2006

1st 2nd 3rd 4th (3}

Revenues ., $ 127,117 $ 435379 $ 143918 $ 137,441

. Operating income : $ 24273 $ 29,023 $ 34979 § 30,856
Net income $ 20603 § 22602 $ 27032 § 25411
Basic eamings per share (1) $ 055 % 05885 0715 068
Diluted eamings per share () $ 052 % 0558% 068 % 065

shares. Therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per share amounts may not equal the annual amounts reported.

Includes additional net income .of approximately $804,000 due to the correction of our income tax provision for prior
periods as a result of our.ineffective internal controls over our accounlmg for income taxes. These control deficiencies
resulted in undetected‘errors In our consolidated income tax provision. Such errors were corrected in the fourth quarter of
2005, resulting in a reduction to income lax expense.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we corrected unrecorded stock-based compensation expense relating to grant date
errors for a small number of stock options that were granted primarily in 1999. The errors primarily resulted from either
not following our formal stock option approval process or making immaterial accounting clerical errors. The total amount of
the unrecorded stock compensation expense was $4.2 million and related to fiscal years 1999 through 2003, We
analyzed this accounting error and determined that it is immaterial to all prior periods impacted and to the current year

_financial statements. As a result of this analysis, we recorded the correcting entry related to this unrecorded stock |

compensation in the quarter ended December 31, 2006. This adjustment resulted in a $4.2 million decrease in 2006
operating income and a $2.6'million decrease in 2006 net income. .
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Exhibit 23.1

i

i
|

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

oy

The Board of Directors | |
Cymer, Inc.: '

'We consent to the mcorporatlon by ‘reference in the registration, statements (No 333 16559,

No. 333-99975, No. 333-88616, 'No. 333-67491, No. 333-48242, No, 333- 69736, No.'333-58554,
No. 333-109544, No. 333-118496, and No. 333-127748) on Form S-8 and in the registration statement
No. 333-88496 on Form S-3 of Cymer, Inc. of our report dated February 26, 2007, with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of Cymer, inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 20086, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss) and
cash flows, for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and the related
financial statement.schedule I!, management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting -as of December 31, 2006, and the effectweness of internal control' over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 whlch reports appear in the December 31, 2006, Annual Report on
Form 10-K of Cymer Inc.

Qur report refers to the Company's adoption of Statement of FlnanCIaI Accounting Standards No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment, effective January 1, 2006."

" Our report dated February 26, 2007 on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal controt over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 expresses our opinion that Cymer, Inc. did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, because of the effect of a material weakness on the

achievement of the objectives of the control criteria and contalns,an explanatory paragraph that states the
company had inadequate controls over the accounting for i mcome taxes.

b

/sIKPMGLLP

San Diego, California : . .
February 26, 2007 \




CYMER, INC.

- SCHEDULE Il

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006
(in thousands) ' '

Balance at Additions Balance
Beginhing {net) 7 at End
of Year (1) Deductions of Year
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts and Notes
Year ended December 31, 2004 % 1984 $ 199§ '_ (1.543)@ % | .620
. Year ended December 31, 2005 $ - 620 §. 13 .. . - $ - 756
Year ended December 31, 2006 . $ -756 $ 205 $ {18) $ 943
'_Invent_ory Allowance
_ Year ended December 31, 2004 " $ 12,028 $ 9474 $ (8842) § 12660
- Year ended December 31, 2005 $ 12,660 $ 3,221 $. (5,436} - 3 10,445
Year ended December 31, 2006 3 $ 10,095 $ 3 15,110

10,445

-

(1) Includes reversal of allowance amounts as deemed necessary:
(2) Represents write-off of note receivable and accrued interest.

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm.

+
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170:?5 Thornmint Court
San:Diego. CA 92127
United States

Tel: +1.858.385.7300
Fax; +1.858.385.7100
wwv!v.cymer.com .
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Eurgpean Headquarters
Plarietenbaan 16-BG

3606 AK Maarssen

The' Netherlands

Tel: +31.346.58.2000
Fax:I +31.346.58.2002
europe@cymer.com

Cymer Japan, Ine.
Cosmas Motoyawata Bldg.
4-17-8, Minamiyawata,
Ichikawa-shi

Chiba 272-0023 Japan

Tel: +81.47.393.5668
Fax:l +81.47.393.5672
japan{@cymer.com

!
Cymer Korea, Inc.
i

Eoyeon-Hansan 1

Ind{Jstrial Park

833'-1 Hansan-Ri, '

!

ChelongBook—Myenn
Pyulngtaek, KyungKi-Do |
Korea 451-833 °

Tet! +82.31.680.1500
Fax:: +82.31.680.1510
korea@cymer.com

1
Cymer Semiconductor

Equ:ipmem (Shanghai) Co., Lid,
King Tower 806

No.|28, Xinjingiao Rd.
Pudlong, Shanghai 201206
China !

Tel! +86.21.5032.6300
Fax:: +86.21.5032.6301
china@cymer.com !

Cyrper Singapore Pte., Ltd.
51 Goldhill Plaza

#10-01 .
Singapore, 308800

Tel: +65.6259.9792
Fax: +65.6250,9036

ot
singapore@cymer.com

Cyr‘ner Southeaslt Asia, Lid.
BE‘INo. 49, Lane 2

Kuang-Fu Road, Sec. 2
l-[siln-Chu, Taiwan, R.O.C.
Tel! +886.3.573.9960
Fax: +886.3.573.9961
taiwan{d cymer.com
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